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COMPANY’S PROFILE

With a vision to augment transport accessibility even in the most unexplored regions of
India, the founding stone of Orissa Bengal Carrier Limited (OBCL) was laid down in the
year 1994 by Late Mr. Ratan Kumar Agrawal. In the past decade, OBCL has evolved as
the signature brand of the Indian transport industry. It has played a vital role in
connecting vivid sectors and added value to the lives of millions.

The Company stands as a leader because of its constant standard approach in
grooming managerial resources and streamlining manpower, setting the standard in
quality and fostering assurances of service. We are specialized in providing industry-
focused solutions integrated with leading-edge technology. The team is committed to
the proper execution of the operations from start to end and that remains our chief
goal.

Company fulfils its commitments and arrange for highly efficient services through a
robust network and associated offices servicing the entire terminus covering the entire
length and breadth of India. It is resourcefully equipped with more than 100 owned
vehicles. With continuous efforts of the OBCL team, the Company gained huge fame
and collaborated with some of the finest clients and added leading companies in the
clientele list which is increasing in number continuously.

The Company has successfully transformed the outlook of the folks towards the
transportation sector and is dealing bulk transportation of more than a million tonne
per annum.

Looking ahead towards higher ends. To establish new fangled milestones in our journey,
we are adding more clients and providing transportation services in diversified sectors
so that we may serve better and extract satisfactory results for our clients.

@We take up transportation remits from anywhere to
anywhere in PAN India
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We take up transportation remits from anywhere to anywhere in PAN India.
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Qur Customers

Association | |

Our Fleet Size Our Services _
Total 117 Owned Vehicles  Specialized in Full Reliance ]nd.us?ries L.imited, Associated with | W
including 12/14/16/18 ~ Truck Load (FTL) Vedanta Limited, Jindal Tata Steel for than
Wheelers and More than Steel and Power Limited, 15 years
5000 Attached Vehicles Jindal Stainless Steel

Limited, JSW Steel Limited
and many more. ....
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Business Ovenview

Owns around 117 fleets with 40 branches PAN India

Asset light Business model working
through Partnerships

A dedicated team of in- house industry
specialists

Deals in bulk transportation
of more than a million ton
per annum

IBA approved transporter
having ISO 9001:2015
certified for Provision of
Quality management
Systems Services

One of the few logistics
companies having Full
Truck Load (FTL) and Third
Party Logistics services
with experience of more
than 3 decades of dealing
with multiple industries

Provides industry- focused
solutions, integrated with
leading-edge technology
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Orissa Bengal

OUR PHILOSOPHY
<> Vision

To build a trustworthy and advanced transportation network by ensuring
cost-effective & best-fit business solution, that can add value to the lives
of folks and ultimately increasing value for our Stakeholders and
Connecting people at large, businesses and communities to a better
future through quality services in transportation and logistics.

L
/ [ ] [ ]
Mission
Our mission is to provide the necessary financial substance to sustain the
Company and its employees and to meet our customers’' requirements
through high quality service, cost control and the development of our
human capital. The Company look forward to make efforts on continuing
to be as the preferred logistics Company with quality services and

innovation to create sustainable growth for business and society by
focusing to the key elements:

v' Committed towards zero defective, on-time delivery.

v Implement up-to-the-minute cost-effective logistics solutions from
time to time.

v Bring out best in the sector and impact the Indian Transportation
Industry positively.

v' Assist flexibility and receptiveness to dynamic customer needs.

v' Emerge as a substantial platform to bring impetus in the
transport segment.

v Be areliable business house that is working
consistently towards society & environment,

adhering to safety and health of people.

5 {..‘f‘{.:-}-}' i = '



1995

2000

Incorporati
on of
Orissa
Bengal
Carrier
Limited

Started
with Own
10 Fleets

Registered
with Indian
Bank

Association
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2000

2005

®* Owned
more than
25 + Fleets

® Increased
Presence
through 10
branches
to cater
servicein
east region

2005

2010

Increased its

reach to steel
manufacturers

Increased

Presence in 20

branches

Crossed

turnover of Rs.

50 crore

Owned 50 +
fleets

Convertedinto a

Public Ltd
Company on
Nov 05, 2009

ountney So Fan

Owned 75
+ Fleet

Started
catering to
Aluminum
segment

Crossed
turnover of
Rs. 100
crore

Won a tender
of approx. Rs.
100 crore and
also received
the LOI for the
tender for
transportation
of materials of

approximately 3

lakh tones of
Jindal Stainless
Ltd. within a
period of 2
years starting

from O1January

2022 to 31
December
2023.

Increased PAN ®* Servinga
India Presence broad range
through 50+ of sectors
branches including the
) Iron &Steel,
Entered into coal, cement,
FMCG Oil & Gas,
Segment petrochemica
) Is, paper,
Raised ~ 17 cr marble, tiles,
through BSE infra
SME IPO
* OwnTi2
Crossed more Fleets
than 100
Fleets
B 4 D20




Remarkable Increase In Fleets Due To Expansion In Various Locations As
Per Services And Clients Requirements.
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ASSET LIGHTMODEL

Portfolio Expansion Improved Return Profile

Partnership

Being asset light allows Allows the balance sheet
to be light; less capital

expenditure required;
Allows working capital
efficiency and allows

The Company follows
partnership based the company to increase

approach. This enables our services and
the Company to leverage  solutions. Thus allow the
the partners strengths ~ Company to increase the

and fleet without valet share from the generating superior
increasing its own asset customer returns
base
- CHERD -



STRATEGICALLY
LOCATED

Logistics

NH-343
Towards Madhya Pradesh

NH-130

# International Airport
= MNational Highways
® Capital

ﬁ Inland Container Depots

Headquartered in Raipur Chhattisgarh, which
contributes approx. 30.00% to India’s
steel/sponge iron production, 15.00% in India's
cement production.

Located in Central India, Chhattisgarh shares its
border with seven states and has market access
to about 520 Mn people across these states.

There are large number of steel and cement
industry in our belt providing us a benefit to
easily cater them the services they need to
transport goods to and fro Pan India.

" Gg&m} " — ™



Market Size:

v" The Ministry of Commerce & Industry,
estimates that presently the country
spends about 14% of its GDP on
logistics which is much higher than
Japan (11%) and the USA (9-10%).
Indian logistics market is expected to
reach about $255 billion in 2022,
growing at a CAGR of 10.5%

v" The Prime Minister has announced
around X100 crore for the ‘Gati Shakti’
master plan to accelerate
development of transportation and
logistics infrastructure in the country.

v' According to the reports published by
Statistic Research Department:

a)The market value of warehousing by
3PL (Third Party Logistics) in India is
estimated to reach almost $6 billion in the
fiscal year 2025, from $2.1 billion in the
fiscal year 2018.

b)The market value of transportation by
3PL is estimated to reach almost $12
billion in the fiscal year 2025, from $3.5
billion in the fiscal year 2018

3

Orizsa Bengal

MARRET SIZE AND

Growth Factor:

Improving infrastructure nationwide

Opportunities in emerging markets
and channel alliances

Urbanization

Faster adoption of newer
technologies and digitalization

Increased consumer preference for
the reduced delivery time
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SWOT

Centralized Data Centre

Business Friendly Software ‘Lozics’
Established Marketing Setup.
Quality of Services.

Strategic Location.

Vast area of Operation.

Stronger relations with associated
fleet owners

Moving towards goal of zero debt
Rich and Diversified Customer Base

STRENGTH £ o 2
1Y

THREAT

= Poor infrastructure due to bad
condition of roads, multiple
checkpoints and congestion.

» Multiple State and Center Taxes
lead to considerable loss of time
in transit of goods.

“

Labor Intensive industry and thus
for improved services they need to
be people- centric

Fuel cost, delay in delivery can
result in operational inefficiency.

OPPORTUNITY

Infrastructure development initiatives
like Sagarmala, Bharatmala,
Dedicated Freight Corridors (DFCs)
Regulatory and process related
reforms like paperless EXIM trade
process through E-Sanchit, faceless
assessment through Turant Customs
have

contributed to increasing the
efficiency of the logistics sector
Investment of more than INR 100 lakh
Crore on infrastructure over the next
five years through ‘Gati- Shakti’
program by Government.

10
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BUILDING ON OUR STRENGTHS

CUSTOMIZATION 3

Custom built

solutions that assists

FLEET TRACKING
Tracking of the fleet to
ensure operational
efficiency

ADVANCE FLEET
Equipped by an
advanced fleet to

h
- e assist client need
PAN INDIA 5 TIMELY QELIVERY
Offer local, regional 1 Assures timely
as well as national delivery of the bulk
shipoment 6 freights

EASE OF WORK FOR OUR DRIVERS

Provide comfortable equipment

Effective training

Direct communication channels with

senior management

v' Competitive incentives based on
distance travelled, fuel efficiencies and
timely delivery and / or route schedules.

v' Receive awards for providing superior

service and developing satisfactory

safety records

ANRNEN

R
11
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Orizsa Bengal

FUTURE STRATEGY

Diversification and , d
Technological
Advancement i%

New
Geographies

Expanding Team

o ©

Strengthening Relationship

To increase the marketing team Third party Logistics

to get more valet share from
existing customer

4 Development of software
intending to make an
To scout for new business online platform to get more
than 10,000 commercial
transport vehicles

To increase partners and
strength the relationship with ?
existing partners to ensure
timely last mile delivery

To increase the network
branches from 40+ to 100+ in
18 to 24 month

12
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Vehicle
Deployment by
Reques’F for Costing Issue of Branch . '
Quotation Derivation Purchase Operational Team Exit of Vehicle
(RFQ) from and Biddin Orders as per the for Destination
Parties 9 from Party requirement along
with the
Supporting
T Documents T
_— 1 _——m—my 1 _
q Trackintg ‘:f Exit of Vehicle Checking of 5
ocumentation for SOPs for . roper
validity through Destination Safety Norms \;iglfsai?:]g Stacking
e- way bill Supervisors by on field and Tying
portal I I Supervisors I [
e fr— fr——
Reporting at
En-route Customer . )
allied Destination ] Exit of Vehicle
support to with Valid Unloac.:llng of Ensuring Safe with proper
Fleet Documents & Vehicles Delivery of acknowledge -
Drivers Safe Material as Material ment
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; ol A 50 gl

13



C3

Orizsa Bengal

HOW DO

Exit of Vehicle
with proper
acknowledge--
ment

—_ _ — ey —
Dispatch of material . Unloadin Dispatch of
to various locations Phy;lcal and propegr material from
as per received checking of Collection and tacki f Client’s Location to
orders by proper the quality Verification of SEdine) @ Local Warehouse
loading and standards Doc T material at owned by OBCL as
covering the same OBCL per the consigner
by tarpaulins I I Warehouse requirement
I J J S J
————— fr— e
. En-route
Issue of proper . Proper Exit of )
. Vehicle Entr : tracking of
documents in d Loadi M Stacking and Vehicle for vehic?e
Rl 2o oasing Tvi Destination
co-ordin ying through GPS
with clients
e —_— —_— —_— —
Rgportlng at Tracking of
Destil:ms;cgg?werith En-route allied documentati
Ensuring Safe Unloadin : support to on validity
: 9 Valid Documents .
Delivery of of Vehicles - Fleet Drivers through e-
; and Safe Material .
Material way bill portal
I as Loaded I
—
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OUR SUCCESSFUL

Transportation of finished goods for
Vedanta Limited, from Jharsuguda to
various locations

Transportation of Coal from Talcher
Mines to Vedanta Limited, Jharsuguda

Transportation of finished goods for
Jindal Stainless Limited from Jajpur to
various locations

Transportation of material for Jayaswal
Neco Limited from Raipur to various
locations

Transportation of material from APL
Apollo Tubes Limited to various
locations

Execution of operational orders of Jindal
Steel and Power Limited from various
plants to various locations (Both inbound

Transportation of material from
Visakhapatnam Port and Gangavaram
Port to various Eastern locations and

Raipur

Transportation of material from JK Paper
Limited Rayagada to various locations in
North and South India

Transportation of material of Reliance
Industries Limited from Baroda to PAN

India locations.

Execution of orders in various cement plants viz. Shree Cement Limited, ACC Limited,
Nuvoco Vistas Corp. Ltd, Nu Vista Limited, Ambuja Cements Limited , Ultratech
Cement Limited , Dalmia Cement Bharat Limited , JK Lakshmi Cement Limited and

their supply to various locations

.1’

LW
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COMPANY

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MR. GOPAL KUMAR AGRAWALLA
(DIN: 07941122)
Chairman and Non-Executive Director

MR. RAVI AGRAWAL
(DIN: 01392652)
Managing Director

MR. MANOJ KUMAR AGRAWAL
(DIN: 01590282)
Wholetime Director

MRS. SHAKUNTALA DEVI AGRAWAL

(DIN: 01540586)
Non- Executive and Woman Director

MR. ASHISH DAKALIA

(DIN: 09201624)
Independent Director

MR. SOURABH AGRAWAL

(DIN: 09201283)
Independent Director

STATUTORY AUDITOR

M/s. AGRAWAL & PANSARI
Chartered Accountants

2nd Floor, M.1.G-29, Indravati Colony,
Raja Talab Ward, Off. Canal Linking
Road, Raipur (C.G.)

Telephone Number- +91 9981502030
Email- pansarica86@gmail.com
Firm Registration No.: 003350C

COMPANY SECRETARY &
COMPLIANCE OFFICER

MS. MUSKAAN GUPTA

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO)

MR. AKSHAY AGRAWAL

CONSULTING COMPANY SECRETARY &
SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

M/s. ANIL AGRAWAL & ASSOCIATES

Office No. 4071-73, 4th Floor, Currency Tower
Near Ram Mandir, VIP Chowk

Raipur (C.G)- 492001

Telephone Number- +91 7898986867,
9575111112

Email-agrawal4all@gmail.com

=
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T

BANKERS

HDFC BANK LTD
Ground floor, Khasra No 538 9 539 1, Ward no 34 Pandri

Raipur Chhattisgarh 492004
Telephone Number : +91-9303335837
Email: rahul.asrani@hdfcbank.com
Website: www.hdfcbank.com

AXIS BANK LTD
Loan Centre, Pandri Raipur — Chhattisgarh

Telephone Number: +91-0771-4090323
Email: loans@axisbank.com
Website: www.axisbank.com

REGISTERED OFFICE OF COMPANY, CIN,
EMAIL ID & WEBSITE

ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LTD

Jiwan Bima Marg, Pandri, Raipur (C.G)-492001
CIN: L63090CT1994PLC008732

Telephone Number-0771-2281319

Email- raipur@obclimited.com
Website:-www.obclimited.com

CORPORATE OFFICE OF COMPANY

ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LTD
A-1, 3rd Floor C.G. Elite complex, Opposite Mandi Gate,
Vidhan Sabha Road, Pandri, Raipur- 492001

REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

BIGSHARE SERVICES PVT. LTD.

S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park, Next to Ahura
Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai,
Maharashtra, 400093,

Telephone Number : +91-22-6263 8200

Fax: +91-22-6263 8299

E-mail: ipo@bigshareonline.com

Website: www.bigshareonline.com

LISTING

BSE LIMITED (BSE)
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street

Mumbai - 400001

Telephone Number : +91-22-2272 8391
Fax Number: +91-22-22721919

E-mail: admissions@bsebti.com
Website: www.bseindia.com

National Stock Exchange of India Limited [NSE)
Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051

Telephone Number : +91-22-6641 8100

Fax Number: 022-26598120

E-mail: secretarialdept@nse.co.in

Website: www.nseindia.com

-
=
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MANAGEMENT

BRIEF PROFILE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Mr. Gopal Kumar Agrawalla
Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Mr. Gopal Kumar Agrawalla is a Chartered
Accountant having experience of more
than 30 years.His area of expertise are
Income tax litigations, Audit, Bank Audits,
Compliances & Advisory.

He has structured various businesses and
guided many promoters from inception
of their business to expansion. He serves
his client efficiently in all complex
scenarios. Logistics, Agriculture, lron &
Steel and BFSI are some of the industries
where he has devoted maximum of his
time

Mr. Manoj Kumar Agrawal
Wholetime Director

Mr. Manoj Kumar Agrawal is the
Promoter and Executive Director of the
Company. He has an experience of
more than 20 years in transport and
logistics industry. He has been
instrumental in the growth and
strategy of our business. He currently
looks after the operations of Western
Region of India operating from Nagpur
Branch. He is an expert in human
resources and human relations. He has
been on the board since April 7,1997.

Mr. Ravi Agrawal
Managing Director

Mr. Ravi Agrawal is Master of Business
administration from Australia. He looks after
the overall business activities and plays a vital
role in business planning and financial
planning for the Company. He is in the Board
since July 1, 2018.

Mr. Ravi Agrawal also devotes his time on
frequently visiting the Company’'s campuses
and interacts with the staffs at all levels. He
promotes the employees at all levels to
increase the energy in the organization and he
believes that the employees and stakeholders
are the heart of the successes and potential of
the Company. He plays a very vital role in
handling the negotiations with bankers,
employees, our customers, dealers, suppliers
and other business associates for their support
and cooperation. Mr. Ravi Agrawal never stops
in making efforts to take the Company
towards a promising future.

Mrs. Shakuntala Devi Agrawal
Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Shakuntala Devi Agrawal is the
Non-Executive Director and one of the
promoters of the Company. She has
been Director of our Company since
incorporation

18
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MANAGEMENT

BRIEF PROFILE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Mr. Ashish Dakalia
Independent Director

Mr. Ashish Dakalia
Company Secretary.
He is a Member of the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) since
2010 and is also a Commerce and Law
Graduate and he also has a Post
Graduate Degree in Law.
He is the former Chairman of Raipur
Chapter of ICSI and currently he is a
member of PDC Committee of Western
India Regional Council of ICSI
He has been in the field of Secretarial and
Compliance since last 12 years and he also
brings his expertise in the area of Legal
and Compliance to the Board of the
Company.

is a Wholetime

- s

S >

Mr. Akshay Agrawal
Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Akshay Agrawal is a Business
Management Graduate from Middlesex
University, London. He is serving as a

Chief Financial Officer since Tst
December, 2017.He possesses first-rate
operational planning and

organizational abilities, coupled with
good communication skills and
knowledge in all aspects of operations
business management, Accounts &
Finance. He is focused on delivering an
exceptional level of service and value
with a proven successful track record
of achievements by adopting attention
to detail, innovation and quality.

Mr. Sourabh Agrawal
Independent Director

Mr. Sourabh Agrawal is a Practising Chartered
Accountant. He is a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India since 2019 and
he is also a Commerce Graduate.

Currently he is practicing as a Chartered
Accountant and is successfully managing the
Audit & Accounts of more than 50 Companies.
He brings his vast knowledge and expertise in
the area of Audit, Accounts and Finance to the
Board of the Company.

Ms. Muskaan Gupta
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Ms. Muskaan Gupta is an Associate Member of
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
since August 2019. She is also a Bachelor of
Commerce (Honours) from Delhi University
and an LLB from the University of Mumbai. Ms.
Muskaan Gupta is an alumni of the Secretarial
and Corporate Compliance Dept. of the
National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(NSE).

She specializes in the compliances related to
the Companies Act, Secretarial Standards and
the SEBI Regulations as applicable to the
Company. She handles the Secretarial
Compliances and filings of the Company and
assists the Board of Directors for Better
Corporate Governance.
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Chattiman’s

Dear Stakeholders,

It gives me immense pleasure to share with you our Company's performance
highlights during the Financial Year 2021-22. Just like its preceding one, the year that
went by also proved to be quite a roller-coaster for global trade, the economy and the

logistics sector too.

Management Team and all the employees
of the Company, have given their all and
more to deliver on customers’ expectations
and help us achieve our organizational
objectives. In addition to recognition as a
Great Place to Work, their efforts have
helped us grow in the areas of supply chain,
integrated logistics, leadership and many
more. “Our work in the past 3 decades is
our testimony of hard work and dedication.
While we are proud of what we have
accomplished, it's the future that excites us.
Tomorrow is a world of possibilities and we
are committed to deliver more than
expected, every single time.”

As we look forward to 2023, your Company
assures that what has worked well in the
past will continue to be our practice
towards achieving many more milestones.
Your Company aims to continue to remain
a Provider of Choice, an Employer of Choice
and an Investment of Choice with a key
focus on agility and adaptability.

Going ahead we are confident of robust
growth and a brighter future. We expect to
continue to grow while creating sustainable
value for all our stakeholders. Post-
pandemic, with demand coming back on
track in regions where we operate, we
remain geared to support development in
the industry.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | take
this opportunity to thank everyone at Orissa

Bengal Carrier Ltd. (OBCL) and our
customers for their commitment and
support.

I thank you, the shareholders, for your
continued support and trust reposed in
your Company.

Gopal Kumar Agrawalla
Chairman & Non-Executive Director

20
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Message from the

Dear Stakeholders,

It is my pleasure to write to you as the Managing Director of Orissa Bengal Carrier
Limited and present before you your Company’s Annual Report for the Financial Year
2021-22. | feel privileged to accept the responsibility to lead the Leading Transport

Company in Logistics Sector.

During the year under review, your
Company demonstrated both resilience
and agility and delivered impressive results.
This has only reinforced our faith in the
lasting strength of the strategic building
blocks of your Company, namely brand,
people and culture. The fortitude of our
members and the values ingrained in our
culture have truly come to the force in
these unprecedented times. | firmly believe
that it is only when you're empowered with
freedom and opportunity that you rise
above the task at hand and take complete
ownership to make a difference.

At Orissa Bengal Carrier Ltd (OBCL), our
Stakeholders comes first and we are
focusing on their well being by taking all
possible steps to provide them with
continuous support as may be required.
With our investors, we strive to initiate
dialogue, share regular updates and ensure
the delivery of continuous financial growth
for them, and this has contributed to our
continued success.

We, at OBCL, strongly value all our
stakeholders and community and have
consistently given back to our shareholders.

5
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We conducted a detailed exercise to reach
out to our relevant stakeholders and
understand and address their concerns
effectively. We have integrated our
Sustainability approach with our value
creation process to enhance greater
responsibility and transparency for our
stakeholders while maintaining profitability.

We remain extremely optimistic about the
medium to long-term prospects of the
Company and believe that our building
blocks are firmly in place now. In the last
few years, your Company has taken
concrete actions towards strengthening the
business core around transportation,
controls, and operations. With the expected
economic growth of India in coming years, |
strongly believe that your Company is on
the cusp of a multi-year growth cycle.

In conclusion, | would like to show my
sincerest gratitude to all our stakeholders,
for their faith and continued support in us.

Ravi Agrawal
Managing Director
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KEY HIGHLIGHTS

Engegmental Order Book- FY22
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We see a declining trend indicating that
the Company is financing its operations
more through internally generated funds

rather than debt.
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The ratio reflects how financially
stable a Company is. The decline in
the ratio, over the years indicates

lower Degree of Leverage (Dol) and
consequently, lower risk of investing
in the Company

- D -

24



C3

Orizsa Bengal

CAPITAL

Shareholding Pattern as on 31st
March 2022

Public Shareholders

Promoter and
Promoter Group

31.44%
68.56%

OBCL Share Performace Compared to BSE
Sensex
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O The Authorized Share Capital of your Company is Rs. 24,00,00,000/- comprising of 2,40,00,000 Equity Shares
of Rs.10/- each and the Paid-up Share Capital is Rs. 21,08,27,900/- comprising of 2,10,82,790 Equity Shares of
Rs.10/- each. During the year, the Company has not altered its share capital.

D
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (YEARLY)
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Financial Summany

HIGHLIGHTS FROM STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

Particulars FY22 FY22H1

Total Revenue 3064.46 1491.08 3404.38 1376.40 3903.98 4900.63 3866.90 2139.0 2214.60
Expenses 2958.28 1415.96 3263.22 1307.67 3699.21 4672.80 3691.50 2023.0 2137.50
EBITDA 106.17 75.12 141.16 68.73 204.77 227.80 175.40 116.20 77.40
EBITDAMargin% 4.30% 5.04% 4.15% 4.99% 5.25% 4.65% 4.54% 5.44% 3.50%
Interest 17.38 9.90 22.78 10.02 28.63 26.04 32.80 25.20 23.40
Depreciation 2513 13.19 39.15 19.92 526 5220 46.40 32.60 24.20
Profit BeforeTax 106.18 52.03 79.23 38.79 123.52 149.56 96.10 58.30 29.70
Tax 27.86 13.90 20.75 10.42 30.51 31.74 30.9 15.3 6.2
PAT 78.36 38.13 58.48 28.37 93.01 106.35 65.1 43.0 23.4
PAT Margin% 1.90% 2.56% 1.72% 2.06% 2.38% 2.17% 1.64% 2.0% 1.1%

. —— - Gg‘&m} i —_— ™
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HIGHLIGHTS FROM BALANCE SHEET

Rs. In Million

PARTICULARS FY22 FY21 FY20 FY19 FY18
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 156.80 125.35 161.1 183.7 187.1
ep;%?::);n;?am and 64.50 9519 135.4 160.5 148.8
Capital work-in-progress - 4.61 31 - 12.4
Loans - 25.55 22.6 232 22.7
g)st:ei;non-current financial 5414 ) } } }
Other non current assets 38.16 = = = 3.2
CURRENT ASSETS 852.32 1092.50 970.4 975.2 881.0
Inventories - - = - 4
Trade receivables 614.82 953.42 891.9 904.5 820.6
Cash and cash equivalents 104.33 26.66 19.0 19.5 18.4
Loans 7.41 12.42 59.5 50.6 41.8
Other current assets 125.75 - - 0.4 0.08
TOTAL ASSETS 1,009.12 1,217.85 1,131.5 1,159.0 1,068.1
PARTICULARS | FY22 | FY21 | FY20 | FY19 | FYi8
EQUITY 820.1 741.92 693.9 613.6 349.1
Share Capital 210.83 210.83 210.8 210.8 155.2
Other equity 609.29 531.09 483.1 402.8 193.9
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 13.76 51.60 85.8 17.3 176.3
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 9.97 49.30 82.5 122 169.9
Other non-current financial - - - - -
liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 3.79 2.30 33 5.1 6.4
CURRENT LIABILITIES 175.24 424.33 351.8 427.9 542.6
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 67.19 178.97 136.8 105.1 110.4
Trade payables 90.25 153.81 122.4 2175 325.7
Other current financial liabilities 0.40 - - - -
Provisions 15.22 38.35 343 45.7 541
Other current liabilities 217 53.20 583 59.6 52.4
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,009.12 1,217.85 1,131.5 1,159.0 1,068.1

-GN -
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Management Discussion and

Industry Structure and Developments:

LOGISTICS - GLOBAL VIEW

Global Logistics Industry includes all
activities of the supply chain such as
transportation, customer service, inventory
management, flow of information and order
processing. Other activities of the supply
chain are warehousing, material handling,

purchasing, packaging, information
dissemination and maintenance among
others. The logistics market in terms

of revenue was valued at US$ 8185.46 billion
in 2015 and is expected to reach US$15522.02
billion by 2023, growing at a CAGR of 7.5%
from 2015 to 2024.The market in terms of
volume was valued at 54.69 billion tons in
2015 and is expected to reach 92.10 billion
tons by 2024 growing at a CAGR of 6% from

2016 to 2024, Source https://Isc-
india.com/content/overview_on_logistics_industry

Impact of Covid-19 on Logistics:

Supply chain disruptions have become a
major challenge for the global economy since
the start of the pandemic. Shutdowns of
factories in China in early 2020, lockdowns in
several countries across the world, labor
shortages, robust demand for tradable goods,
disruptions to logistics networks, and capacity
constraints have resulted in big increases in
freight costs and delivery times.

Chart here shows suppliers’ delivery times in
the United States and the European Union
have hit record highs since late 2020 (the data
goes back to 2007). IHS Markit's suppliers’
delivery times index is constructed from
Purchasing Managers Index business surveys
and reflects the extent of supply chain delays.
To calculate the index, purchasing managers
are asked if their suppliers’ delivery times are,
on average, slower, faster, or unchanged
compared to the previous month.

Readings above 50 indicate faster delivery
times, readings at 50 signal no change, and
readings below 50 indicate slower delivery
times compared with those of the prior
month.

The recent sharp drop in the delivery times
index reflects surging demand, widespread
supply constraints, or a combination of
both. During such times, suppliers usually
have greater pricing power, causing a rise in
prices. Moreover, these supply chain delays
can reduce the availability of intermediate
goods which, combined with Ilabor
shortages, can slow down production and
output growth.

Backlogs and bottlenecks: supply chain turmoil
Suppliers’ delivery times in the US and EU have slowed
considerably — a lower index reflects longer delivery times.
(Manufacturing PMI, suppliers’ delivery times)

@ European Union @ United States

2010 2011 2072 2013 204 2005 2006 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Sources: IHS Markit
Note: PMI=Purchasing Managers' Index. Readings above 50 indicate faster delivery times,
readings at 50 signal no change, and readings below 50 indicate slower.
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LOGISTICS OVERVIEW- INDIA

India is
nominal

world's fifth largest economy by
GDP and is one of the fastest-
growing economies globally. Efficient
logistics is the bed rock for a growing
economy like India. The reduction in logistics
cost could be a key enabler in enhancing the
competitiveness of all sectors of the
economy. Improving supply chain
efficiencies and reducing logistics costs are
fundamental to India capitalizing on this
strategic shift and meeting the well-defined
aspiration to become a USD 5 trillion
economy as set by the Hon'ble Prime
Minister.

India's logistics cost is estimated to be about
14 percent of its GDP. For most of the
developing countries the cost is in the same
range. However, the logistics cost is
considerably low for developed countries
and it lies within the range of 8-10 percent.

As India march on the economic
development path, it needs to focus on
addressing issues inhibiting reduction in
logistics cost including sub optimal modal
mix, fragmented regulatory/Institutional
regime, warehousing and packaging losses,
shortage of skilled manpower, sub optimal
fleet size and lack of inter-modal terminals.

Improvement in Logistics is the cornerstone
of the Government’s push towards achieving
Aatmanirbhar Bharat. Various initiatives are
being taken by the Central and State/UT
governments to improve logistics ecosystem
across the Country. Infrastructure
development initiatives like Sagarmala,
Bharatmala, Dedicated Freight Corridors
(DFCs) amongst others are under different
stages of implementation. Besides,
regulatory and process related reforms like
paperless EXIM trade process through E-
Sanchit, faceless assessment through Turant
Customs and introduction of mandatory
electronic toll collection system (FASTag)
have contributed to increasing the efficiency
of the logistics sector.

It has been felt necessary to develop a
comprehensive plan to integrate all the
existing and proposed development
initiatives by way of a National Master Plan
wherein various economic zones will be the
fulcrum of economic development
interconnected  with a network  of
multimodal connectivity infrastructure up to
the last mile. With this vision, Hon'ble Prime
Minister in his Independence Day speech
highlighted that the Government has been
targeting an investment of more than INR
100 Lakh Crore on infrastructure over the
next five years through ‘Gati-Shakti’ program.

Given our federal structure, Centre and
States have to play a complimentary role in
integrated development of the logistics
ecosystem. States have an essential role to
play in bringing down overall logistics costs
by having an enabling policy, regulatory and
institutional mechanism in place for the
logistics sector. Moreover, States can gain
advantage by undertaking measures to
increase logistics efficiency and making the
States’ industry products more competitive
globally, increasing its share in India’s trade

basket. Source: https://commerce.gov.in/wp-
content/uploads/2021/11/LEADS-2021-Report_Final.pdf

Initiatives Undertaken by
Chhattisgarh Government

Chhattisgarh is ranked 1ith in 2021 index
compared to 14th in 2019 index i.e., an
increase of three places. The State has
formulated a dedicated logistics park policy

along with Chhattisgarh Industrial Policy
2019-2024 for facilitating logistics
infrastructure in the State. The policy

includes various incentives for setting up
logistics hubs, warehouse and cold storage
facilities thereby encouraging logistics
infrastructure development in the State.
Reasonableness of Road Freight Rates and
Prices of Terminal Services are low-scoring
aspects of the State’s performance. Industry
interactions have highlighted the presence
of trucking unions and rail connectivity
issues as key challenges faced by the trade.
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A few positive initiatives taken by the State

include providing regulatory clearances
under single window mechanism and
presence of a grievances redressal

mechanism for the sector.
State policy for logistics:

The logistics sector in the State is facilitated by
Chhattisgarh Logistics Park Policy 2018-2023

Institutional mechanism for logistics
implementation:

The State has initiated the institutional setup for
logistics by appointing a nodal officer for logistics.

Investment in logistic infrastructure — facilitation
and incentivization:

Chhattisgarh Logistics Park Policy 2018-2023
provides the enabling policy and regulatory
facilitation for the development of logistics in the
State. The policy grants special financial assistance
for setting up logistics parks.

Source:https://commerce.gov.in/wp-
content/uploads/2021/11/LEADS-2021-Report_Final.pdf

Unified Logistics
Platform (ULIP)

Logistics has been given special focus in the
last few years, and many measures in terms
of hard and soft infrastructure have been
taken to improve the logistics scenario of
India. However, an integrated view of the
Indian logistics value chain is necessary and
a unified system by the interconnection of
the IT systems of various union ministries,
state departments, governing bodies, and
private service providers is required.

Interface

Additionally, for stakeholders to receive
logistics-related services, visibility,
authorizations, and certifications of the
cargo seamlessly, all IT systems need to be
interconnected. Unified Logistics Interface
Platform (ULIP) is designed to enhance
efficiency and reduce the cost of logistics in
India by creating a transparent, one window
platform that can provide real-time
information to all stakeholders. It was also
emphasized that the solution should have
the visibility of multi-modal transport, and
all the existing systems of various ministries,
governing bodies, and private stakeholders
should be integrated with the ULIP system.

There are three key components which are
defining the ULIP platform:

(1) Integration with existing data sources
of ministries:

As authorization, compliance and
clearance are some of the critical
activities of Logistics; the integration with
data points of ministries shall enable a
holistic view and interlink the
handshaking points.

(2) Data exchange with private players:

To enable the private players, logistics
service providers, and industries to utilize
the data available with ULIP and at the
same time share their data
(transportation, dispatch, delivery, etc.)
with ULIP, thereby streamlining the
processes to bring better efficiency
through data exchange.

(3) Unified document reference in the
supply chain:

To enable a single digitized document
reference number for all the
documentation processes in a single

platform.
Source:https://logixtics.nldsl.in/

OUR BUSINESS AND OUTLOOK

Our Company was originally incorporated
on October 18, 1994 as Orissa Bengal Carrier
Private Limited under the provisions of
Companies Act, 1956 with Registrar of
Companies, Madhya Pradesh, Gwalior. Our
Company was converted into a Public
Limited Company on November 05, 2009
and the name of our Company was
changed to “Orissa Bengal Carrier Limited”
vide a fresh Certificate of Incorporation
dated December 09, 2009, issued by the
Registrar of Companies, Madhya Pradesh
and Chhattisgarh, Raipur. The Company
listed its Equity Shares on SME Platform of
BSE Limited in the year 2018. The Company
received its Listing Approval on April 04,
2018. Further the Company has migrated
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the Listing/Trading of Equity Shares of the
Company from SME Platform of BSE
Limited to Main Board of BSE Limited and
National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(NSE) with effect from April 07, 2022. Our
Company is engaged in Transportation &
Logistics Business and has completed more
than 25 years since incorporation.

We are one of the largest logistics Company
headquartered at Raipur, Chhattisgarh,
serving a broad range of industries,
including the steel, coal, aluminum, cement,
petrochemicals, paper, marble, tiles, infra,
textile, FMCG.

The various types of services provided by us
include: Full Truck Load Transport Services,
Parcel and Part Truck Load Services/ less
than Truck Load (LTL). The main business
activity of our Company is Full Truck Load
Transport service wherein we do transport
the consignment by road all over India.

We are one of the IBA approved transporter
having ISO 9001:2015 certification for
provision of Quality Management System
Service. Our registered office is located at
Jiwan Bima Marg, Pandri, Raipur,
Chhattisgarh, India. Pin code - 492001. Our
Corporate Office situated at Al, 3rd Floor
C.GC. Elite complex, Opposite Mandi Gate,
Vidhan Sabha Road, Pandri, Raipur- 492001.

Our Promoter, Late Mr. Ratan Kumar
Agrawal had always played a crucial role in
the Administration & Fleet Management of
our Company and operated from our Head
office. He had experience of around 25 years
in transport and logistics industry. He had
been Director of our Company since
incorporation. Our Company is also
promoted by Mrs. Shakuntala Devi Agrawal,
wife of Late Mr. Ratan Kumar Agrawal. She
joined our Company since incorporation.
Later on Mr. Manoj Kumar Agrawal joined
our Company.

He has an experience of more than 22 years in
transport and logistics industry. He has been
instrumental in the growth and strategy of
our business. He currently looks after the
operation of Western Region of India from our
office at Nagpur. He is an expert in human
resources and human relations. He has been
on the board since April 7, 1997. Recently Mr.
Ravi Agrawal also joined the Company as a
Wholetime Director and is now the Managing
Director of the Company. He is a Master in
International Business and a commerce
graduate Candidate and having more than 12
years experience in the field of Accounts,
Finance & Marketing.

We also provide services by vehicles hired by
us to provide timely and quality services to
our clients. The variety of goods transportation
vehicles in our fleet and vehicles hired by us
also enables us to serve a diverse mix of
consignments. Our management believes
that the operations with market fleet are
more covenants to operate which improve the
efficiency and also reduces the operational
cost of the Company.

We believe that our management team's
experience and their understanding of our
business and industry will enable us to
continue to take advantage of both current
and future market opportunities. Our
experience together with our consistent and
successful track record of timely delivery and
customer  satisfaction provides us a
competitive edge.

32



C3

Orissa Bengal
—— Corrier Limited 22

DETAILS OF OUR BUSINESS

Branch Distribution Network

Our Distribution Network having Forty
branches spread in various parts of India
and providing services across all cities of
India. It enables us to cater to a diverse mix
of customers including corporate, small and
other enterprises, distributors and traders.
Our Registered Office is located in Raipur,
Chhattisgarh. Our large geographic
coverage and operational network enable
us to further integrate our operations,
increase cost efficiencies and increase
freight volumes.

Registered Office: We have our own
premises for our registered Office located at
Jiwan Bima Marg, Pandri, Raipur- 492001,
Chhattisgarh, India.

Corporate Office: Our Corporate Office is
functioning from our premises located at A-
1, 3rd Floor, C.G. Elite Building, Pandri,
Raipur — 492001, Chhattisgarh, India.

Our Business Model

Our Company is maintaining its own fleet
containing 117 commercial vehicles which
includes trucks and trailers. In addition to
this we hire around 5000 vehicles from local
market in the area from where service is to
be provided which ensures timely
arrangement of vehicle at our customer
place. The specification of vehicle depends
on the type of service required by our
customer. Therefore, the mix of our own
fleet and vehicle hired by us for providing
transportation services enables us to
provide effective and exceptional services
to our customer. The fleet operates across
the country ensuring nation-wide services
to our corporate and government
customers.

Our truck load delivery services operate
through a hub-and-spoke model which
enables us to transport goods and provide
our customers access to multiple
destinations for booking and delivery of
goodes.

Our routes of operation for the
transportation of goods connect various
regions in India i.e. western and eastern
regions and also southern and northern
parts of India. We believe that our
differentiated service offerings, large
integrated hub-and-spoke transportation
network, commitment towards prompt and
safe delivery of the goods and time bound
services will enable us to develop our brand
across India.

We work with clients to develop logistics
solutions that meet their requirements. For
transportation services, we typically enter
into time bound service contracts with our
clients, which are renewed on regular basis
as and when required. We offer flexibility in
our contracts as our transportation
contracts are usually customized according
to certain terms, which may vary depending
on whether we quote our prices on the
basis of per truck (dedicated vehicles), per
trip, per tonne, per tonne-per kilometer, per
kilogram, overall project-based
(optimization based, or cost savings based),
cost-plus management fees or per unit
transported, among others.

Competition

The goods transportation industry is
unorganized, competitive and highly
fragmented in India. We believe that the
principal competitive factors include service
quality, reliability, price and the availability
and configuration of vehicles that are able
to comprehensively address varying
requirements of different customer
segments and specific customer needs.
Being IBA Approved, we get an edge over
other unorganized and Non IBA Approved
transporters. We believe that our ability to
compete effectively is primarily dependent
on ensuring consistent service quality and
timely services at competitive prices,
thereby strengthening our brand over the
years.
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In the goods transportation industry, we
compete with a variety of local, regional,
and national goods transportation service
providers of varying sizes and operations

and, to a lesser extent, with railroads
carriers

Business Opportunities &
Strength:

Pan-India surface logistics

services provider

We are a pan-India surface logistics service
provider and we believe that we are one of
the reliable transporters in and across India.
We are an established entity in the
transportation industry in India with over 25
years of operations. We believe that our
dedication towards quality, reliability and
timeliness of services offered compete
effectively with our competitors in the
organized as well as unorganized sector,
thereby strengthening our name over the
years.

Experienced and motivated

management team

Our Promoters are engaged in the business
of Transport and Logistics for more than 25
years which gives us the advantage of
developing our presence, relationship with
our customers, and cordial relationship with
our drivers and other employees. We also
have a dedicated and experienced
management team who are in charge of
operation, quality management and
delivery to each of our customers and
functions well as a team along with the
expertise and vision to expand our business.
We believe that our management team’s
experience and their understanding of our
business and industry will enable us to
continue to take advantage of both current
and future market opportunities.

b
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Our experience together with our
consistent and successful track record of
timely delivery and customer satisfaction
provides us a competitive edge. For details
regarding the education and experience of
our promoters please refer to title "Core
Team" forming part of this Annual Report.

Diversified Customer Base

We serve customers across several
industry sectors viz. Metal, Steel, coal,
aluminum, cement, petrochemicals, paper,
marble, tiles, infra, textile, FMCG etc.

Established Marketing Setup

Marketing is an important function of our
organization. We provide our service
throughout India, based on strength of
relationship with our customers who have
been associated with our Company for a
long period. Our promoters along with the
marketing team plays an important role
for timely and quality delivery of services.
To retain our customers, our marketing
team regularly interact with them and
focus on gaining an insight into the
services and other additional needs of
such customers.

Quality of Services

We adhere to quality standards as per
industry standards; hence we get
repetitive  work order from  our
customers, as we believe we are capable
of meeting their quality standards at
competitive costs, which enables us to
maintain our brand image in the market.

Strategic location

We are headquartered in Chhattisgarh
which contributes approximately 30.00%
to India’s steel/sponge iron production,
15.00% cement in India's production, so
there are large number of steel and
cement industry in our belt providing us a
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benefit to easily cater them the services
they need to transport goods to other
required location.

(Source:https://csidc.in/home2/index.php/en/2015-01-
25-07-22-46/2015-01-25-07-24-09/core-sectors)

Augment our fund-based
capacities in order to scale up
business operation

Our business operations are working capital
intensive. In order to effectively expand our
business arenas/ services and also diversify
the operating routes in various
geographical locations, along with the
existing facilities we need to have access to
a larger amount of liquid funds and
sufficient working capital.

We expect to increase our volumes,
revenues and scale of operations and we
will require substantial working capital for
the same. It is hence our strategy to raise
funds from this issue and augment our fund
based working capital capabilities.

Increase our goods transportation
network

We continue to expand our pan-India
presence for our goods transportation
business. We intend to add a significant
number of goods transportation network in
northern, central and eastern regions of
India as well as increase the depth of our
existing network.

Threats & Risks:

O Changes in Government or
Regulatory Policies.

Changes in Economic Growth.
Changes in Physical Infrastructure.
Changing laws, rules and regulations
and legal uncertainties.

Probability of downgrading of India’s
debt rating.

O 00O
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Risks and concerns .

> Our performance is linked to the
stability of policies and the political
situation in India.

The Central and State Governments serve
multiple roles in the Indian economy,
including as producers, consumers and
regulators, which have significant influence
on the logistics industry and us. The
Government of India has traditionally
exercised, and continues to exercise, a
significant influence over many aspects of
the economy. Our business, and the market
price and liquidity of our Equity Shares, may
be affected by interest rates, changes in
government policy, taxation, social and civil
unrest and other political, economic or
other developments in or affecting India.
Since 1991, successive Indian governments
have pursued policies of economic
liberalization and financial sector reforms.
The current Government has announced its
general intention to continue India’s current
economic and financial sector liberalization
and deregulation policies. However, there
can be no assurance that such policies will
be continued and a significant change in
the government's policies in the future
could affect business and economic
conditions in India and could also adversely
affect our business, prospects, financial
condition and results of operations.

Any political instability in India may
adversely affect the Indian securities
markets in general, which could also

adversely affect the trading price of our
Equity Shares. Any political instability could
delay the reform of the Indian economy and
could have a material adverse effect on the
market for our Equity Shares. There can be
no assurance to the investors that these
liberalization policies will continue under
the newly elected Government. Protests
against privatization could slow down the
pace of liberalization and deregulation.
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> Our business

is dependent on the
Economic Growth in India.

The development of the logistics industry is
parallel to the economic growth of the
country as it comprises of inbound as well
as outbound movement of the agricultural,
manufacturing and service supply chains.
Our performance is thus dependent on the
health of the overall Indian economy. India’s
economic growth is affected by various
factors including domestic consumption
and savings, balance of trade movements
primarily resulting from export demand and
movements in key imports, such as oil and
oil products, and annual rainfall, which
affect agricultural production. In the past,
economic slowdowns have harmed
industries and industrial development in
the country. Any future slow down in the
Indian economy could harm our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

The operations and performance of our
Industry and Company are heavily
dependent on the physical infrastructure.
Any deterioration in the quality of the
same could adversely affect our results of
operations and financial condition.

The quality of the operations of our
Company are linked to the India‘s physical
infrastructure, i.e. road, rail and port
network, electricity grid and
communication systems. Any deterioration
of India’'s physical infrastructure would
harm the national economy, disrupt the
transportation of goods and supplies, and
add costs to doing business in India. These
problems could interrupt our business
operations, which could have an adverse
effect on our results of operations and
financial condition.
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Factors like civil unrest, terrorist attacks,
communal disturbance or natural
calamities can affect our business
performance and financial condition and
would daffect the price of our equity
share.

Factors like civil unrest, terrorist attacks,
communal disturbance or natural
calamities can effect/prevent us from
timely delivery of our consignments and
discharging our obligations towards the
contracts entered with our customers,
thereby affecting our business
performance and financial condition and
profitability. Although we control the
damage by entering into Force Majeure
clause in the contracts with some of our
customers, the risk of loss of revenue due
to these external factors is there.

Factors like war at international borders,
civil unrest, terrorist attacks or communal
disturbance could adversely daffect the
financial markets domestically as well as
globally, affecting the price of our equity
share.

Any major hostilities at international
borders involving India or other
prominent world countries, or other act
of violence, including civil unrest or
similar events that are beyond our
control, could have a material adverse
effect on India’s economy and national as
well as international equity markets.
These may induce high volatility on share
prices and could adversely impact the
price of our equity share.

Changing Ilaws, rules and regulations
and legal uncertainties, including
adverse application of corporate and tax
laws, may adversely affect our business,
financial condition, results of operations
and prospects.
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Our Company is subject to various
regulations and policies. The Government of
India or state governments may introduce
new laws, regulations and policies
applicable to us, our business and industry.
These may require us to obtain additional
approvals and licenses or impose onerous
requirements on our business. These
changes may be unfavorable to us and may
have negative impact on our business and
financial performance.

The Government of India has enacted the
Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 to
lay a framework for a comprehensive
national goods and services tax (“GST")
regime that has combined taxes and levies
by the Central and State Governments into
a unified rate structure. The said legislation
was notified and made effective from July 1,
2017. As per the Reverse Charge Mechanism
for GST supply of GTA Services would be
covered under 100% Reverse Charge
Mechanism for Entity holding the GST
Registration Certificate and the entity
availing this service has to pay the GST on
the service. We cannot assure you that our
cash flows and results of operations will not
be affected by the new tax regime.

The impact of any future changes to Indian
legislation on our business cannot be fully
determined at this time. Additionally, our
business and financial performance could
be adversely affected by unfavorable
changes in or interpretations of existing, or
the promulgation of new laws, rules
taxation policies and regulations applicable
to us and our business. Such unfavorable
changes could decrease demand for our
services and products, increase costs and/or
subject us to additional liabilities. Any such
changes could have an adverse effect on
our business and financial results.

The transition to IndAS and the ICDS in
India is very recent. Although we have
transitioned to IndAS, there is insufficient
clarity on the impact of such transition on
our Company in future financial periods.

The transition to IndAS from GAAP and IFRS
in India is very recent. There is not yet a
significant body of established practice
such as interpretations of the new
accounting standards on which to draw in
forming judgments regarding the new
system’s implementation and application.
As a result, although we have transitioned
to IndAS, there is insufficient clarity on the
impact that such transition will have on us
and our financial reporting policies and
practices. We cannot assure you that there
will not be further changes in the manner in
which we apply our accounting policies or
in the preparation and presentation of our
financial statements in the future. Moreover,
there is increasing competition for the small
number of INdAS experienced accounting
personnel available as more Indian
companies begin to prepare IndAS financial
statements. We may encounter further
difficulties in the ongoing process of
implementing and enhancing our
management information systems under
Ind AS reporting.

> Any probable downgrading of India’s debt

rating by a domestic or international rating
agency could adversely affect our
Company’s share price.

Any probable adverse revisions to India's
credit ratings for domestic and
international debt by domestic or
international rating agencies may adversely
affect the Indian Economy and could have a
material adverse impact on the Indian
securities market including our Equity
Shares.
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> Foreign investors are subject to foreign

investment restrictions under Indian law
that limits our ability to attract foreign
investors, which may adversely impact the
market price of the Equity Shares.

Under the foreign exchange regulations
currently in force in India, transfers of
shares between non-residents and
residents are freely permitted (subject to
certain exceptions) if they comply with the
pricing guidelines and reporting
requirements specified by the RBI. If the
transfer of shares, which are sought to be
transferred, is not in compliance with such
pricing guidelines or reporting
requirements or fall under any of the
exceptions referred to above, then the prior
approval of the RBI will be required.
Additionally, shareholders who seek to
convert the Rupee proceeds from a sale of
shares in India into foreign currency and
repatriate that foreign currency from India
will require no objection/tax clearance
certificate from the income tax authority.
There can be no assurance that any
approval required from the RBI or any other
government agency can be obtained on
any particular terms or at all.

Internal Control Systems and their
adequacy:

There is an adequate internal control
procedures commensurate with the size of
the Company and nature of the business
for inventory, fixed assets and for the sale
of goods or services. The Company has
implemented proper and adequate
systems of internal control to ensure that
all assets are safeguarded and protected
against loss from any authorized use or
disposition and all transactions are
authorized, recorded and reported
correctly. The system ensures appropriate
information flow to facilitate effective
monitoring. The internal audit system also
ensures formation and implementation of
corporate policies for financial, reporting,
accounting and information security.

The Company has constituted Audit
Committee to overlook the internal control
systems and their adequacy. Audit
Committee regularly reviews and gives
recommendations on proper and adequate
internal control systems.

The Company has adopted the policy of
One Company One Software and to comply
that New software namely "lozics" has been
instantly purchased by the Company for
more security of the Company’s financial
transactions. Some of the Key features of
the software is that Except the authorized
person, no one can alter any entry/ amount
once it is inserted in the software. Further
the process of verifying and scrutiny will be
hassle free. Employees are being regularly
trained on the functioning of the new
software. Further, this software is already
being used by more than 100 Companies
having similar logistics business.

Financial performance with respect
to operational performance:

During the Year under review, your
Company has recorded Revenue from
Operation of Rs. 30,644.66 Lacs and Net
Profit after Tax of Rs. 78359 Lacs as
compared to previous year of Rs. 33992.94
Lacs and Rs. 584.34 Lacs respectively. The
percentage of profit before tax on the basis
of revenue from operations for the year
2021-22 is 3.50 as compared to the last year
2.32 which highlights the intention and
focus of the Company on maximization of
profit.

Keeping in mind the situation of Covid-19
pandemic and disturbed transport industry,
the Company is looking forward to get itself
registered with some untouched sectors of
transport industry in order to get the
transport opportunities to improve its
revenue. Further the Company is under the
development of software intending to make
an online platform to get more than 10,000
commercial transport vehicles to get itself
registered with the Company which will
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result into the boost in the operations of
the Company and to be more competent
in the transport industry.

Your directors are in the view that the
Company has signaled good business
after lockdown in the transport industry
in the long run and look forward to
access the path of success in succeeding
financial years and are hopeful for the
bright future prospects. It is also assured
that the Management will leave no efforts
untouched to increase the profitability in
the forth coming years also.

Events occurring after the

balance sheet date.

There are no transactions of material nature
that have occurred after March 31, 2022,
which could have any impact on the
financial performance of the Company for
the FY 2021-22.

Our Employees

We believe that a motivated and
empowered employee base is key to our
operations and business strategy, and have
developed a large pool of skilled and
experienced personnel. As of March 31, 2022,
we have 182 employees, who are based at
different locations across the Country. Our
administrative employees play an
important role in our centralized support
services such as load planning, accounting,
information technology, marketing and
human resource functions. We have
developed a decentralized senior
management structure in order to ensure
timely decision making which is key to our
operations. The recruitment, training and
retention of qualified drivers are essential to
our growth and to meet the service
requirements of our customers.

We also provide our drivers with
comfortable equipment, effective training,
direct communication channels with senior
management, competitive incentives based
on distance travelled, fuel efficiencies and
timely delivery and / or route schedules.
Drivers also receive awards for providing
superior service and developing satisfactory
safety records.

Financial Ratios and Change in
Return on Net Worth:

During the FY 2021-22, there were no
significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or
more as compared to the immediately
previous financial year) in key financial
ratios or change in Return on Net Worth as
compared to the immediately previous
financial year of the Company.

Cautionary Statements:

All statements made in Management and
Discussion Analysis has been made in
good faith. Many unforeseen factors may
come into play and affect the actual
results, which may be different from what
the management envisages in terms of
performance and outlook. Factors such
as economic conditions affecting
demand/supply and priced conditions in
domestic markets in which the Company
operates, and changes in government
regulations, tax laws, other statutes and
other incidental factors, may affect the
final results and performance of the
Company.
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT

To,
The Members,
Orissa Bengal Carrier Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 27thAnnual Report on the business and operations
of the Company for the year ended on March 31, 2022 together with Audited Standalone

Financial Statements and the Report of the Directors and the Auditors thereon.

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, performance
of the Company is as under:

(Rs. in Lacs)

PARTICULARS 31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021
A E from | 2531972 |33904.04
Operation

Other Income 32494 88.90

Total Revenue 30,644.66 | 33,992.94

Gross

Transportation 28,581.39 | 32,128.75
Expenses

Employees 331.09 290.86
Benefits Expense

Finance Cost 173.83 227.84
Depreciation and

Amortization 251.27 391.46
Expenses

Other Expenses 24529 166.72
Profit/ (Loss) | 106179 | 78732
before Tax

Current Tax 266.47 217.45
Deferred Tax 12.16 (9.96)
Earlier year

income tax

Profit/ (Loss) After 783 59 c84.34
Tax

Earnings Per

Equity Share: 27 277

Basic and Diluted
(in Rs.)

2. STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS
AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

During the Year under review, your
Company has recorded Revenue from
Operations of Rs. 30,319.72 Lacs and Net
Profit after Tax of Rs. 78359 Lacs
respectively. The financial result as reflected
in the Statement of Profit & Loss of the
Company is self-explanatory. The Company
has made good progress and will continue
to access the path of success in succeeding
financial years and are hopeful for the
bright future prospects. The performance of
the business of the Company are detailed
out in the Management Discussion and
Analysis Report which forms part of this
Annual Report.

3. FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The ‘Ministry of Corporate Affairs’ has come
out with a circular dated 29 April 2011 which
allows the companies to send documents
including ‘Annual Reports’ and other
intimation by email. The Company is
already having email ID of the members
holding their shares in DEMAT through their
respective depository participants. The said
email ID shall be considered as registered
email ID for the said members unless
informed otherwise to the Company or
Registrar and Transfer Agent.

The members are requested to register
their email IDs with the ‘Registrar and
Transfer Agent’ of the Company if not yet
done.

Full version of Annual Report 2021-22 is also
available for inspection at the Corporate
Office of the Company during working
hours up to the date of ensuing Annual
General Meeting (AGM). It is also available at
the Company s website.
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4. FINANCIAL LIQUIDITY

The Company'’s working capital
management is robust and involves a well-
organised process, which facilitates
continuous monitoring and control over

receivables, payables and other parameters.

5. DIVIDEND:

In view of growth plans, your directors do
not recommend any dividend for the

Financial Year under review.

6. CHANGES [IN NATURE OF
BUSINESS

There is no change in the nature of
business, as carried on by the Company

during the Financial Year under review.
7. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has not transferred any
amount to reserves during the Financial
Year under review.

8. SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorized Share Capital of your
Company is Rs. 24,00,00,000/- comprising
of 2,40,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
and the Paid-up Share Capital is Rs.
21,08,27,900/- comprising of 2,10,82,790
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.

During the year, the Company has not
altered its share capital. During FY 2021-22,
there was no change in the capital
structure.

9. MIGRATION TO THE MAIN
BOARD OF BSE AND NSE.

The Board has pleasure to announce that
your Company has migrated  the
Listing/Trading of its Equity Shares from
SME Platform of BSE Limited to Main Board
of BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (NSE) with effect
from April 07, 2022.

10. SUBSIDARIES, JOINT VENTURES
AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

Your Company does not have any
Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate

Company.

1. EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL
RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section
134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Act read
with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, the draft of
the Annual Return of the Company for the
Financial Year March 31, 2022 is uploaded on
the website of the Company and can be
accessed at
https://www.obclimited.com/other-

information.php.

12. BOARD AND COMMITTEE
MEETINGS

The Board met thirteen (13) times during the
year on April 24, 2021; May 07, 2021; May 18,
2021; July 19, 2021; August 02, 2021; August
30, 2021; September 24, 2021; November 01,
2021; November 14, 2021, December 10, 2021,
February 21, 2022; February 28, 2022 and
March 31, 2022.

During the year under review, the total
duration of the Board meetings i.e.
approximate aggregate number of hours
was about 20 hours. The maximum gap
between any two meetings was less than
one hundred and twenty days.

For further details of the meetings of the
Board, please refer to the Corporate
Governance Report, which forms part of this
Annual Report. Details of the composition of
Committees of the Board, meetings held,
attendance of the Directors at such
Meetings and other relevant details are
given in the Corporate Governance Report
forming part of this Annual Report.

42



C3

Orissa Bengal
—— Corrier Limited 22

Further, separate meeting of the
Independent Directors’ was duly convened
and held on 31.03.2022 to discuss:

a) Review & Evaluation of the performance of
Non-Independent Directors and the Board of
Directors as a whole.

b) Review of the performance of the
Chairperson, Executive and Non-Executive
Directors of the Company.

c) Assessment of the quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between
the Management and the Board.

13. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
STATEMENT

To the best of our knowledge and belief and
according to the information and
explanations obtained by the directors, your
Directors make the following statement in
terms of Section 134 of the Act:

i. in the preparation of the annual
accounts, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any;

ii. the accounting policies have been
selected and applied consistently and
judgement and estimates have been
made that are reasonable and prudent
so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as on
March 31, 2022, and of the profit of the
Company for the year ended on that
date.

1. that proper and sufficient care has been
taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with

the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and

detecting fraud and other irregularities;
that the annual accounts have been
prepared on a going concern basis;

V. that proper internal financial controls
laid down by the Directors were
followed by the Company and such
internal financial controls  are
adequate and were operating
effectively; and

that proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws have been devised
and such systems were adequate and
were operating effectively.

VL.

14. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS
OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH
RELATED PARTIES

All contracts/arrangements/transactions
entered into during FY 2021-22 with related
parties were on an arm'’s length basis and in
the ordinary course of business and were in
compliance with the applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015.

There are no materially significant Related
Party Transactions entered into with the
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or
other designated persons which may have a
potential conflict with the interest of OBCL
at large. All Related Party Transactions are
placed before the Audit Committee for its
approval. The transactions with related
parties are also reviewed by the Board.

The Company has adopted a Policy on
Related Party Transactions as approved by
the Board, which is uploaded on the
Company's website

https://www.obclimited.com/policies.php

The particulars of contracts or
arrangements with related parties are given
in Form AOC-2 and are attached herewith
as Annexure -1to this Report.
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15. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF 16. AUDITORS
ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL , ,
FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH I Statutory Auditors
REFERENCE TO THE M/s. Agrawal & Pansari, Chartered

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

There is a high degree of automation in
most of the key areas of operations and
processes. Also, all the processes are well

defined which, inter alia, includes the
financial controls in the form of maker
checker, strict adherence to financial

delegation given by the Board at various
levels, systemic controls, information
security controls as well as role based
access controls, etc. Further, these controls
are periodically reviewed for change
management in situations like the
introduction of new processes/change in
processes, change in the systems, change in
personnel handling the activities, etc.

Besides, these controls are independently
reviewed by the internal auditors
/operations reviewers of the Company
including conducting the routine internal
audit/ operations review by them whereby
the audit activity embeds validation/review
of the controls to establish their adequacy
and effectiveness.

The Internal Auditors, Statutory Auditors
and the Secretarial Auditors review the
compliances by the Company with respect
to various laws, rules, regulations, etc. as
applicable to it. The observations, if any, of
the internal audit, statutory audit and the
secretarial audit are also presented to the
Audit Committee as and when they occur.
The Statutory Auditors have conducted a

review of internal financial controls
including entity level controls, general
controls, risk control and process walk

through on a sample basis as per the
guidelines issued by the ICAI.

Accountants, Raipur were appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company at the
Annual General Meeting held on, 09th July,
2018 to hold office until conclusion of
Annual General Meeting to be held in the
year 2023.

In continuation of its term of appointment,
the said Audit Firm conducted the
Statutory Audit of the Company for the

financial year ended March 31, 2022.

Section 139 of the Act has been amended
vide the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 07t
May, 2018 and has done away with the
requirement of seeking ratification of
Members for appointment of Auditors at
every Annual General Meeting.

Accordingly, no resolution is being
proposed for ratification of appointment of
Statutory Auditors at the ensuing AGM.
Under Section 139 and 141 of the Act and
Rules framed there under, M/s. Agrawal &
Pansari confirmed that they are not
disqualified from continuing as Statutory
Auditors of the Company and furnished a
valid certificate issued by the Peer Review
Board of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

ii. Internal Auditors:

M/s. G. Kumar & Company, Chartered
Accountants, Raipur, (FRN 0322108E) the
Internal Auditors of the Company had
resigned with effect from December 28,
2021. M/s. Agrawal Mittal & Associates,
Chartered Accountants, Raipur, (FRN
028560C) were appointed as the Internal
Auditors of the Company for the FY 2021-22
and onwards.
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(iii) Secretarial Auditors

The Board has appointed M/s. Anil Agrawal
& Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries, Raipur to conduct Secretarial
Audit of the Company for the Financial
Year ended March 31, 2022 in compliance
with the provisions of Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Board has also appointed M/s. Anil
Agrawal & Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries, to Scrutinize the voting
process in the AGM and provide a fair
report accordingly. The Scrutinizer shall,
after the conclusion of voting at the AGM,
first count the votes cast during the AGM
and, thereafter, unblock the votes cast
through remote e-Voting and shall make,
not later than 48 hours from the
conclusion of the AGM, a Consolidated
Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast
in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman
or a person authorized by him in writing,
who shall countersign the same and
declare the result of the voting forthwith.

17. AUDITORS' REPORT
(i) Statutory Audit Report:

The report of the Statutory Auditors forms
part of the financial statements. The
Statutory Auditors’ in their Report to the
members, have given one qualified opinion
and the response of your Directors with
respect to the qualified opinion are as
follows:-

Qualification 1:-

As described in Note 40 of the financial
statements, a fraud in previous financial
year i.e. 2020-21 of Rs. 5,41,43,316/- was
detected which is shown as Non-current
financial assets in Financial Statements.

Impact of above amount of Rs. 5,41,43,316/-
has resulted in over-statement of Reserve &
Surplus and also in Non-current assets with
the same amount.

We were of an opinion that appropriate
provision should be made in the Profit &
Loss Account.

Management Reply:-

No provision for this amount is made in
books of accounts, as the management is
quite certain about its recovery from the
movable/immovable property of the alleged
culprits to the fraud. An F.ILR vide SI. No.
0215 dated 27/04/2021 at Jharsugada P.S.
was lodged against the branch head
Mr. Chhena Ram Saini and others.

(ii) Internal Audit Report:

The Internal Auditors’ M/s. Agrawal Mittal &
Associates, Chartered Accountants, have
issued a clean Internal Audit Report for the
quarter and year ended March 31, 2022, as
per the requirements of the Companies Act,
2013 and Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(iii) Secretarial Audit Report:

The Secretarial Auditors’ M/s. Anil Agrawal &
Associates, Company Secretaries, have
issued a clean Secretarial Audit Report in
the Form No. MR-3 for the FY 2021-22 as per
the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013
and SEBI Regulations.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the FY 2021-
22 forms part of the Director's Report as
Annexure-2.
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18. EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS
ON THE QUALIFICATION,
RESERVATION OR ADVERSE
REMARK OR DISCLAIMER MADE
BY THE AUDITOR IN HIS
REPORT

The Statutory Auditors’ in their Report to
the members, have given one qualified
opinion and the response of your Directors
with respect to the qualified opinion are as
follows:-

Qualification 1:-

As described in Note 40 of the financial
statements, a fraud in previous financial
year i.e. 2020-21 of Rs. 5,41,43,316/- was
detected which is shown as Non-current
financial assets in Financial Statements.
Impact of above amount of Rs. 5,41,43,316/-
has resulted in over-statement of Reserve &
Surplus and also in Non-current assets with
the same amount.

Explanation/Comments of Directors:-

No provision for this amount is made in
books of accounts, as the management is
quite certain about its recovery from the
movable/immovable property of the alleged
culprits to the fraud. An F.ILR vide SI. No.
0215 dated 27/04/2021 at Jharsugada P.S.
was lodged against the branch head Mr.
Chhena Ram Saini and others.

19. PARTICULARS LOANS,
GUARANTEES OR
INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER
SECTION 186 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

OF

During the year under review, the Company
has not granted any loan or provided any
guarantee or made any investment as
specified in Section 186 (2) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Hence no approval

from the shareholders in this regard was
required.

20. PREVENTION, PROHIBITION &
REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL
HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE

The Company has accepted zero tolerance
policy on sexual harassment. In that line the
Board takes anti sexual harassment
initiatives by way of Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at the
Workplace, in line with the provisions of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013 and the Rules made thereunder and
they are responsible to inquire into
complaints (if any) of sexual harassment
and take appropriate action. Their aim is to
provide protection to employees at the
workplace and prevent and redress
complaints of sexual harassment and for
matters connected or incidental thereto,
with the objective of providing a safe
working environment, where employees
feel secure.

The disclosures required to be given under
the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013 during the Financial
Year 2021-22 are given below:

Number of complaints of | NIL

sexual harassment

received in the year

Number of complaints Not

disposed off during the applicable

year

Number of cases pending | Not

for more than 90 days applicable

Number of workshops or | Awareness

awareness programs program was

against sexual conducted

harassment carried out for all
employees

Nature of action taken by | Not

the employer applicable
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OBCL has complied with provisions relating
to the constitution of the Internal
Complaints Committee under the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013.

OBCL has a Policy on Prevention of Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace which
is available in the website of the Company
in the following link:
https://www.obclimited.com/policies.php

21. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Company has maintained good
industrial relations on all fronts. Your
directors wish to place on record their
appreciation for the honest and efficient
services rendered by the employees of the
Company.

22. DIRECTORS &
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

KEY

The Company has a professional Board with
right mix of knowledge, skills and expertise
with an optimum combination of Executive,
Non-executive and Independent Directors
including one Woman Director as per the
requirement of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
and the Companies Act, 2013. The Board
provides strategic guidance and direction
to the Company in achieving its business
objectives and protecting the interest of the
stakeholders.

Currently, the Board consists of Mr. Gopal
Kumar Agrawalla, Chairman and Non-
Executive Director; Mr. Ravi Agrawal,
Managing Director; Mr. Manoj Kumar
Agrawal, Wholetime Director;
Mrs. Shakuntala Devi Agrawal, Non-
executive and Woman Director; Mr. Ashish
Dakalia, Independent Director and Mr.
Sourabh Agrawal, Independent Director.

Mr. Ashish Dakalia and Mr. Sourabh Agrawal
were appointed as the Independent
Directors of the Company w.e.f. October 01,
2021. Further, Mr. Sahil Batra and Mr. Raj
Kumar Jain, the Independent Directors of
the Company resigned from their
directorships w.e.f. October 23, 2021.

Mr. Gopal Kumar Agrawalla was appointed
as a Non-Executive Director and Chairman
of the Company by the Nomination &
Remuneration = Committee, Board of
Directors and the Shareholders of the
Company in their respective meetings held
on February 28, 2022, February 28, 2022 and
May 28, 2022.

Mr. Manoj Kumar Agrawal & Mr. Ravi
Agrawal continued as Wholetime Directors
of the Company during the year ended
March 31, 2022. Mr. Ravi Agrawal was
appointed as the Managing Director of the
Company with effect from June 01, 2022 as
per the approval of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee, the Board and
the Shareholders in their respective
meeting held on April 28, 2022; April 28,
2022 and May 28, 2022.

Mrs. Shakuntala Devi Agrawal continued as
Non-Executive Director of the Company. As
per Section 149(1) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 3 of The Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014, Mrs. Shakuntala Devi
Agrawal is also the Woman Director of the
Company.

Mr. Aakash Kumar Sahu resigned from the
post of Company Secretary and Compliance
Officer of the Company w.e.f. November 14,
2021. Ms. Muskaan Gupta, a qualified
Company Secretary was appointed as the
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
of the Company w.e.f. November 14, 2021.
Mr. Akshay Agrawal continued as Chief
Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company.

During the FY 2021-22, there was no other

change in the Board of Directors/Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company.
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RE-APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR:

Pursuant to Section 149, 152 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, one-third of such of the Directors as
are liable to retire by rotation, shall retire
every year and, if eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at every AGM.

Mrs. Shakuntala Devi Agrawal retires by
rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and is eligible for re-appointment.
Details of the proposal for her
re-appointment is mentioned in the
Explanatory Statement of the Notice of the
27th Annual General Meeting of the
Company pursuant to Section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The re-appointment of
the Director is appropriate and in the best
interest of the Company. The Board
recommends her re-appointment to the
Shareholders.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Details of the composition of Committees of
the Board, meetings held, attendance of the
Directors at such Meetings and other
relevant details are given in the Corporate
Governance Report forming part of this
Report.

DIRECTOR'S E-KYC

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has
vide amendment to the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014, mandated KYC of all
the Directors through the e-Form DIR-3
KYC. All Directors of OBCL have complied
with the aforesaid requirement.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 164
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Company has received the disclosures
in the Form DIR-8 required under Section
164 of the Companies Act, 2013and has
noted that none of the directors have
incurred any of the disqualifications on

account of non-compliance with any of the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.
Further, there were no acts of
omission/commission by the Company
itself, leading to the disqualification of its
directors.

23.DECLARATION
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors have given
declaration of independence as required
under the applicable laws as well as
confirmation that he is not aware of any
circumstance or situation, which exist or
may be reasonably anticipated, that could
impair or impact his ability to discharge his
duties with an objective independent
judgement and without any external
influence and that he is independent of
management and a confirmation that he
has read and understood the Company’s
code of conduct, as applicable to the Board
of Directors of the Company.

BY

The enrolment of all Independent Directors
in the Databank being maintained by the
Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs to
qualify as an Independent Director has
been completed and they have all furnished
the declaration affirming their compliance
with the relevant provisions of Companies
(Appointment & Qualification of Directors )
Rules along with the Declaration of
Independence given as per Section 149(6) of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Based on the confirmation/declaration
received from the independent directors,
that he was not aware of any circumstances
that are contrary to the declarations
submitted by him, the Board acknowledged
the veracity of such confirmation and takes
the same on record. In the opinion of the
Board, all the aforesaid Independent
Directors possess the requisite expertise
and experience (including the proficiency)
and they hold the highest standards of
integrity.
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24. COMPANY'’S POLICY ON
DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION INCLUDING
CRITERIA° FOR DETERMINING
QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIVE
ATTRIBUTES & INDEPENDENCE
OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to requirements of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Company has framed policy
on the appointment of Directors and Senior
Management Personnel i.e. Nomination
Policy and also policy on Remuneration of
Directors and Key Management Persons
identified under the Companies Act, 2013
and other employees i.e. Remuneration
Policy including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes,
independence of a director and other
matters provided under section 178(3) and
the same are in force. The Nomination and
Remuneration Policy of the Company forms
part of the Director’'s Report as Annexure-3.

25.RATIO OF REMUNERATION OF
EACH DIRECTOR TO THE MEDIAN
REMUNERATION OF THE
EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22.

As on March 31, 2022, there were 182
employees on the payroll of OBCL. The
information required pursuant to Section
197 (12) read with Rule 5 (1) (i) of the
Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration) Rules 2014 in respect of ratio
of remuneration of each director to the
median remuneration of the employee of
the Company for the financial year 2021-22
forms part of this report as Annexure-4(i).

There are no employees in the Company
drawing remuneration of more than Rs.
8,50,000/- per month or Rs. 1,02,00,000/- per
annum or in excess of that drawn by the
managing director or whole-time director
or manager, as prescribed in Rule 5 (2) of
the Companies (  Appointment

and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016.

A Statement of Particulars of Employees
covered under the provisions of Rule 5 of
Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 is enclosed herewith as
Annexure-4(ii).

26. MANNER IN WHICH THE FORMAL
ANNUAL EVALUATION OF
PERFORMANCE BY THE BOARD
OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE AND
THAT OF ITS COMMITTEES AND
INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS WAS
CARRIED OUT

As per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee (NRC) specifies the manner for
effective evaluation of the performance of
Board, its Committees and individual
directors to be carried out either by the
Board, by the NRC or by an independent
external agency and review its
implementation and compliance.
Accordingly, the evaluation of the
performance of the Board, its Committees
and of its individual directors are carried out
by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Company.

The evaluation exercise in terms of Schedule
IV of the Companies Act, 2013 was also
carried out for the FY 2021-22 in a separate
meeting of Independent Directors held on
March 31, 2022. The performance of all the
Directors was evaluated by the entire Board
except the person being evaluated. The
performance of the Committees was
evaluated by the Board. The NRC also carried
out the evaluation of Individual Directors.
The Board also carried out the evaluation of
their own performance apart from its
Committees and Individual Directors.
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27. REPORTING OF FRAUDS

During the year under review, neither the
statutory auditors nor the secretarial
auditors has reported to the Audit
Committee or the Board of Directors, under
Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013,
any instances of fraud committed against
OBCL by its officers or employees, the

details of which would need to be
mentioned in this Director's report.
28. CORPORATE SOCIAL

RESPONSIBILITY

OBCL is covered under the purview of
Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 and
hence it needs to spend 2% of its average
net profit for identified CSR purposes. The
CSR projects of the Company are being
implemented by the Company itself based
on the CSR Policy of the Company as
approved by the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee and the Board of
Directors of the Company.

During the year 2021-22, the CSR
Contribution of the Company was required
to be spent to implement the Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy of the Company
in the manner laid down in Section 135(5) of
the Companies Act 2013 and the actual
amount incurred towards approved
projects was 100% of the amount to be
spent by the Company.

The CSR policy is available on your
Company's website www.obclimited.com.
The disclosures required to be made in the
Director's Report as per Rule 9 of
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014 is attached herewith as
Annexure-5.

29. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain the
highest standards of corporate governance
and adhere to corporate governance
requirements.

Orissa Bengal Carrier Limited (OBCL) is a
public limited Company, whose securities
are listed on the Main Board of NSE and
BSE with effect from April 07, 2022. As on
March 31, 2022, your Company had been
listed on SME Platform of BSE and as per
Regulation 15 under Chapter IV of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company
which has listed its securities on the SME
exchange are exempt from complying with
Corporate  Governance provisions as
specified in Regulations 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22,
23, 24, 25, 26, 27 and sub regulation 2 of
Regulation 46.

Accordingly, the provisions of Corporate
Governance were not applicable on your
Company. Though your Company had
followed all the Corporate Governance
practices as much as it could.

OBCL has always been involved in good
governance practices and endeavors
continuously to improve upon the same. A
report on corporate governance for the
financial year 2021-22 is furnished as part of
the Annual Report for the information of all
its stakeholders as Annexure-6(i). The
obtaining of Compliance Certificate from a
Practicing Company Secretary confirming
compliance with the conditions of
disclosures and Corporate Governance
norms specified for listed companies &
Certificate of Non-Disqualification of
Directors pursuant to Regulation - 34(3) and
Schedule - V Para - C clause - (10) (l) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 were not
applicable to the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2022.
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CODE OF CONDUCT

A code of conduct for Directors and Senior
Management Personnel of the Company is
framed as per the requirements of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. All the
Directors and the KMPs have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct. As
per the requirement of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Code of Conduct, has
been hosted on the website of the
Company. The Managing Director of the
Company has affirmed to the Board of
Directors that the Code of Conduct has
been complied by the Directors and senior
management personnel and the same is
attached herewith as Annexure- 6(ii) and
forms part of Corporate Governance Report.
As per the requirement of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015, the code of conduct, has

been hosted on the website of the
Company at
https://www.obclimited.com/policies.php

30.MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS REPORT

In Terms of the Regulation 34 read with
Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations
2015, Management Discussion and Analysis

report forms part of this Annual Report.
31. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has been following the
principle of risk minimization as it is the
norm in every industry. The Board has
adopted steps for framing, implementing
and monitoring the risk management plan
for the Company. The main objective is to
ensure sustainable business growth with
stability and to promote a pro-active
approach in reporting, evaluating and
resolving risks associated with the business.
In order to achieve the key objective, the
policy establishes a structured and
disciplined approach to risk

management, in order to guide for
decisions on risk related issues. In today's
Challenging and competitive environment,
strategies for mitigating inherent risk in
accomplishing the growth plans of the
Company are imperative. The Common
risks inherent are: Regulations, Competition,
business risk, technology obsolescence,
long term investments and expansion of
facilities. Business risk, inter alia, includes
financial risk, political risk, legal risk etc. As a
matter of policy, these risk are assessed and
steps as appropriate are taken to mitigate
the same.

32.DISCLOSURE ON
MECHANISM/WHISTLE
BLOWER POLICY

Pursuant to Section 177(9) & (10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil Mechanism for
directors and employees to report genuine
concerns has been established, in order to
ensure that the activities of the Company
and its employees are conducted in a fair
and transparent manner by adoption of
highest standards of professionalism,
honesty and integrity and ethical behaviour.
The Company has established a Vvigil
mechanism through which Directors,
employees and business associates may
report unethical behaviour, malpractices,
wrongful conduct, fraud, violation of
Company’s code of conduct without fear of
reprisal.

VIGIL

The Company has set up a Direct Touch
initiative, under which all Directors,
employees, business associates have direct
access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, and also to a three-member
direct touch team established for this
purpose. The direct touch team comprises
one senior woman member so that women
employees of the Company feel free and
secure while lodging their complaints under
the policy. No Personnel had been denied
access to the Committee during the year
ended March 31, 2022.
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34, MATERIAL CHANGES AND
FEELGTIEL AR o7 AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE
EARNING AND OUTGO COMPANY AND THE DATE OF THE
. REPORT
33.1 Conservation of Energy:
The Company has migrated the
a) The steps taken or impact on Listing/Trading of Equity Shares of the
conservation of energy:-The Company Company from SME Platform of BSE
is putting continues efforts to reduce Limited to Main Board of BSE Limited and
the consumption of energy and National Stock Exchange of India Limited
maximum possible saving of energy. (NSE) with effect from April 07, 2022.
b) The steps taken by the Company for
utilizing alternate sources of energy:- There have been no other material changes
The Company has used alternate and commitments, if any, affecting the
source of energy, whenever and to the financial position of the Company which
extent possible. have occurred between the end of the
c) The capital investment on energy Financial Year i.e. 31st March, 2022, to which

conservation equipments:- NIL

33.2 Technology Absorption:
a) The effort made towards technology
absorption:-No specific activities have
been done by the Company.

The benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution:-
No specific activity has been done by
the Company

In case of Iimported technology
(imported during the last three years
reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year:- NA

The expenditure incurred on Research
& Development:- NIL

b)

d)

333 Foreign
Earnings and Outgo:

Exchange

There was no Foreign Exchange earnings
and outgo during the financial year in
terms of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

the Financial Statements relate and the
date of the report.

35)DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND
MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY
THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR

TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE
GOING CONCERN STATUS AND
COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN
FUTURE

During the year under review, there were
no significant or material orders passed by
the Regulators or Courts or Tribunal which
would impact the going concern status of
your Company and its future operation.

36)DEPOSITS

During the year under review, Company has
not invited, accepted or renewed any
deposit from the public in terms of the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of
India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
there under. Accordingly, the requirement
to furnish details relating to deposits
covered under Chapter V of the Companies
Act, 2013 does not arise.
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37)BUSINESS
REPORT

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(‘SEBI') under Regulation 34(2)(f) of the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with National
Guidelines on Responsible Business Conduct
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
requires top one thousand listed companies
based on market capitalization to present a
Business Responsibility Report (BRR) to its
stakeholders in the prescribed format.

RESPONSIBILITY

During the year under review, OBCL did not
fall under the top one thousand listed
companies based on market capitalization,
accordingly, the requirement relating to
Business Responsibility Report under the
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 does not
arise.

38)PROCEEDINGS UNDER
INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

MCA has vide Companies (Accounts)
Amendment Rules, 2021, effective from April
01, 2021, amended rule 8 with respect to the
disclosures of details of an application made
or any proceeding pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
during the year along with their status as at
the end of the financial year. The same was
not applicable to your Company as there are
no such applications made or proceedings
pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 with respect to the
Company.

39)DIFFERENCE IN AMOUNT OF
THE VALUATION

MCA has vide Companies (Accounts)
Amendment Rules, 2021, effective from April
01, 2021 amended Rule 8 with respect to the
disclosures of details of the difference
between the amount of the valuation done
at the time of one-time settlement and the
valuation done while taking a loan from the
Banks or Financial Institutions along with the
reasons thereof. The same was not

applicable to the Company as there was no
such instance of one time settlement during
the year under review.

40)COST AUDIT/COST RECORDS

The requirement relating to disclosure and
the maintenance of cost records as
specified by the Central Government under
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is
not required to be made by the Company,
and accordingly, such accounts and records

are not prepared and maintained.

41) DEMATERIALIZATION OF
COMPANY'S SHARES

Your Company has provided the facility to
its shareholders for dematerialization of
their shareholding by entering into an
agreement with The National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).
The ISIN allotted to the Company is
(INE426Z01016).

42)SERVICES TO SHAREHOLDERS

All matters relating to transfer/transmission
of shares, issue of duplicate share
certificates, payment of dividend, de-
materialization and re-materialization of
shares and redressal of investors grievances
are carried out by M/s. Big Share Services
Pvt. Ltd., Mumbai, the Registrar and
Transfer Agent of the Company.

43)SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-
1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the
Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings'
have been duly complied with by your
Company during the Financial Year under
review.
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44)DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/
UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

During the year under review, there were no shares of the Company held in the demat
suspense account or unclaimed suspense account. Accordingly, the disclosure with respect to
demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account as per the requirements of the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to the Company.

45)ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for significant contribution
made by the employees at all the levels through their dedication, hard work and commitment
thereby enabling the Company to boost its performance during the year under review.

Your Directors also take this opportunity to place on record the valuable co-operation and
continuous support extended by its valued business associates, Practicing Company Secretary,
Auditors, Suppliers, Customers, Banks/Financial Institutions, Government authorities and the
shareholders for their continuously reposed confidence in the Company and look forward to
having the same support in all its future endeavours.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Gopal Kumar Agrawalla
(Chairman)

DIN: 07941122

Date: 04.08.2022
Place: Raipur
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ANNEXURE -1 TO DIRECTORS' REPORT

Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (h) of the Act read with Rule 8 (2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company
with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.
Not applicable

Name of Nature of Nature of Durationof Salient terms of the Date of Amount
Related Relationship contracts the contracts or approval by paid as
Party contracts/ar arrangements or the Board, if advances,

/arrangerr]ents/tr rangement transaction any ifany
ansactions s/transactio including the value,
n if any

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

Name of Related  Nature of Relationship Nature of contracts Duration of the Salient terms of the Date of approval Amount paid as
Party /arrangements contracts/arrang  contracts or arrangements by the Board,if  advances, ifany
[transactions ements/transacti or transaction including the any
on value, if any
Ravi Agrawal Director Godown Rent Annual Rs. 6,30,000/- NA NIL
Shakuntala Devi Director Godown Rent Annual Rs. 2,10,000/- NA NIL
Agrawal
Shakuntala Devi Director Director Remuneration Annual Rs. 9,00,000/- NA NIL
Agrawal
Manoj Kumar Director Director Remuneration Annual Rs. 18,00,000/- NA NIL
Agrawal
Ravi Agrawal Director Director Remuneration Annual Rs. 31,00,000/- NA NIL
Subhash Mittal Relative of Director Salary Annual Rs. 7,20,000/- NA NIL
Kapil Mittal Relative of Director Salary Annual Rs. 2,70,000/- NA NIL
Akshay Agrawal Relative of Director Salary Annual Rs. 6,00,000/- NA NIL
Banarasi Devi Relative of Director Rent Annual Rs. 3,60,000/- NA NIL
Agrawal
Sonal Agrawal Relative of Director Salary Annual Rs. 6,00,000/- NA NIL
Ashok Kumar Relative of Director Freight Received Annual Rs. 71,85,314/- NA NIL
Agrawal
Ashok Kumar Relative of Director Freight Paid Annual Rs. 4,18,10,513/- NA NIL
Agrawal
Rishi Kumar & Relative of Director Purchase of Parts Annual Rs. 54,95,342/- NA NIL
Sons
Ravi Agrawal HUF Relative of Director Freight Paid Annual Rs. 5,49,498/- NA NIL
Ashok Kumar & Relative of Director Freight Paid Annual Rs. 5,43,090/- NA NIL
Sons

= — " Gg&m} " — ™
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Note:

The above transactions were on an arm'’s length basis and in ordinary course of business of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Gopal Kumar Agrawalla
(Chairman)

DIN: 07941122

Date: 04.08.2022
Place: Raipur
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ANNEXURE -2 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ANIL AGRAWAL & ASSOCIATES Office No. 4071-73, 4th Floor,
COMPANY SECRETARIES Currency Tower, Near Ram Mandir,
VIP Chowk, Raipur (C.G.)-492001
E-mail:- agrawal4all@gmail.com
Contact No.:- 7898986867/9575111112

FORM NO.MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LTD

CIN: L63090CT1994PLC008732

Jiwan Bima Marg, Pandri, Raipur (C.G.)-492001.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LTD (CIN:
L63090CTI994PLC0O08732) (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
covering the Financial year ended on 3lIst March, 2022 (‘Audit Period’), complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes
and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31t March, 2022
according to the provisions of:-

—

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder.
The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder.

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder.

A WON

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings.

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act,1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-
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a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations,1992;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and amendments from time to time;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2017;

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) ;

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securities) Regulations, 1998
(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).

6. Specific laws applicable to the industry to which the Company belongs, as identified and
compliance whereof as examined on test-check basis and as confirmed by the

management, that is to say :

1. Carriage by Road Act, 2007

2. Motor Vehicles Act, 1988

3. Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006
4. The Motor Transport Workers Act,1961

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

b) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with National Stock
Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited read with the SEBI (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 .
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We further report:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance or at shorter period as approved by
board, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on
the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All the decisions were unanimous and there was no instance of dissent in Board or Committee
Meetings.

We further report that based on the written representations received from the
officials/executives of the Company there are adequate systems and processes in the
Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the Audit Period, the Stock Exchange has not undertaken any
major step having a major bearing on its affairs in pursuance of the above-referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

For, Anil Agrawal and Associates

(Company Secretaries)

Sd/-
Place: Raipur i

Anil Kumar Agrawal
Date: 04.08.2022 Partner

FCS No.: 8828

CP No.: 9981

UDIN: FO08828D000713433

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘ANNEXURE A’
and forms an integral part of this report.
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‘ANNEXURE A’

To

The Members

ORISSA BENGAL CARRIERLTD

CIN: L63090CT1994PLC0O08732

Jiwan Bima Marg, Pandri, Raipur (C.G)-492001.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on
test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the processes
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. Our Audit examination is restricted only upto legal compliances of the applicable laws to be done by
the Company, we have not checked the practical aspects relating to the same.

4. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of
the Company, as well as correctness of the values and figures reported in various disclosures and returns
as required to be submitted by the Company under the specified laws, though we have relied to a certain
extent on the information furnished in such returns;

5. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial laws, like direct tax laws, indirect
tax laws, since the same is subject to review by statutory financial audit and other designated
professionals.

6. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

7. Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial, and operating controls, there is
an unavoidable risk that some misstatements or material non-compliances may not be detected, even
though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with audit practices.

8. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on
test-check basis.

9. The contents of this Report has to be read in conjunction with and not in isolation of the observations, if
any, in the report(s) furnished/to be furnished by any other auditor(s)/agencies/authorities with respect to
the Company.

10. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For, Anil Agrawal and Associates
(Company Secretaries)

Place: Raipur
Date: 04.08.2022 Sd/-
Anil Kumar Agrawal
Partner
FCS No.: 8828
CP No.: 9981
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ANNEXURE -3 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

POLICY FOR NOMINATION AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

. PURPOSE

This Policy sets out the guiding principles
for the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) for identifying persons
who are qualified to become Directors and
Senior Management Personnel and to
determine the independence of Directors,
in case of their appointment as
independent directors of Orissa Bengal
Carrier Limited (OBCL).

II. INTRODUCTION:

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015), the Board
of Directors of OBCL is mandated to
constitute a Nomination and Remuneration
Committee which shall, amongst other
things, formulate the criteria for
determining qualifications, positive
attributes and independence of a Director
and criteria for identifying persons who may
be appointed in senior management and
recommend to the Board a policy, relating
to the remuneration for the directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees.
The Company aims to achieve a balance of
merit, experience and skills amongst its
Directors and Senior Management
Personnel. The objectives of this Policy are:

a. To formulate the criteria for identifying
the persons who are qualified to
become directors and such persons who
may be appointed as the Senior
Management Personnel of the
Company.

b. To guide the Board in relation to the
appointment and removal of directors
and Senior Management.

c. To determine the qualifications, positive
attributes and independence of a
director and to ensure Board Diversity
and implementation of succession
planning in the Company.

f. The expression

I1l. TERMS AND REFERENCES:

In this Policy, the following terms shall have
the meaning as follows:

a. "Board of Directors" or "Board" shall mean
the collective body of directors of OBCL.

b. “Director” means a director appointed to
the Board of the Company.

c. "Independent Director" shall have the
meaning as defined under the Companies
Act, 2013 read with relevant rules and SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015.

d. “Key Managerial Personnel” means KMP
as defined under Section 2(51) of the
Companies Act, 2013;

e. “Nomination and Remuneration
Committee” or “NRC” or “Committee”
means the committee constituted by
OBCLl's Board in accordance with the
provisions of Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015").

“senior management”
means personnel of the Company who
are members of its core management
team excluding Board of Directors
comprising all members of management
one level below the executive Directors,
including the functional heads. This wiill
include the KMP’s under the Companies
Act, 2013, and those identified by the NRC
from time to time.

Words and definitions not defined herein, shall
have the same meaning as provided in the
Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules,
SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 or other relevant

provisions as may be applicable.
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In any circumstance where the terms of this
Policy differ from any existing or enacted

law, rule, regulation governing

the

Company, the law, rule or regulation will
take precedence over the provision of this

Policy.
IV. COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD:

®* As per SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015

Shareholders.

It also prescribes that all listed
companies shall have at least one
woman director.

Section 149 (3) of the Act provides that
there should be at least one Director
who should have stayed in India for a
period of not less than 182 days
during the financial year.

a)

b)

board of directors shall have an optimum
combination of executive and non-
executive directors with at least one
woman director and not less than fifty
percent of the board of directors shall
comprise of non-executive directors;
where the chairperson of the board of
directors is a non-executive director, at
least one-third of the board of directors
shall comprise of independent directors
and where the listed entity does not have
a regular non-executive chairperson, at
least half of the board of directors shall
comprise of independent directors:
Provided that where the regular non-
executive chairperson is a promoter of
the listed entity or is related to any
promoter or person occupying
management positions at the level of
board of director or at one level below
the board of directors, at least half of the
board of directors of the listed entity
shall consist of independent directors.

Explanation:- For the purpose of this clause,
the expression —"related to any promoter"
shall have the following meaning:

if the promoter is a listed entity, its
directors other than the independent
directors, its employees or its nominees
shall be deemed to be related to it;

if the promoter is an unlisted entity, its
directors, its employees or its nominees
shall be deemed to be related to it.

®* As per Companies Act, 2013

a.

Section 149 of the Act prescribes that
every public limited Company shall
have at least 3 Directors and provides
for appointment of up to fifteen
Directors without seeking approval of

V. QUALIFICATIONS AND CRITERIA

The Board, shall review on an annual
basis, appropriate skills, expertise,
competences, knowledge and
experience required of the Board as a
whole and its individual members. The
objective is to have a Board with diverse
background and experience that are
relevant for the Company’s operations.

In evaluating the suitability of individual

Board members, the NRC may take into

account factors, such as:

® General understanding of
Company's business dynamics
social perspective;

® Educational
background;

*® Skills, expertise and competences;

® Standing in the profession;

®Personal and professional
integrity and values;

®* Willingness to devote sufficient time
and energy in carrying out their duties
and responsibilities effectively.

the
and

and professional

ethics,

The proposed appointee shall also fulfill

the following requirements:

® Shall possess a Director Identification
Number or any other identification
number prescribed by the Central
Government which shall be treated as
Director Identification Number for the
purposes of the Act;

® Shall not be disqualified under the Act,
or pursuant to any order of Securities
and Exchange Board of India or any
other such authority;

® Shall give his written consent to act as
a Director;
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Shall endeavour to attend the Board
Meetings and wherever he is appointed as
a Committee member, the Committee
Meetings;

Shall abide by the Code of Conduct
established by the Company for Directors
and Senior Management Personnel;

Shall disclose his concern or interest in
any Company or Companies or bodies
corporate, firms, or other association of
individuals including his shareholding at
the first meeting of the board in which he
participates as a director and thereafter at
the first meeting of the Board in every
financial year and whenever there is a
change in the disclosures already made;
Such other requirements as may be
prescribed, from time to time, under the
Act, Listing Regulations and other
relevant laws.

The NRC shall specify the manner for
effective evaluation of performance of
Board, its committees and individual
directors to be carried out either by the
Board, by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee or by an
independent external agency and review
its implementation and compliance with
the objective of having a group that best
enables the success of the Company's
business.

CRITERIA OF INDEPENDENCE

The NRC shall assess the independence of
Directors at the time of appointment /
re-appointment and the Board shall assess
the same annually. The Board shall
re-assess declarations of independence
when any new interests or relationships
are disclosed by a Director.

The criteria of independence, shall be, as
laid down in Act, SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015 and other relevant laws, if any, as
amended from time to time.

The Independent Directors shall abide by
the “Code for Independent Directors” as
specified in Schedule IV to the Act.

VIl. OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS / COMMITTEE
MEMBERSHIPS

i. The Board members are expected to
have adequate time, expertise and
experience to contribute to effective
Board performance. Accordingly,
members should voluntarily limit their
directorships in other listed public
limited companies in such a way that it
does not interfere with their role as
directors of the Company;

ii. The NRC shall take into account the
nature of, and the time involved in a
Director's service on other Boards, in
evaluating the suitability of the individual
Director and making its
recommendations to the Board;

iii. Director shall not serve as Director /
Independent Director in such number of
companies as may be prescribed under
the Act, SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015
and other relevant laws, if any.

iv. A Director shall not be a member or act
as Chairman of such number of
companies as may be prescribed under
the Act, SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015
and other relevant laws, if any

VIll. AMENDMENT

Any amendment or modification in the
Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 and Rules, Regulations and
directives issued under the respective
statutes and any other applicable provision
relating to the Nomination and
Appointment of Directors and Senior
Management, etc. shall automatically be
applicable to this Policy.

IX. DISCLOSURE

This Policy shall be placed on the Company’s
website in accordance with provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI(LODR)
Regulations, 2015 and the salient features of
the policy, if any, shall be disclosed in the
Director’s report.

X. REVIEW

This Policy shall be subject to review as may
be deemed necessary and in accordance
with any statutory and regulatory
amendments.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

I. PURPOSE

This Policy sets out the approach and
guiding principles for the Compensation of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
other employees in Orissa Bengal Carrier
Limited (OBCL).

1. INTRODUCTION:

OBCL recognises the importance of
aligning the business objectives with
specific and measurable individual
objectives and targets. The Company has
therefore formulated the remuneration
policy for its directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees keeping in
view the following objectives:

a) Ensuring that the level and composition
of remuneration is reasonable and
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
Directors of quality to run the Company
successfully.

b) Ensuring that relationship of
remuneration to performance is clear
and meets the performance
benchmarks.

c) Ensuring that remuneration involves a
balance between fixed and incentive
pay reflecting short and long term
performance objectives appropriate to
the working of the Company and its
goals.

[1l. TERMS AND REFERENCES:

In this Policy, the following terms shall have
the following meanings:

a

. “Director” means a director appointed to

the Board of the Company.

b. “Key Managerial Personnel” means

i. the Chief Executive Officer or the
managing director or the manager;

ii. the Company Secretary;

iii. the Whole-time Director;

iv. the Chief Financial Officer; and

v. such other officer as may be
prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013 and Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015

C. “Nomination and Remuneration
Committee” or “NRC” or “Committee”
means the Committee constituted by
OBCL's Board in accordance with the
provisions of Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015").

IV. REMUNERATION CRITERIA:

A. Remuneration to Executive Directors
and Key Managerial Personnel

The Board, on the recommendation of
the NRC, shall review and approve the
remuneration payable to the Executive
Directors of the Company within the
overall limits approved by the
shareholders as per the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015.

a)

The Board, on the recommendation of
the NRC, shall also review and approve
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the remuneration payable to the Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company.
c) The remuneration structure to the
Executive Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel may include the following
components:
i. Basic Pay
ii. Perquisites and Allowances
iii. Stock Options
iv. Commission (Applicable in case of
Executive Directors)
v. Retiral benefits
vi. Annual Performance Bonus

d) The Annual Plan and Objectives for
Executive Directors and Senior
Executives (Executive Committee) shall
be reviewed by the NRC and Annual
Performance Bonus will be approved by
the Committee based on the
achievements against the Annual Plan
and Objectives.

Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors

a) The Board on the recommendation of
the NRC shall review and approve the

remuneration payable to the
Non-Executive Directors of the
Company within the overall limits
approved by the shareholders.

b) Non-Executive Directors shall be

entitled to sitting fees for attending the
meetings of the Board and the
Committees thereof. The Non-Executive
Directors shall also be entitled to profit
related commission in addition to the
sitting fees.

c) Independent directors shall
entitled to any stock option.

d) Such other remuneration as may be
prescribed by the Board in the Criteria
for making payments to Non-executive
Directors from time to time.

not be

Remuneration to other Employees

Employees shall be assigned grades
according to their qualifications and work
experience, competencies as well as their
roles and responsibilities in the

C3

organization. Individual remuneration shall
be determined within the appropriate
grade and shall be based on various factors
such as job profile, skill sets, seniority,
experience and prevailing remuneration
levels for equivalent jobs.

V. AMENDMENT

Any amendment or modification in the
Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 and Rules, Regulations
and directives issued under the respective
statutes and any other applicable provision
relating to the remuneration/
compensation/ commission, etc. shall
automatically be applicable to this Policy.

VI. DISCLOSURE

This Policy shall be placed on the
Company’'s website in accordance with
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and the
salient features of the policy, if any, shall be
disclosed in the Director's report.

VII. REVIEW

This Policy shall be subject to review as may
be deemed necessary and in accordance
with any statutory and regulatory
amendments.
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ANNEXURE -4(i) TO DIRECTORS' REPORT

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO SECTION 197 (12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

The disclosures pertaining to remuneration in terms of Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 are as per the details provided below.

Mr. Ravi Agrawal (WTD) 28.70
(A) The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median
remuneration of the employees of the Company for the | Mr. Manoj Kumar Agrawal (WTD) 14.35
financial year;
Mrs. Shakuntala Devi Agrawal

(Director) V.17
Percentage
Name Increase/(Decrease)
Mr. Ravi Agrawal (WTD) 50%
Mr. Manoj Kumar Agrawal (WTD) 0%

(B) The percentage increase/decrease in remuneration of Mrs

. L . A A . . ) Shakuntala Devi Agrawal
each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer,

0%

. " 3 Y (Director)
Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year;
Mr. Akshay Agrawal (CFO) 0%
Mr. Aakash Kumar Sahu (CS) 0%
Ms. Muskaan Gupta (CS) 0%

(C) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of 1%
employees in the Financial Year; ?
(D) The number of permanent employees (Other than

st
Directors and KMP) on the rolls of the Company SRR March 20224

(E) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries
of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last
financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification

In view of pandemic COVID-19 virus prevailing in the whole
Country, Median Salary of non-managerial staff has increased by

A . . nominal 1%.
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional °
circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration;
(F)The Key parameters for any variable component of There is no variable component in the
remuneration availed by the directors; remuneration of director

(H) The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid Director
to that of the Employees who are not Directors but receive
remuneration in excess of the highest paid Director during
the year

N.A.

() Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the

. . We affirm that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy
remuneration policy of the Company

of the Company
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO RULE 5(2) OF THE
COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES,
2014

Remuneration
(Rs.) Whether any such
employee
The percentagelis a relative of any director
Experience (No. of Date of of equity or
Years), Last Commencement of | shares held by |manager of the Company
Employment Employment the employee and
inthe Company, if so, name of such
director or
manager

Name, Age (in Years), Qualification,
Designation, Nature of Duties (Whether

contractual or
otherwise)

Ravi Agrawal, 36 Years, MBA, Managing 3600000 2707500 11 Years, NA 01-07-2018 Shakuntala Devi Agrawal
Director, Permanent (Mother)
2 Manoj Kumar Agrawal, 46 Years, Graduate, 1800000 1514028 21 Years, NA 07-04-1997 1.09 NA

Whole Time Director, Permanent

3 |Shakuntala Devi Agrawal, 62 Years, Graduate, | 900000, 809028 37 Years, NA 18-10-1994  Individually Ravi Agrawal (Son)
Director, Permanent Holding: 14.07%
Son Holding:
15.85% Total
holding along
with Son :
29.92%

4 Subhash Chand Mittal, 57 Years, Graduate, 720000 638400 32 Years, NA 01-04-2009 on NA
Account & Commercial Head, Permanent

5 |Muskaan Gupta, 25 Years, CS-LLB, CS & 673200 626064 3 Years, NSE-Deputy, 14-11-2021 NIL NA
Compliance Officer , Permanent Manager

6 |Akshay Agrawal, 29 Years, Business 600000 577500 4 Years, Sales and 01-12-2017, NIL NA
Management Graduate, CFO, Permanent Service Specialist-

Fenwick London

7 Sonal Agrawal, 42 Years, Graduate, Admin 600000 577500 15 Years, NA 01-04-2009 1.09 NA
Executive, Permanent

8 |Ishwar Roy, 60 Years, Graduate, Branch- 549600, 510540, 35 Years, Logistic Head 01-05-2014 NIL NA
Manager, Permanent HPCL Kolkata

9 |Prakash Rao Gilakamsetty, 54 Years, Post- 456000 456000 29 Years, NA 01-03-1996 NIL NA

Graduate, Sr. Manager Accounts, Permanent

10 Jai Parkash Sharma, 54 Years, Under- 420000 420000 29 Years,Branch 01-06-2020 NIL NA
Graduate, Branch-Manager, Permanent Manager Darcel

" R i G’“&"@ 1 == "
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Detailed Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:- The CSR Committee has formulated a CSR
policy of the Company for undertaking the activities as specified in Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Composition of CSR Committee:

S Number of Number of meetings of
Name of Director Nature of meetings B S Comm.lttee
. . Committee held attended during the
Directorship .
during the year
Mr. Sahil Batra Non Executive
(ceased to be a Independent
1. . 3 1
member w.e.f. Director
October 23, 2021)
Mr. Raj Kumar Jain Non Executive
(ceased to be a Independent
2. . 3 1
member w.ef. Director
October 23, 2021)
Mr. Ashish Dakalia Chalrman; Nt
. Executive
3. (appointed w.ef. Independent 3 2
November 01, 2021) P
Director

Mr. Ravi Agrawal
4, (appointed w.ef. Managing Director 3 2
November 01, 2021)

Non Executive

Mrs. Shakuntala Devi Director 2 3

= Agrawal

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR
projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the Company.

https://www.obclimited.com/csr_policy.php

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of
sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, if applicable (attach the report). Not Applicable

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required

for set off for the financial year, if any.

Amount available for set- Amount required to
Financial Year off from preceding be setoff for the
financial years financial year, if any
1. 2021-22 Nil Nil
— " GI‘&HE} " — ™
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6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs.11,88,79,740/-
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): Rs. 23,77,595/-
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or Programmes or activities of the previous financial
years: Rs. Nil
(c). Amount required to be set off for the Financial Year if any: Nil
(d). Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- 7c). Rs. 23,77,595/-

8. a. CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Spent | Total ~ Amount  transferred  to

for the Financial | Unspent CSR Account as per section e e e Bt ed under

Schedule VIl as per second proviso to section 135(5).

Year. 135(6).
(ot Name of the
Amount. Date of transfer. Fund Amount. Date of transfer.
23,78,717.00 NIL NIL

b. Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: N.A

c. Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

Mode of implementation -

ltem
Loc Mode  of  Through
fromthe i i . 9 _ _
gl al Location of the project.| A 5un implement implernent]
S| Name of activitie | 2re tspent @ ation ngagency.
N'O the sin a forthe -
’ Project schedul (Yes project Direct CSR
e Vil to / (inRs.). | (Yes/N registrati
theAct. No). State. District. o). Name. on
number.
Eradicating
1. Eg\?egrf;and pﬁzirgt)e/f Yes Chhattisgarh Raipur 23,78,717/- Yes NA NA
Malnutrition
TOTAL 23,78,717/- - - -

d. Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

e. Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

f. Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e):-Rs. 23,78,717/-
g. Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil

69



C3

Orissa Bengal
—— Corrier Limited 22

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

1 2020-21 - 14,28,886 - - = 5
Total 14,28,886

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding

financial year(s): Not Applicable

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the
asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise
details). Not Applicable
a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).

b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.

c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such
capital asset is registered, their address etc.

d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete

address and location of the capital asset).

1. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the
average net profit as per section 135(5):- NA

Mr. Ashish Dakalia

Mr. Ravi Agrawal . )
Chairman- CSR Committee

Managing Director
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ANNEXURE 6(i) TO DIRECTORS REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

As per Regulation 15 under Chapter IV of
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the listed
entity which has listed its securities on the
SME exchange are exempt from complying
with Corporate Governance provisions as
specified in Regulations 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22,
23, 24, 25, 26, 27 and sub regulation 2 of
Regulation 46.

As on March 31, 2022, your Company had
been listed on SME Platform of Bombay
Stock Exchange and thus provisions of
Corporate Governance were not applicable
on your Company. Though your Company
tries had followed all the Corporate
Governance practices as much as it could.

It may also be noted that the
Listing/Trading of the Equity Shares of the
Company are migrated from SME Platform
of BSE Limited to Main Board of BSE
Limited and National Stock Exchange of
India Limited (NSE) with effect from April
07,2022.

. BRIEF STATEMENT ON
COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance is the application of
best management practices, compliance of
law and commitment to values and ethical
business conduct to achieve the Company'’s
objective of enhancing shareholder value
and effective discharge of its social
responsibility.

In addition to the applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to
corporate governance, provisions of the
Securities & Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015] is also complied
to the extent applicable to our Company
since the listing of the Equity Shares on the
Stock Exchange.

The Company has focused on good
governance practices and endeavors to
improve the same in the corporate
landscape and has rigorously stood by the
core principles of corporate governance
and considers integrity, transparency,
fairness, accountability and adherence to
the law as the pillars of its business
practices.

Our Company stands committed to good
corporate governance practices based on
the principles such as accountability,
transparency in dealings with our
stakeholders, emphasis on communication
and transparent reporting. We have
complied with the requirements of the
applicable regulations, including
Regulations, in respect of corporate
governance including constitution of the
Board and Committees thereof. The
Corporate governance framework is based
on an effective Independent Board, the
Board's Supervisory role from the executive
management team and constitution of the
Board Committees, as required under law.

The Board functions either as a full board or
through the various committees
constituted to oversee specific operational
areas. As on date, OBCL is in compliance
with the corporate governance norms
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013
and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015,
particularly, in relation to appointment of
Independent Directors to our Board and
constitution of Board-level committees.

Our Company undertakes to take all
necessary steps to continue to comply with
all the requirements of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015, the Equity Listing
Agreements and the Companies Act, 2013.
For the information of its stakeholders,
OBCL is furnishing the Report on Corporate
Governance for the financial year ended
March 31, 2022.
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Il. BOARD OF DIRECTORS ety
Name sz\tegory . of d.ent
COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD Directorship | Directors
AND CATEGORY OF DIRECTORS hip
Mr. Gopal | Non-
As on March 31, 2022, the Board consists of 6 Kumar Executive No
Directors of which two are Executive Agrawalla Director
Directors (including Managing Director),
two are Non-Executive Directors and two Promo’Fer-
are Independent Directors. Executive
Mr. Ravi Agrawal | Director- No
The Board of Directors in the Nomination & Managing
Remuneration Policy underscored the need Director
for board diversity by stating that the Board Promoter-
shall have an appropriate combination of | Executive
executive and non-executive directors and Mr. ManoJ | . tor- NG
their appointments shall be based on Kumar Agrawal Wholetime
meritocracy in the context of skills, diverse .
. . Director
experience, independence and knowledge,
which the Board as a whole requires to be Rcmoter-
effective, keeping in mind SEBI prescribed Mrs. Shakuntala | Non- No
norms such as qualification (in the area of Devi Agrawal Executive
law, finance, accounting, economics, Director
management, administration or any other Non-
area relevant to the financial markets), at Mr. Sourabh | - tive Yes
least one person having experience and Agrawal Director
background in finance /accounts who may
preferably be inducted in the audit Mr. Ashish Non- .
committee, persons currently holding Dakalia Executive Yes
positions of trust and responsibility in Director
reputed organizations or person who have
retired from such positions. Accordingly, the .
Directors are chosen fromm among eminent Changes during the year:
persons or experts in the field of law, . .
finance, accounting, taxation, information 1. Mr. Ashish Dakalia and Mr. Sourabh
Agrawal were appointed as the

technology, economics,
management, etc.

commerce,

The Chairman of the Board is a
Non-Executive Director. The Company has
appointed Mr. Gopal Kumar Agrawalla,
Non-Executive Director, as the Chairman of
the Board of Directors of the Company. The
composition of the Board is in conformity
with the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The
composition of the Board as on March 3],
2022 was as follows:-

Independent Directors of the Company
w.e.f. October 01, 2021

2. Mr. Sahil Batra and Mr. Raj Kumar Jain,
the Independent Directors of the
Company resigned from their
directorships w.e.f. October 23, 2021 due
to other occupations and the details of
the resignations have been submitted to
the Stock Exchange as per the
requirement of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015.
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Mr. Gopal Kumar Agrawalla was appointed
as a Non-Executive Director and Chairman
of the Company by the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee, Board of
Directors and the Shareholders of the
Company in their respective meeting held
on February 28, 2022, February 28, 2022 and
May 28, 2022.

Mr. Ravi Agrawal was appointed as the
Managing Director of the Company with
effect from June 01, 2022 as per the
approval of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee, the Board and
the Shareholders in their respective
meeting held on April 28, 2022; April 28,
2022 and May 28, 2022.

OBCL Board:

The Board of Directors of OBCL comprises of
qualified members who bring in the required
skills, expertise and competence that allows
them to make an effective contribution to
the deliberations at the meetings of the
Board and its Committees. The Board
members are committed to ensuring that
the OBCL Board is in compliance with the
highest standards of corporate governance.

The  skills/expertise/competencies/positive
attributes, etc. that are identified for
appointment of a candidate as Director to
function effectively, in the context of the
business and sector of the Company are:

- Qualifications - law, finance, accounting,
economics, management, administration, or
any other area relevant to the business of the
Company

* Experience -Transport Market, financial
and Management skill, management of the
finance function of an enterprise, accounting,
economics, financial reporting process, etc.

-Knowledge - understanding and
knowledge of the entity and applicable
statutory and regulatory norms,
constructive and analytical decision-making
abilities, understanding of the risk attached
with the business structure, understanding
of the role, responsibilities, and obligations,
etc.
- Technology - Technical/Professional skills
in relation of Company’s business, analysing
technological trends, innovation, creative
ideas for business, research, and innovation,
digitisation and allied knowledge in the
field of science and technology

Leadership - demonstrable leadership
skills, leadership experience with regard to
managing a Company including practical
understanding, risk management,
processes, strategic planning, guiding and
leading management teams to make

decisions, facilitation skills, strong

interpersonal and communications.
Governance - corporate governance,

compliance, transparency, board

governance, accountability to stakeholders,
corporate ethics, and values, strengthening
regulatory functions, protecting
shareholder interests, law and other areas
relevant to business/sector and industry in
which Company operates.

Skills Mr. Mr. Mr. Mrs. Mr. Mr.
Gopal | Ravi Mano | Shak | Ashis | Soura

Kuma | Agra |j untal | h bh
r wal Kuma | a Dakal | Agra
Agra r Devi ia wal
walla Agra | Agra

wal wal

Qualifi N N N R N N
cation
S

Experi N N N v N N

ence

Know! N N N v N N
edge

Techn N N N N N N
ology

Leader N N N R N N
ship
Gover N N N R N N

nance
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Disclosure of relationships
between directors inter-se

Mr. Ravi Agrawal, the Managing Director of
the Company is the son of Mrs. Shakuntala
Devi Agrawal, Non-Executive Director of the
Company.

Number of shares and convertible
instruments held by non-
executive directors;

Three out of six directors of the Company
are also the Promoters of the Company

holding majority of promoters
shareholding. Mrs.  Shakuntala Devi
Agrawal, Non-Executive Director of the

Company holds 29,65,500 Equity Shares of
the Company forming 14.07% of the Total
Share Capital of the Company.

Board Diversity

The OBCL Board is a balanced Board,
comprising Executive and Non-Executive
Directors. The Non-Executive Directors also
includes independent professionals. The
Board Diversity Policy of the Company
requires the Board to have balance of sKills,
experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company. OBCL has
been fortunate to have eminent persons
from diverse fields to serve as Directors on
its Board. Pursuant to the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015, OBCL has ensured the
diversity of the Board in terms of
experience, knowledge, perspective,
background, gender, age, and culture.

D&O Insurance

In line with the requirements of Regulation
25(10) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015,
the requirement to undertake Directors and
Officers insurance (‘D and O insurance’) for
all the independent directors of such
qguantum and for such risks as may be
determined by its board of directors is not
applicable to OBCL for the FY 2021-22.

Chairman of the Board:

The Governing Board of OBCL, vide its
Resolution dated February 28, 2022 elected
Mr. Gopal Kumar Agrawalla, Non-Executive
Director as the Chairman of the Governing
Board of OBCL to hold office as Chairman of
the Governing Board for a period effective
from the date of resolution till the expiry of
his term as Director on the Governing
Board of OBCL.

The role and responsibilities of the

Chairman are as under:

1. All meetings of the Board shall be
presided over by the Chairman if
present, but if at any meetings of
Directors, the Chairman is not present at
the time appointed for holding the
same, then in that case the Directors
shall choose one of the Directors
present to preside at the meeting;

2. The Chairman may, unless dissented to
or objected by the majority of Directors
present at a Meeting at which a Quorum
is present, adjourn the Meeting for any
reason, at any stage of the Meeting;

3. It would be the duty of the Chairman to
check, with the assistance of the
Company Secretary, that the Meeting is
duly convened and constituted in
accordance with the Act or any other
applicable guidelines, Rules and
Regulations before proceeding to
transact business;

4. The Chairman shall ensure that the
proceedings of the Meeting are correctly
recorded;

5. The Chairman has absolute discretion to
exclude from the Minutes, matters
which in his opinion are or could
reasonably be regarded as defamatory
of any person, irrelevant or immaterial
to the proceedings or which are
detrimental to the interests of the
Company;

6. The Chairman shall not interfere in the
day-to-day functioning of the Company
and shall limit his role to decision
making on policy issues and to issues as

the Governing Board may decide;
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The Company arranges detailed
.The Chairman shall abstain from presentation on various business aspects to
influencing the employees of the Company ensure familiarizing the independent

in conducting their day to day activities;
-The Chairman shall not be directly involved
in the function of appointment and
promotion of employees unless specifically
so decided by the Governing Board;

-In case any Director requires his views or
opinion on a particular item to be recorded
verbatim in the Minutes, the decision of the
Chairman whether or not to do so shall be
final;

-Minutes of the Meeting of the Board shall
be signed and dated by the Chairman of
the Meeting or by the Chairman of the next
Meeting; and

-The Chairman shall initial each page of the
Minutes, sign the last page and append to
such signature the date on which and the
place where he has signed the Minutes.

Managing Director:

The Managing Director (MD) is at the helm
of operations and responsible for the
Company’'s day-to-day operations. MD
functions according to the guidance and
direction provided by the Board and
provides strategic directions, lays down
policy guidelines and ensures the
implementation of the decisions of the
Board and its various Committees.

Independent Directors:

The following are the independent directors
of the Company as on March 31, 2022:

-Mr. Sourabh Agrawal
-Mr. Ashish Dakalia

The Company has received declarations
from all Independent Directors confirming
that they meet the criteria for
independence in the required format under
the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015.

directors about the different aspects of the
prevailing business environment, economy,
performance of the Company and its
strategies.

»Independent Directors on the Board of
OBCL are not less than 21 years in age and
do not hold any shares in OBCL.

> Attributes:
The Company as a policy inducts only those
persons as Independent Directors who have

integrity, experience and expertise,
foresight, managerial qualities, and ability
to read and understand financial
statements.

»Tenure

The tenure of Independent Directors is in
line with the directives issued by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs and SEBI from time to
time.

>»Freedom to Independent Directors

The Company takes all possible efforts to

enable the Independent Directors to
perform their functions effectively.
However, as per SEBI requirement, the

elected directors shall not interfere in the
day-to-day management of the Company
and focus on the informed and balanced
decision making especially on issues of
strategy, performance, risk management,
resources, key appointments and standard
of conducts. The Company always strives to
strike a balance between both the above
requirements without compromising on
compliance of such requirements.

In the opinion of the Board, the
Independent Directors fulfill the conditions
specified in SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
and are independent of the management.
The evaluation exercise in terms of
Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 was
carried out in a separate meeting of
Independent Directors held on March 3],
2022, for this purpose.

75



C3

Orissa Bengal
—— Corrier Limited 22

Responsibilities of the Board:

The Board shall exercise superintendence,
control and direction of the Company's
affairs towards long term value creation for
all stakeholders. The Board along with its
Committees provide supervision and
direction for the conduct of affairs of the
Company.

The responsibilities of the Board include the

following:

1. Members of Board of Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel shall disclose to
the Board of Directors whether they
directly, indirectly, or on behalf of third
parties, have a material interest in any
transaction or matter directly affecting
the entity;

2. The Board of Directors and Senior
Management shall conduct themselves
so as to meet the expectations of
operational transparency to
stakeholders while at the same time
maintaining confidentiality of
information in order to foster a culture
of good decision-making;

3. Directors shall who is in any way,
whether directly or indirectly, concerned
or interested in a contract or
arrangement or proposed contract or
arrangement entered into or to be
entered into -

a. with a body corporate in which such
director or such director in association
with any other director, holds more
than two per cent shareholding of
that body corporate, or is a promoter,
manager, Chief Executive Officer of
that body corporate; or

b. with a firm or other entity in which,
such director is a partner, owner or
member, as the case may be shall
disclose the nature of his concern or
interest at the meeting of the Board
in which the contract or arrangement
is discussed and shall not participate
in such meeting.

4. Key functions of the Board of Directors: -

a) Reviewing and guiding corporate
strategy, major plans of action, risk policy,

annual budgets and business plans,
setting performance objectives,
monitoring implementation and

corporate performance, and overseeing
major capital expenditures, acquisitions
and divestments.
Monitoring the effectiveness of the
Company’'s governance practices and
making changes as needed.
Selecting, compensating, monitoring and,
when necessary, replacing Key
Managerial Personnel and overseeing
succession planning.
d) Aligning the remuneration of Key
Managerial Personnel and Board of
Directors with the longer term interests of
Company and its shareholders.
Ensuring a transparent nomination
process to the Board of Directors with the
diversity of thought, experience,
knowledge, perspective and gender on
the board of the Company.
f) Monitoring and managing potential
conflicts of interest of management,
members of the Board of Directors and
shareholders, including misuse of
corporate assets and abuse in related
party transactions;
Ensuring the integrity of Company's
accounting and financial reporting
systems, including the independent audit,
and that appropriate systems of control
are in place, in particular, systems for risk
management, financial and operational
control and compliance with the law and
relevant standards;
h) Overseeing the process of disclosure and
communications; and
i) Monitoring and reviewing Board of
Director’s evaluation framework.

g)
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Orissa Bengal
The Board of Directors shall provide 15.
strategic guidance to Company, ensure
effective monitoring of the
management;
The Board of Directors shall set a

corporate culture and the values by
which executives throughout the group
shall behave;

Members of the Board of Directors shall
act on a fully informed basis, in good
faith, with due diligence and care, and in
the best interest of the Company and
the shareholders;

The Board of Directors shall encourage
continuing Directors’ training to ensure
that the members of the Board of
Directors are kept up to date;

Where decisions of the Board of

Directors may affect different
shareholder groups differently, the
Board of Directors shall treat all

shareholders fairly;
The Board of Directors shall maintain
high ethical standards and shall take

into account the interests of
stakeholders;
The Board of Directors shall exercise

objective independent judgement on
corporate affairs;

The Board of Directors shall consider
assigning a sufficient number of non-
executive members of the Board of
Directors capable of exercising
independent judgement to tasks where
there is a potential for conflict of
interest;

The Board of Directors shall ensure that,
while rightly encouraging positive
thinking, these do not result in over-
optimism that either leads to significant
risks not being recognised or exposes
the entity to excessive risk;

The Board of Directors shall have ability
to step back to assist executive
management by challenging the
assumptions underlying strategy,
strategic initiatives (such as
acquisitions), risk appetite, exposures
and the key areas of the Company's
focus;

C3

16.

17.

18.

When Committees of the Board of
Directors are established, their mandate,
composition and working procedures
shall be well defined and disclosed by
the Board of Directors;

Members of the Board of Directors shall
be able to commit themselves
effectively to their responsibilities;

In order to fulfil their responsibilities,
members of the Board of Directors shall
have access to accurate, relevant and
timely information;

The Board of Directors and Senior
Management should facilitate the
Independent Directors to perform their
role effectively as a member of the
Board of Directors.

BOARD MEETINGS

Schedule of Board / Committee
Meetings

The dates of the Board / Committee and the
Annual General Meeting are proposed in
advance. The final annual schedule that is
fixed is circulated to all the Directors as part
of the agenda in the Board meeting for
information.

The Company Secretary attends all Board
meetings and generally assists Directors in
the discharge of their duties and also ensures
good information flow within the Board and
between the Board and Senior Management.
In addition, the Company Secretary attends
to Secretarial and Board governance matters
and is responsible for ensuring that Board
procedures are followed.

Voting on a resolution in the meeting of the
Governing Board is valid only when the
Independent Directors have cast their vote
on such resolution.
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Board Agenda

The Board agenda is prepared by the
Company Secretary and are finalised in
consultation with the MD. The Board
agenda and notes thereof are ordinarily
sent to the Directors in advance to enable
them to read and comprehend the matters
to be dealt with and seek further
information / clarification, if required.

The agenda of the Board meetings is
managed in such a way that it allows for
flexibility when it is needed. Directors are
provided with complete information related
to agenda items in a timely manner.
Wherever it is not practicable to attach any
document to the agenda, the same is
tabled before the meeting with specific
reference to this effect in the agenda. In
special and exceptional circumstances,
additional or supplementary items on the
agenda are permitted after obtaining
permission of the Chairman of the
Board/Meeting and with the concurrence of
the Independent Directors.

The Board has chosen to receive all its
agenda papers electronically for all its
Board and Committee meetings and has
eliminated the need for hard copy of
Agenda Papers. However, the hard copy of
the Board agenda papers are sent to the
Directors at specific request.

At the quarterly Board meetings, the MD
gives a comprehensive update on OBCL’s
business and operations. The CFO presents
the financial performance and significant
financial highlights.

Certain business heads provide an update
on their areas of business and Key
Management Personnel are present at
Board meetings, when required. Agenda
also includes minutes of the meetings of all
the Board and its Committees for the
information of the Board.

For any business exigencies, the resolutions
are passed by circulation and later placed at
the subsequent Board / Committee
Meeting for noting. The Chairpersons of
various Board Committees brief the Board
on all the important matters discussed and
decided at their respective Committee
meetings, which are generally held prior to
the Board meeting.

The Company also provides regular updates
to the Board members on material changes
to regulatory requirements applicable to
the Directors periodically.

The minutes of Board meetings are
prepared with details of the matters
considered by the Board and are reviewed
by the Managing Director before being
circulated to the other Directors for their
comments.

Number of Board Meetings

The Board of Directors of the Company met
thirteen times during the year on the
following dates: April 24, 2021, May 07, 2021,
May 18, 2021, July 19, 2021, August 02, 2021,

August 30, 2021, September 24, 2021,
November 01, 2021, November 14, 2021,
December 10, 2021, February 21, 2022,

February 28, 2022 and March 31, 2022. The
maximum gap between any two meetings
was less than one hundred and twenty days.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD AND DIRECTORSHIPS

As mandated by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
Directors are neither member of more than ten Board level Committees or act as Chairperson
of more than five such committees across all entities in which he or she is a Director. Table
below gives the details of the composition of the Board, attendance and details of Committee

Membership and Committee Chairmanships.

Name of
the Category

Director

Mr. Gopal Chairman
- Non-

Kumar .

Agrawalla Executive
Director

Mr. Ravi | Managin

Agrawal g Director
s el Wholetim
Kumar R
e Director
Agrawal
Mrs.
Shakuntala | Non-
. Executive
Devi .
Director
Agrawal
Non-
Mr. Ashish anjgu:r\:g
Dakalia P
ent
Director
Non-
Mr. Executive
Sourabh Independ
Agrawal ent
Director
Y=Yes; N=No

Attendance Particulars

Number of
Board
Meetings
during the
year

Atten
Held ded
13 2
13 13
13 10
13 13
13 6
13 6

Last AGM

NA

NA

NA

No. of Directorships/Chairmanships and Committee
Chairmanships / Memberships

Directorship(
s)/
Chairmanshi
p(s)*[
Reg.17A of
SEBI LODR
Regulations]
(Listed entity)

Directorship (s)/
Chairmanship(s)*
[Reg.17A of SEBI
LODR Regulations]
(unlisted entity)

2(1.Benchmark
Agro and Farms

Private Limited
and 2. Raipur
Realty Private
Limited)

1 (Jharkhand Milk
Products Private
Limited)

Committee | Committee
Membership | Chairmanshi
) p (s) ™
[Reg.26(1) of | [Reg.26(1) of
SEBI LODR SEBI LODR
Regulations] | Regulations]

(0] (0]
(0] (0]
2 2
2 (0]

* The Directorships/ Committee memberships held by Directors as mentioned above, do not
Directorships/Committee memberships in Section 8 Companies.
*Memberships/Chairmanships of only the Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee of all Public
Companies have been considered.

F k

include
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Separation of Offices of Chairman
& Chief Executive Officer

The Company has been following the
principle of separation of the role of
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
Mr. Gopal Kumar Agrawalla is the
Non-Executive Chairman of the Board. Mr.
Ravi Agrawal is the Managing Director of
the Company and is entrusted with the day-
to-day management of the affairs of the
Company. The Managing Director carries
out his functions subject to
superintendence, control, and
management of the Board of Directors of
the Company.

On-going familiarisation
programme for existing Directors
of the Board

The Company conducts orientation
programs for Directors covering various
operations of the Company so as to
familiarise themselves with the various
functions being carried out by the
Company. The details of familiarization

programmes imparted to independent
directors are given in the Company's
website:

https://www.obclimited.com/policies.php

The Company also provides training in
various fields such as operations, risk
management, compliance, etc. to all the
Directors regularly. Every Director inducted
on the Board is well known in the transport
industry and has the ability to understand
basic financial statements and information
and related documents/papers. The regular
updates inter-alia provided by the Company
to the Board include the following:

» Annual operating plans and budgets
and any updates;

» Capital budgets and any updates;

» Quarterly results for the listed entity and
its operating divisions or business
segments;

»Minutes of meetings of audit committee
and other committees of the board of
directors;

»The information on recruitment and
remuneration of senior officers just below
the level of board of directors, including
appointment or removal of Chief Financial
Officer and the Company Secretary;

»Show cause, demand, prosecution notices
and penalty notices, which are materially
important, if any;

>Fatal or serious accidents,
occurrences, any material
pollution problems, if any;

»Any material default in financial obligations
to and by the listed entity, or substantial
non-payment for goods sold by the listed
entity, if any;

»Any issue, which involves possible public or
product liability claims of substantial
nature, including any judgement or order
which, may have passed strictures on the
conduct of the listed entity or taken an
adverse view regarding another enterprise
that may have negative implications on the
listed entity, if any;

»Details of any joint venture or collaboration
agreement, if any;

»Transactions that involve substantial
payment towards goodwill, brand equity, or
intellectual property, if any;

»Significant labour problems and their
proposed solutions, if any.

»Any significant development in Human
Resources/ Industrial Relations front like
sighing of wage agreement,
implementation of Voluntary Retirement
Scheme etc.

»>Sale of investments, subsidiaries, assets
which are material in nature and not in
normal course of business, if any;

»Quarterly details of foreign exchange
exposures and the steps taken by
management to limit the risks of adverse
exchange rate movement, if material; and

»Non-compliance of any regulatory,
statutory or listing requirements and
shareholders service such as non-payment
of dividend, delay in share transfer etc., if
any.

dangerous
effluent or
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A report on compliance of various laws,
rules, and regulations, to which the
Company is subjected, is placed before the
Audit Committee for its review. The Audit
Committee from time to time reviews the
report and gives  suggestions  for
improvement of compliance level/process.
Besides the above, the compliance
certificate as envisaged in Regulation 17 of
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 is also
provided to the Board by the Managing
Director and the Chief Financial Officer.

Succession planning

Orissa Bengal Carrier Limited has
formulated and adopted a policy on
succession planning for the Board,
Managing Director, Key Management

Personnel and Critical roles.

Code of Conduct

A code of conduct for Directors and Senior
Management Personnel of the Company is
framed as per the requirement of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the
same has been hosted on the website of
the Company. The Directors and the Senior
Management Personnel of the Company
have affirmed compliance to the Code of
Conduct of the Company. The Managing
Director of the Company has affirmed to
the Board of Directors that the Code of

Conduct has been complied by the
Directors and senior management
personnel and the same is attached

herewith and forms part of this Annual
Report.

As per the requirement of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015, the code of conduct, has
been hosted on the website of the
Company at

https://www.obclimited.com/policies.php

Remuneration of Directors

In order to align compensation levels with
market levels and at the same time attract,
retain and motivate Directors of the quality
required to run the Company successfully,
the compensation being paid to Managing

Director is periodically reviewed and
revised. The remuneration includes both
fixed and variable components. The

Company is allowed to pay only sitting fee
to its Non-executive Directors. The terms
and conditions of appointment of
Independent Directors are governed by the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 &
Rules laid down thereunder, SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and the circulars issued
thereunder by MCA and SEBI.

The terms and conditions of service in
respect of the Managing Director of the
Company are governed by the resolution
passed by the shareholders, provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 & Rules laid down
thereunder.

Accordingly, the Company has framed
Remuneration policy in conformity with
norms specified by SEBI for its employees,
which include Key Management Personnel
and the Managing Director. For details on
the Remuneration Policy, please refer to the
Annexure-3 to the Director’s Report.
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The details of remuneration paid to the Directors during FY 2021-22 is given below:-

Rs. 3,00,000/- (Rupees
Three Lakhs only) Per
Month (excluding
reimbursement of
expenses, if any) which
includes the variable
pay and perquisites.

Managing

Mr. Ravi Agrawal Director

Rs.1,50,000/- (Rupees
One Lakh Fifty
Thousand only) Per
Month (excluding
reimbursement of
expenses, if any) which
includes the variable
pay and perquisites.

Wholetime
Director

Mr. Manoj Kumar
Agrawal

Rs. 75,000/-Monthly
commission

Non-Executive
Director

Mrs. Shakuntala Devi
Agrawal

No sitting fees was paid
to the Managing
Director for attending
meeting of the Board
of Directors or any
committee thereof.
Total Remuneration of
all the Directors in any
financial year did not
exceed 11% of the net
profit of the Company
during that year.

No sitting fees will be
paid to the Whole Time
Director for attending
meeting of the Board
of Directors or any
committee thereof.
Total Remuneration of
all the Directors in any
financial year did not
exceed 11% of the net
profit of the Company
during that year.

There was no sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors for attending the meetings of the
Board and its Committees during the FY 2021-22. The details of all pecuniary relationship or
transactions of the Company with the Directors form part of the Annual Report as Annexure 1.

The Criteria of making payments to the Non-executive Directors of the Company have been
disclosed on the website of the Company in the following link:

https://www.obclimited.com/policies.php

Currently, there are four Committees of the Board required as per the Companies Act, 2013 and
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, namely the Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration
Committee, Stakeholder Relationship Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee.

The terms of reference of the Board Committees are determined by the Board from time-to-time.
Meetings of the Board Committees are normally convened by the respective Committee
Chairman. Matters requiring the Board's attention / approval, as emanating from the Board
Committee Meetings, are placed before the Board with clearance of the Committee Chairman.
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All  the recommendations made by Board
Committees during the year were accepted by the
Board. Minutes of the Board Committee Meetings
are placed before the Board for its information and
noting.

The role and composition of these Committees,
including the number of meetings held during the
financial year and the related attendance, are
provided below:

Audit Committee

The primary function of the Audit Committee is to
assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling its
oversight responsibilities by reviewing the financial
information to be provided to the shareholders and
others, the systems of internal controls, which the
management and the Board of Directors have
established, financial reporting and the compliance
process. The Committee maintains open
communication with statutory auditors, internal
auditors, and operational auditors. The Internal
Auditors report directly to the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee reviews the reports of the
internal auditors, operational auditors, statutory
auditors, and secretarial auditors. The terms of
reference of Audit Committee is as per the
provisions contained in the Companies Act, 2013
and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Our Company has constituted the Audit
Committee, as per section 177 of the Companies Act
2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015; vide resolution passed at the
meeting of the Board of Directors held on
December 15, 2017 and re-constituted vide
resolution passed at the meeting of the Board of
Directors held on November 01, 2021.

The committee presently comprises the
following three (3) directors:
Name of the (Sizar:\urf\ittlen Nature of
Director Directorship
M. Ashish . Non - Executive
" Chairman | Independent
Dakalia .
Director
Non - Executive
Mr. Sourabh
Member Independent
Agrawal .
Director
Mr. Gopal .
P Non - Executive
Kumar Member .
Director
Agrawalla

The Audit Committee of the Company met 5
times during the Financial Year on the
following June 28, 2021, July 08, 2021, July 19,
2021, November 14, 2021 and February 21,
2022. The details of the attendance of
members of the Audit Committee at their
meetings held on the above dates are given
below:-

Mr. Raj Kumar
Jain
Mr. Sahil Batra
Mr. Manoj
Kumar Agrawal
Mr. Ashish
Dakalia
Mr. Sourabh
Agrawal
Mr. Gopal
Kumar
Agrawalla

The Officer responsible for the finance
function and the representatives of the
statutory auditors, internal auditors and
operational auditors are regularly invited to
the Audit Committee meetings. The
Company Secretary of the Company acts as
the Secretary to the Audit Committee.

All members of the Audit Committee have
requisite accounting and financial
management expertise. Mr. Raj Kumar Jain,
previous Chairman of the Audit Committee
attended the Annual General Meeting (AGM)
held on September 29, 2021 to answer
shareholders queries.

Set forth below are the scope, functions and
the terms of reference of our Audit
Committee, in accordance with Section 177 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.
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Tenure

The Audit Committee continues to be in
function as a committee of the Board until
otherwise resolved by the Board, to carry
out the functions of the Audit Committee as
approved by the Board.

Meetings

As required under Regulation 18 of the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Audit
Committee meets at least four times in a
year, and not more than 120 days has
elapsed between two meetings. The
qguorum of the meeting is two members
present, or one-third of the members,
whichever is greater, provided that there
should be a minimum of two independent
members present

Powers of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee have the following

powers:

- To investigate any activity within its terms
of reference;

- To seek information from any employee;

- To obtain outside legal or other
professional advice; and

- To secure attendance of outsiders with
relevant expertise, if it considers
necessary.

Role of Audit Committee

The role of the Audit Committee includes

the following:

* Recommendation for appointment,
remuneration and terms of appointment
of auditors of the Company;

* Review and monitor the auditor’s
independence and performance, and
effectiveness of audit process;

* Examination of the financial
and the auditors’ report thereon;

* Granting the omnibus approval in line
with Policy on Related Party Transactions
and such approval shall be applicable in
respect of transactions which are
repetitive in nature. Also granting of
approval or any subsequent modification
of transactions of the Company with
related parties;

statement
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Scrutiny of loans and
investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the
Company, wherever it is necessary;
Evaluation of internal financial
and risk management systems;
Monitoring the end use of funds raised
through public offers and related matters;
Call for the comments of the auditors
about internal control systems, the scope
of audit, including the observations of the
auditors and review of financial statement
before their submission to the Board and
may also discuss any related issues with
the internal and statutory auditors and the
management of the Company;

Oversight of the Company's financial
reporting process and the disclosure of its
financial information to ensure that the
financial statement is correct, sufficient
and credible;

Approval of payment to statutory auditors
for any other services rendered by the
statutory auditors;

Reviewing with the management, the
annual financial statements and auditor's
report thereon before submission to the
board for approval, with particular
reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the
Director’'s Responsibility Statement to
be included in the Board's report in
terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of
section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies
and practices and reasons for the same;

c. Major accounting entries involving
estimates based on the exercise of
judgment by management;

d. Significant adjustments made in the
financial statements arising out of audit
findings;

e. Compliance with listing and other legal

inter-corporate

controls

requirements relating to financial
statements;
f. Disclosure of any related party

transactions; and
g. Qualifications in the draft audit report.
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* Reviewing, with the management, the
quarterly financial statements before
submission to the Board for approval;

* Reviewing with the management, the
statement of uses / application of funds
raised through an issue (public issue,
rights issue, preferential issue), the
statement of funds utilized for purposes
other than those stated in the offer
document / prospectus / notice and the
report submitted by the monitoring
agency monitoring the utilisation of
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and
making appropriate recommendations to
the Board to take up steps in this matter;
Reviewing with the management,
performance of statutory and internal
auditors, adequacy of the internal control
systems;
Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit
function, if any, including the structure of
the internal audit department, staffing
and seniority of the official heading the
department, reporting structure coverage
and frequency of internal audit;
* Discussion with internal auditors of any
significant findings and follow up thereon;
Reviewing the findings of any internal
investigations by the internal auditors into
matters where there is suspected fraud or
irregularity or a failure of internal control
systems of a material nature and reporting
the matter to the board;

Discussion with statutory auditors before

the audit commences, about the nature

and scope of audit as well as post-audit
discussion to ascertain any area of
concern;

* To look into the reasons for substantial
defaults in the payment to the depositors,
debenture holders, shareholders (in case
of non-payment of declared dividends)
and creditors;

* To review the functioning of the Whistle
Blower mechanism;
Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e. the
whole-time Finance Director or any other
person heading the finance function or
discharging that function) after assessing
the qualifications, experience and
background, etc. of the candidate;

+ Examination of the Secretarial Audit

reports and matters connected therewith;
*The Audit Committee shall mandatorily
review the following information:

a. Management discussion and analysis of
financial condition and results of
operations;

b. Statement of significant related party
transactions (as defined by the Audit
Committee), submitted by
management;

c. Management letters / letters of internal
control weaknesses issued by the
statutory auditors;

d. Internal audit reports relating to internal
control weaknesses; and

e. The appointment, removal and terms of
remuneration of the Chief internal
auditor shall be subject to review by the
Audit Committee.

» Review the utilization of loans and/ or
advances from/investment by the holding
Company in the subsidiary exceeding
rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of
the subsidiary, whichever is lower
including existing loans /advances /
investments;

« Consider and comment on rationale, cost-

benefits and impact of schemes involving

merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on
the Company and its Shareholders; and

Carrying out any other function as the

Audit Committee may deem fit with the

approval of the Board.

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

As per requirements of the Companies Act,
2013, the Company is required to constitute
a Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) consisting of three or
more non-executive directors out of which
not less than one-half shall be independent
directors. The Chairman of NRC shall be
different from Chairman of the Board.

85



Orissa Bengal
—— Corrier Limited 22

The NRC has laid down the policy for
compensation of employees including Key
Management Personnel in terms of the
compensation norms prescribed by the
SEBI. The NRC has also laid down
performance evaluation criteria for the
Board of Directors, individual directors
(including independent directors) and
Committees of the Board of Directors.

Our Company has constituted a
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
in accordance section 178 of Companies Act
2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The
constitution of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee was approved by
a Meeting of the Board of Directors held on
December 15, 2017 April and re-constituted
vide resolution passed at the meeting of the
Board of Directors held on November 0],
2021.

The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee comprises the following
Directors:

Name of Status in Nature of
Director Committee | Directorship
Non-
Executive
Mr. Ashish Chairman and
Dakalia Independe
-nt
Director
Non-
Mr. Executive
Sourabh Member and
Agrawal Independe
nt Director
Mrs.
Non-
Shal.<untala Member Executive
Devi .
Director
Agrawal

The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Company met 5 times
during the Financial Year on the following
dates May 07, 2021, August 30, 2021,
November 14, 2021, February 28, 2022 and
March 31, 2022. The details of the
attendance of members of the Committee
at their meetings held on the above dates
are given below:-

5 2
5 2
5 5
5 3
5 3

Mr. Sahil Batra, previous Chairman of the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee
attended the Annual General Meeting (AGM)
held on September 29, 2021 to answer
shareholders queries.

The information regarding the performance
evaluation criteria of Independent Directors is
covered in the Director’'s Report.

The scope and functions of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee are in
accordance with Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Listing Regulations and the SECC
Regulations.
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The scope and function of the Committee

and its terms of reference includes the
following:

Tenure

The Nomination and Remuneration

Committee continue to be in function as a
committee of the Board until otherwise
resolved by the Board.

Meetings

The committee meets as and when the
need arises for review of Managerial
Remuneration and other matters as per
the scope of the Committee. The quorum
for the meeting is one third of the total
strength of the committee or two
members, whichever is higher. Meeting of
the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is called by at least seven days’
notice in advance.

Role of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee includes:

1. The Committee shall identify persons
who are qualified to become Directors
and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the
criteria laid down, recommend to the
Board their appointment and removal
and shall specify the manner for
effective evaluation of performance of
Board, its committees and individual
Directors to be carried out either by the

Board, by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee or by an
independent external agency and
review its implementation and

compliance;

2. The Committee shall formulate the
criteria for evaluation of performance of
independent directors and the board of
directors;

3. The Committee shall decide whether to
extend or continue the term of
appointment of the independent
director, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of independent
directors.

4. The Committee shall recommend to the
board, all remuneration, in whatever
form, payable to senior management

5. The Committee shall formulate the
criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of
a director and recommend to the Board
a policy, relating to the remuneration for
the Directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees;

6. For every appointment of an
independent director, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee shall
evaluate the balance of  skills,
knowledge and experience on the
Board and on the basis of such
evaluation, prepare a description of the
role and capabilities required of an

independent director. The person
recommended to the Board for
appointment as an independent
director shall have the capabilities

identified in such description.

7. The Committee shall devise a policy on
diversity of board of directors

8. any other applicable provisions as may
be prescribed by the Companies Act,
2013; and

9. any other applicable regulations and

provisions as may be prescribed by the
Securities & Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements Regulations), 2015

Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee

Our Company has constituted a
shareholder / investors grievance
committee “Stakeholders’ Relationship

Committee” to redress complaints of the
shareholders. The Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee was constituted
vide resolution passed at the meeting of
the Board of Directors held on December
15, 2017 and re-constituted vide resolution
passed at the meeting of the Board of
Directors held on November 01, 2021.
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The  Stakeholders’
Committee comprises:

Relationship

Non-Executive

Mr. Ashish

Dakalia Chairman ar'wd Independent
Director
Mr. Sourabh Non-Executive
Member and Independent
Agrawal .
Director
Mr. Ravi Member Executive
Agrawal Director

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
of the Company met once in the FY 2021-22
on August 02, 2021 as per the provisions of
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. All the
members had attended the meeting.

Mr. Sahil Batra, previous Chairman of the
Stakeholders’ Relationship  Committee
attended the Annual General Meeting
(AGM) held on September 29, 2021 to
answer shareholders queries.

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee
oversees all matters pertaining to investors
of our Company. The Company has not
received any complaint against it from
shareholders of OBCL during the FY 2021-22.
Ms. Muskaan Gupta is the Company
Secretary & Compliance Officer of the
Company.

Tenure

The Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee
continues to be in function as a committee
of the Board until otherwise resolved by the
Board, to carry out the functions of the
Stakeholder’'s Relationship Committee as
approved by the Board.

Meetings

The Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee
meets as and when required with at least
one meeting in a year and reports to the
Board with regards to the status of
redressal of complaints received from the
shareholders of the Company. The quorum
of the meeting is two members present.

Role of the Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee

The scope and function of the Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee and its terms of
reference shall include the following:
Considers and resolves grievances of
security holders, including but not limited
to:

- Allotment, transfer of shares including
transmission, splitting of shares, changing
joint holding into single holding and vice
versa, issue of duplicate shares in lieu of
those torn, destroyed, lost or defaced or
where the cages in the reverse for
recording transfers have been fully utilized

- Issue of duplicate certificates and new
certificates on split/consolidation/renewal,
etc.; and

- Review the process and mechanism of
redressal of Shareholders /Investors
grievance and suggest measures of
improving the system of redressal of

Shareholders /Investors grievances.

- Non-receipt of share certificate(s),
non-receipt of declared dividends, non-
receipt of interest/dividend warrants, non-
receipt of annual report and any other
grievance/complaints with Company or
any officer of the Company arising out in
discharge of his duties.
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- Oversee the performance of the Registrar &
Share Transfer Agent and also review and
take note of complaints directly received
and resolved them.

- Oversee the implementation and
compliance of the Code of Conduct
adopted by the Company for prevention of
Insider Trading for Listed Companies as

specified in the Securities & Exchange
Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended

from time to time.

- Resolving the grievances of the security
holders of the listed entity including
complaints related to transfer/transmission
of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-
receipt of declared dividends, issue of
new/duplicate certificates, general
meetings etc.

- Review of measures taken for effective
exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

- Review of adherence to the service
standards adopted by the listed entity in
respect of various services being rendered
by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

- Review of the various measures and
initiatives taken by the listed entity for
reducing the quantum of unclaimed
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of
dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory
notices by the shareholders of the
Company

- Any other power specifically assigned by
the Board of Directors of the Company
from time to time by way of resolution
passed by it in a duly conducted Meeting.

Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee
The Corporate Social Responsibility

Committee was required to be constituted
as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, inter alia, to formulate and recommend
to the Board a Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy, to recommend the
amount of expenditure to be incurred on the
activities, and to monitor the Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy of the Company
from time to time.

C3

Our Company has constituted a Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee in
accordance section 135 of Companies Act
2013. The constitution of the Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee was
approved by a Meeting of the Board of
Directors held on December 15, 2017 and
re-constituted vide resolution passed at
the meeting of the Board of Directors held
on November 01, 2021.

The Corporate Social Responsibility

Committee comprises the
following Directors:
Name of ST ‘|n Nature of
. Committ . ;
Director Directorship
ee
e e | O Executive
. and Independent
Dakalia n .
Director
Mr. Ravi Member Executive
Agrawal Director
Mrs.
Shakuntal Non-Executive
. Member .
a Devi Director
Agrawal
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The Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee of the Company met 3 times
during the Financial Year 2021-22 on the
following dates May 07, 2021, November 14,
2021 and March 31, 2022.The details of the
attendance of members of the Committee
at their meetings held on the above dates
are given below:-

3 1
3 1
3 3
3 2
3 2

« Formulate and recommend the CSR
Policy to the Board for approval, monitor
its implementation and suggest
modifications from time to time for the
same;
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- Approve or

Formulate and recommend the Board for
approval, an Annual Action Plan in
pursuance of the CSR Policy which shall
include:

a) the list of CSR projects or programmes

approved to be undertaken in the

selected core focus areas;

b) manner of execution of such projects or

programmes;

c) modalities of utilization of funds;
d) implementation

schedules for the

projects or programmes;

e) monitoring & reporting mechanism for

the projects or programmes;

approve and recommend the details of
need & impact assessment (if applicable)
for the projects undertaken by the
Company Provided that the Board may
alter such plan at any time during the
financial year, as per the
recommendation of its CSR Committee,
based on the reasonable justification to
that effect.

ratify the CSR projects
undertaken by NSE Foundation in line with
the approved CSR Policy to ensure
seamless implementation of the projects
and fulfillment of the mandate set out
under Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules thereunder;

- Report to the Board the manner of

utilization of the annual CSR budget in
pursuance of the CSR policy, unspent funds
or excess spend towards CSR projects and
ensure that the administrative overheads
shall not exceed five per cent of the total
CSR expenditure of the Company for any
financial year;

- Approve and recommend to the Board an

Annual Report on the CSR activities in a
format prescribed in the Companies Act,
2013;

- Report to the Board on the progress of the

various CSR projects undertaken by NSE
Foundation or through any entity as
prescribed under Section 135 of the
Companies Act and CSR rules thereunder
and the expenditure incurred for the same
on a periodic basis;
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- Establish a transparent monitoring
mechanism for ensuring implementation of
the CSR programme.

iii. AUDITORS

The Audit Committee considers the profile of
the audit firms, qualifications and experience
of partners auditing books and accounts of
the Company, strengths and weaknesses, if
any, of the audit firm and other related
aspects and then recommends appointment
of Auditor and the remuneration payable to
them to the Board/shareholders. The Audit
Committee also periodically discusses with
the Auditors the annual audit programme
and the depth and detailing of the audit plan
to be undertaken by them.

The Board has appointed an external firm of
Chartered Accountants as its internal auditor
in order to ensure the independence and
credibility of the internal audit process.

(i) Statutory Auditor:

M/s.  Agrawal & Pansari, Chartered
Accountants, Raipur were appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company at the
Annual General Meeting held on, 09th July,
2018 to hold office until conclusion of Annual
General Meeting to be held in the year 2023.

In continuation of its term of appointment,
the said Audit Firm conducted the Statutory
Audit of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2022.

Section 139 of the Act has been amended
vide the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 07t
May, 2018 and has done away with the
requirement of seeking ratification of
Members for appointment of Auditors at
every annual general meeting. Accordingly,
no resolution is being proposed for
ratification of appointment of Statutory
Auditors at the ensuing AGM.

Under Section 139 and 141 of the Act and
Rules framed there under, M/s. Agrawal &
Pansari confirmed that they are not
disqualified from continuing as Statutory
Auditors of the Company and furnished a
valid certificate issued by the Peer Review
Board of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

(ii) Internal Auditor:

M/s G. Kumar & Company, Chartered
Accountants, Raipur, (FRN No. 0322108E)
the Internal Auditors of the Company have
resigned with effect from December 28,
2021. M/s. Agrawal Mittal & Associates,
Chartered Accountants, Raipur, (FRN No.
028560C) were appointed as the Internal
Auditors of the Company for the FY 2021-22
and onwards.

(iii) Secretarial Auditor

The Board has appointed M/s. Anil Agrawal
& Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries, Raipur to conduct Secretarial
Audit of the Company for the financial year
ended 3l1st March, 2022 in compliance with
the provisions of Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The report of the
Secretarial Auditors is placed before the
Audit Committee and the Board.

The Board has also appointed M/s. Anil
Agrawal & Associates., Practicing Company
Secretaries, to Scrutinize the voting process
in the AGM and provide a fair report
accordingly. The Scrutinizer shall, after the
conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count
the votes cast during the AGM and,
thereafter, unblock the votes cast through
remote e-Voting and shall make, not later
than 48 hours from the conclusion of the
AGM, a Consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of
the total votes cast in favour or against, if
any, to the Chairman or a person authorized
by him in writing, who shall countersign the
same and declare the result of the voting

forthwith.
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Cost Accounts and Cost Auditors vii. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER
The requirement relating to disclosure and DSOS,
9 g A. Annual General Meeting The 27th

the maintenance of cost records as specified
by the Central Government under section
148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
required to be made by the Company, and
accordingly, such accounts and records are
not prepared and maintained. Hence no cost
accounts are required to be maintained nor
are Cost Auditors required to be appointed
by the Company.

iv. ANNUAL SECRETARIAL
COMPLIANCE REPORT

Orissa Bengal Carrier Limited has
undertaken an audit for the financial year
2021-22 for all applicable compliances as per
Securities and Exchange Board of India
Regulations and Circulars/Guidelines issued
thereunder.

The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report
has been obtained from M/s. Anil Agrawal &
Associates, Company Secretaries in terms of
SEBI circular of February 8, 2019 and SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015. The Annual
Secretarial Compliance Report is also
hoisted on the website of the Company at
https://www.obclimited.com/other-
information.php

v. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

The Annual Report includes a detailed
report on Management Discussion and
Analysis.

vi. CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

The Managing Director and CFO
Certification of the financial statements for
the financial year 2021-22 is enclosed at the
end of the report.

Annual General Meeting(AGM) of the
Company will be held on Tuesday,
September 06, 2022 at 10:00 A.M. at the
Corporate Office of the Company i.e. A-1,
3rd Floor, C.GC. Elite Complex, Opp Mandi
Gate, Pandri Main Road, Raipur-492001.
For details, please refer to the Notice of
this AGM.

B. Financial Year: 2021-22

C. Dividend Payment date: within 10 days
from the date of declaration by the
shareholders at the AGM. Proposed
dividend for financial year 2021-22: Nil

D. The name and address of each stock
exchange(s) at which the listed entity's

securities are listed )
The Equity Shares of the Company are listed

on BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

National Stock
BSE Limited Exchange of India
Phiroze Limited
Jeejeebhoy Exchange Plaza, Plot
Towers, No. C-1, Block G,
Dalal Street, Bandra Kurla Complex,

Mumbai - 400001 | Bandra (East)

Mumbai — 400051

The annual listing fee to each of the
above stock exchange(s) has been paid
for the FY 2021-22.

E. Stock code;

Scrip Code: 541206
Trading Symbol: OBCL
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F. Market price data- high, low during each month in last financial year;

Month | Apr 21

Market
Price
High

Market
Price
Low

2275

May
21

Jun

21

Jul 21

26.00 | 27.00 | 37.00  42.50

2250 | 22.40 | 28.85

Aug

2]

47.40

35.00

Sep
21

81.40

Oct
21

126.4

Nov
21

181.95

Dec
21

332.10

173.0

46.00 | 80.00 126.75

Jan

22

362.
90

175.
40

Feb
22

Mar
22

214.
00

186.
15

169.
10

125.
10

G. Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex, CRISIL Index etc;

The performance of the stocks of the Company during the FY 2021-22 is as follows:

Months

Apr-21
May-21
Jun-21
Jul-21
Aug-21
Sept-21
Oct-21
Nov-21
Dec-21
Jan-22
Feb-22
Mar-22

OBCL Share Price on BSE v/s BSE Sensex FY 2021-22

BSE Sensex

Close

48,782.36
51,937.44
52,482.71
52,586.84
57,552.39
59,126.36
59,306.93
57,064.87
58,253.82
58,014.17
56,247.28
58,568.51

OBCL Share Price

High

26.00
27.00
37.00
42.50
47.40
81.40
126.40
181.95
332.10
362.90
214.00
186.15

Low

22.75
22.50
22.40
28.85
35.00
46.00
80.00
126.75
173.00
175.40
169.10
125.10

OBCL Share Price on BSE and BSE Sensex Trend

Close

23.25

23.00

31.00

42.00
45.95

80.80
124.25
174.30
332.10
181.90
174.10
125.10

No. of
Shares
Traded

during the

Month

1,66,000
1,04,000
1,40,000
13,32,000
18,84,000
40,92,000
55,48,000
57,28,000
52,60,000
35,38,000
22,66,000
28,14,000

Total Turnover

41,11,000
25,42,600
41,89,600
5,14,17,200

7,72,85,600
24,84,18,100
57,78,41,500
91,27,44,500
1,30,09,91,800
96,39,61,200
43,11,66,900
43,45,87,000
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H. During the FY 2021-22, the securities of the Company were not suspended from trading.

Registrar and Transfer Agent are as under:

Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd,

Registrar and Transfer Agent: The address for communication and contact details of the

Address: S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road,

Andheri (East),Mumbai,Maharashtra,400093
Tel : +91-22-62638200; Fax : +91-22-62638299;
E-mail: investor@bigshareonline.com;
Website: www.bigshareonline.com;

Contact Person: Mr. Jibu John

SEBI Registration No: INROO0O001385

L
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J. Share Transfer system: The equity shares
of OBCL are in dematerialised form and is
freely transferable.

K. Distribution of shareholding:

The distribution of shareholding is as follows:

(A) Promoter &

(o)
Promoter Group 68.56%
(B) Public 31.44%
L. Dematerialization of shares: The

Company’s shares are dematerialised.

M. Outstanding global depository receipts or
american depository receipts or warrants
or any convertible instruments,
conversion date and likely impact on

equity;

During the FY 2021-22, there were no
outstanding global depository receipts or
american depository receipts or warrants or
any convertible instruments. Accordingly the
disclosure of conversion date and likely
impact on equity are not applicable to the
Company

N. Commodity price risk or foreign
exchange risk and hedging activities:
OBCL does not participate in
commodities market. Hence, the

disclosure of commodity price risks and
commodity hedging activities is not
applicable to the Company.

O. Plant locations: None

P. Address for correspondence:

Corporate Office of the Company i.e. A-1, 3rd
Floor, C.G. Elite Complex, Opp Mandi Gate,
Pandri Main Road, Raipur-492001. The
Company is also having its branch offices at
around 40 locations. The details of locations
of branch offices are displayed on the
website of the Company in the following
link:

https://www.obclimited.com/branch-
offices.php

Shareholders are requested to intimate all
changes pertaining to their Bank details,
email addresses, Power of Attorney, change of
name, change of address, contact details, etc,,
to their Depository Participants (DP).

Q. Compliance Officer- Ms. Muskaan Gupta is

the Company Secretary & Compliance
Officer of OBCL.

R. Credit Ratings

Orissa Bengal Carrier Limited has received
reaffirmation of its corporate credit rating of
‘CCR BBB' from CRISIL. A 'CCR BBB' rating
indicates Moderate degree of strength with
regard to honoring debt obligations
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VIIl. OTHER DISCLOSURES

1) Basis of related party transactions

The transactions with related parties are entered in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s
length price. The details of the related party transactions are disclosed in the Annual Report. The
‘Policy on dealing with related party transactions’ of the Company is available on the website of
the Company:

https://www.obclimited.com/pdf/3.-Policy-on-materiality-of-related-party-transactions.pdf

The Audit Committee of the Company has granted omnibus approval for the Related Party
Transactions (RPTs) which are of repetitive nature and / or entered in the ordinary course of
business and are at arm’s length.

2) Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by
SEBI or any other statutory authority on any matter related to capital markets during the last

three years:
There were no Penalties levied on the Company during the current financial year. The details of

the fine levied by BSE Limited for late submission of financial statements as per the provisions
of Regulation 33 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 are as follows:

Fine payable by the Company (inclusive of
GST @18%) as on July 29, 2021

Applicable

Ssgr:ig%nR())f Fine Fines Levied

Regulations prescribed for

2015 Basic Fine | GST@18% | ol Fine
Paid

Regulation 33 (For the

Non- quarter/year

submission of ended March

the financial SZ St'ﬁlot?w/é PET 1 2021)

results within dai’e of Late 95,000 17,100 112,200

the period compliance submission

prescribed P Financial

under this Result late

regulation Submitted
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3) Vigil mechanism / Whistle
Blower Policy

The Company has established a mechanism
for Directors and employees to report
concerns about unethical behavior, actual or
suspected fraud, or violation of the code of
conduct or ethics policy. The Company also
provides for adequate safeguards against
victimization of employees who avail of the
mechanism and also allows direct access to
the Chairman of the Audit Committee in
exceptional cases. No personnel have been
denied access to the audit committee.
Details of the Policy have been disclosed on
the website of the Company.

Details of the Policy have been disclosed on
the website of the Company.

https://www.obclimited.com/pdf/9.-Whistle-
Blower-Policy.pdf

4) Compliance with the non-
mandatory requirements [Part E
of Schedule Il Regulation 27(1) of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

In addition to the above, OBCL also
complies with the non-mandatory
requirements of Part E of Schedule Il
prescribed under Regulation 27(1) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 like
maintaining a Chairman’s office at the
Company’'s expense, reimbursement of
expenses incurred by Chairman in
performance of his duties, dissemination of
financial results to the shareholders,
unqualified financial statements, direct
reporting of internal auditors to the audit
committee, etc.

5) Subsidiary Companies
As on 31st March 2022, OBCL does not have
any subsidiary Company. The ‘Policy for
determining material subsidiaries’ s
available on the Website of the Company.

https://www.obclimited.com/pdf/policies/Po
licy_for_Determining_Material_Subsidiaries.

pdf
6)

Disclosure of Accounting
Treatment in the preparation
of Financial Statements.

OBCL follows the guidelines of Accounting
Standards laid down by the Central
Government under the provisions of Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 in the
preparation of its financial statements.

7) Communications with

Shareholders

The data related to quarterly and annual
financial results, shareholding pattern,
Board meetings, general meetings, the
terms and conditions of appointment of
independent directors, details of Vvigil
Mmechanism, etc. and other information as
per the requirements of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act,
2013, are submitted to the stock exchanges
in which the shares of the Company are
listed i.e. BSE Limited and the National
Stock Exchanges of India Limited and are
also provided in the Company's web-site for
the information of the shareholders at the
following location:

https://www.obclimited.com/

The Company disseminates all the material
information to its shareholders through
periodical communications. The financial
results are published periodically in the
newspapers [generally in Business Standard
publications] as per the requirements of
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.
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Annual Report:

Annual report containing, inter alia, Audited
Accounts, Director's Report, Report on
Corporate Governance, Management
Discussion & Analysis other material and
related matters/ information is circulated to

the shareholders and others entitled thereto.

8) Redressal of Shareholders’
Complaints

The Company did not receive any grievance
from its shareholder(s) in respect by transfer
of shares, non-receipt of Annual Report, non-
receipt of declared dividends, etc. during the
year.

9) Credit Ratings

Orissa Bengal Carrier Limited has received
reaffirmation of its corporate credit rating of
‘CCR BBB' from CRISIL. A 'CCR BBB!' rating
indicates Moderate degree of strength with
regard to honoring debt obligations

10) Disclosure of commodity price
risks and commodity hedging
activities

OBCL does not participate in commodities
market. Hence, the disclosure of
commodity price risks and commodity
hedging activities is not applicable to the
Company.

11) Details of utilization of funds

raised through preferential
allotment or qualified
institutions placement as

specified under Regulation 32
(7A).

During the FY 2021-22, the Company has not
raised any funds through preferential
allotment or qualified institutions placement
as specified under Regulation 32 (7A).
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IX. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Date, time and venue of the last three General Meetings are as follows:

Financial
Year

2021-22

2020-21

2019-20

Venue

A-1, 3" Floor, CG Elite
Complex, Opposite
Mandi Gate, Pandri,

Raipur (C.G.) - 492001

A-1, 39 Floor, CG Elite
Complex, Opposite
Mandi Gate, Pandri,

Raipur (C.G.) - 492001

A-1, 39 Floor, CG Elite
Complex, Opposite
Mandi Gate, Pandri,

Raipur (C.G.) - 492001

Meeting

EGM

AGM

AGCM
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Date

May 28, 2022

September
29, 2021

September
04, 2020

Time

04:00 PM

04:00 PM

05:00 PM

Special Resolutions

passed, if any
> Changein
Designation of Mr.

Ravi Agrawal, Whole-

time Director
(DIN:01392652) to

Managing Director of

>

>

>

the Company.
Revision in the
remuneration of Mr.
Manoj Kumar
Agrawal (DIN:
01590282),
Wholetime Director
of the Company.
To revise the
remuneration of Mr.
Ravi Agrawal,
Wholetime Director
of the Company

To revise the
remuneration of Mr.
Ratan Kumar
Agrawal, Managing
Director of the
Company
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2018-19

Landmark hotel, near
Mata Garage, Main
Road, Pandri, Raipur
(C.G.) - 492004

AGM

August 03,

5019 05:00 PM

> To increase
remuneration of Shri
Ratan Kumar
Agrawal, Managing
Director of the
Company;
> To increase
remuneration of Shri
Ravi Agrawal,
Wholetime Director
of the Company.
> To increase
remuneration of Shri
Manoj Kumar
Agrawal, Wholetime
Director of the
Company
> To increase
commission payable
to Smt. Shakuntala
Devi Agrawal, Non-
Executive Director of
the Company

2017-18

Landmark hotel, near
Mata Garage, Main
Road, Pandri, Raipur
(C.G.) - 492004

AGM

July 09, 2018| 05:00 PM

>

>

> To increase
remuneration of Shri
Ratan Kumar
Agrawal, Managing
Director of the
Company;
Appointment of Shri
Manoj Kumar
Agrawal as a

Wholetime Director

of the Company and
to increase his

remuneration.

Appointment of Shri

Ravi Agrawal (DIN:
01392652) as a Whole

Time Director of the

Company and to fix
his remuneration

thereof.

To fix remuneration
payable to Smt.
Shakuntala Devi

Agrawal, Non-

Executive Director of

the Company.
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Postal Ballot:

- The Company has passed Resolution for
Migration of Company from SME Platform
of BSE Limited to Main Board of BSE
Limited through Postal Ballot, results of
which were declared on December 03, 2021.

- The Company has passed Resolution for
Migration of Company from SME Platform
of BSE Limited to Main Board of BSE
Limited and National Stock Exchange of
India Limited through Postal Ballot, results
of which were declared on January 11, 2022.

The Postal Ballot exercise was conducted by
the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
of the Company. As on date, there is no
special resolution proposed to be conducted
through postal ballot.

The procedure followed by the Company for
passing a special resolution by way of postal
ballot is as per the provisions and
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013
and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

X. CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE
OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
NORMS

The obtaining of Compliance Certificate from
a Practicing Company Secretary confirming
compliance with the conditions of disclosures
and Corporate Governance norms specified
for listed companies & Certificate of
Non-Disqualification of Directors pursuant to
Regulation - 34(3) and Schedule - V Para - C
clause - (10) (l) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 were not applicable to the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2022.

Xl. The Board has accepted the
recommendations of its
committees, made during FY
2021-22, which are required to be
accepted.

b

LW

XIll. PAYMENT TO AUDITORS

The details of the total fees for all services
paid by OBCL to M/s. Agrawal & Pansari,
Chartered Accountants, the statutory
auditors of OBCL and all entities in the
network firm/ network entity of which the
statutory auditor has been provided below:-

Particulars Amount in
Rs.

As auditor:

Audit Fee 5,00,000.00

Tax Audit Fee 0

Limited Review 0

In Other Capacity:

Taxation Matters 0

Certification Matters 13,570.00

Out of Pocket 0o

Expenses

Other Services 0

Total 513,570.00

XlIll. DISCLOSURES IN RELATION TO
THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF
WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The disclosures in relation to the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal ) Act,
2013 are given in the crux of the Director’s
Report under Sr. No. 20. As of March 31, 2022,
no complaint has been filed during the
Financial Year, and hence no complaint was
disposed-off and pending at the end of the
Financial Year.
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XIV. DISCLOSURE BY LISTED XVI. A declaration signed by the

ENTITY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
OF ‘LOANS AND ADVANCES IN
THE NATURE OF LOANS TO
FIRMS/COMPANIES IN WHICH
DIRECTORS ARE INTERESTED
BY NAME AND AMOUNT":

The disclosures in relation to Loans and
Advances to firms/companies in which
directors are interested are given in the
crux of the Board’'s Report under Sr. No 19.
During the year under review, the Company
has not granted any loan or provided any
guarantee or made any investment as
specified in Section 186 (2) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Hence no approval
from the shareholders in this regard was
required.

XV. DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT
TO DEMAT SUSPENSE
ACCOUNT/ UNCLAIMED
SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

During the year under review, there were
no shares of the Company held in the
demat suspense account or unclaimed
suspense account. Accordingly, the
disclosure with respect to demat suspense
account/unclaimed suspense account as
per the requirements of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to the
Company.

Managing Director stating
that the members of Board of
Directors and Senior
Management Personnel have
affirmed compliances with the
code of conduct of board of
directors and senior
management is attached
herewith and forms a part of
the Corporate Governance
Report.
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ANNEXURE -6(ii) TO DIRECTORS' REPORT

DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY'S CODE OF
CONDUCT

| hereby confirm that the Company has obtained from all the members of the
Board and Senior Management Personnel, affirmations that they have complied
with the code of conduct for the Financial Year 2021-22.

For the purpose of this declaration, Senior Management Personnel means Key
Management Persons namely, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
appointed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Date: 04.08.2022

Place: Raipur

Signature: Sd/-
Name: Ravi Agrawal
Managing Director

103



C3

Orissa Bengal
—— Corrier Limited 22

MD - CFO Certification

To,
The Board of Directors
Orissa Bengal Carrier Ltd

We, Ravi Agrawal, Managing Director and Akshay Agrawal, Chief Financial Officer of the
Orissa Bengal Carrier Ltd hereby certify to the Board that:

a. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year
ended on March 31, 2022 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material
fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and
are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's
code of conduct.

c. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for
financial reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control
systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the
auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such
internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose
to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee

i. significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

ii. significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and that the same
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

iii. instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement
therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the
Company's internal control system over financial reporting.

Place: Raipur Ravi Agrawal Akshay Agrawal
Date: 04.08.2022 Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of Orissa Bengal Carriers Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial
statements of Orissa Bengal Carrier Limited,
which comprises of the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2022, the statement of Profit & Loss,
and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

In our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the
explanations given to us, subject to the
effects of the matters described in the “Basis
for Qualified Opinion” section of our report
the aforesaid standalone financial statements
give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view, in
conformity with the Accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022,
its profit, and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

We conducted our audit of the standalone
financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under
section 143(10) of the Act (SAs).

Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made there under, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAl's Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone financial
statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. As described in Note 40 of the financial
statements, a fraud in previous financial
year i.e. 2020-21 of Rs. 5,41,43,316/- was
detected which is shown as Non-current
assets in Note No 6 of Financial
Statements. Impact of above amount of
Rs. 5,41,43,316/- has resulted in over-
statement of Reserve & Surplus and also in
Non-current assets with the same amount.
We were of an opinion that appropriate
provision should be made in the Profit &
Loss Account.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to:

Note no. 41 of Ind-AS Financial Statement
stating that some of the balances of Trade
Receivables Deposits Loans & Advances,
Advances received from customers, Liability
for expenses and Trade Payable are subject
to confirmation from the respective parties
and consequential reconciliation/
adjustment arising there from if any. The
management however do not expect any
material variation.

Our Conclusion is not modified in respect of
these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in
our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone
financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these
matters. We have determined the matter
described below to be the key audit matter
to be communicated in our report.
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A) Revenue Recognition

The Key Audit Matter

Completeness of revenue recognized for
service rendered:

The Company engaged in providing
transportation services (Full truck load)
through Company owned fleet and
external fleet to the customers throughout
India. The Company recognizes “Revenue”
from rendering of services and the related
liability towards its venders only upon
receipt of customer acknowledged proof of
completion of services.

Whilst the Company is able to track the
physical consignments and location of
each shipment through own fleet by
using GPS and software and for external
fleet through the fleet owner, the details of
each shipment showing inter-alia its start
date, delivery date, date of receiving the

proof of delivery (POD) and date of
recording revenue is recorded
electronically in accounting software

(electronic form).

Management ensures satisfaction of the
performance obligation at the reporting
date and completeness and accuracy of
data entered electronically, which is basis
of recording of costs and related revenues.
Since the management ensures accuracy
and completeness of performance
obligation electronically, recognition of
revenue related to transportation service
business is considered a key audit matter.

How the matter addressed in our audit
Our audit procedure include:

We have tested the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of internal controls
over judgement exercised over the following as
well as their operating effectiveness:

a. Determination of performance
obligations, transaction price and the
allocation thereof.

b. Control over the determination of the
estimates used as well as their operating
effectiveness.

We have tested the relevant controls relating to

contracts and related information used in
recording and disclosing revenue in
accordance with the revenue accounting
standard.

We have tested relevant controls related to
recognition of revenue, to ensure that accrual
of revenue is made for each completed service.

We obtained, on sample Dbasis, direct
confirmation from Vendors and customers for
outstanding balances.

We also performed substantive testing by
selecting samples of revenue transactions
recorded during the year by verifying the
underlying documents, which included goods
dispatch notes and shipping documents.

We have also tested samples of direct costs to
ensure that all expenses have corresponding
revenue by verifying the consignment
note/date of receiving the proof of delivery
(POD).
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B). We draw your attention to Note 39 to
these financial statements, which describes
the Management's assessment of the
impact of COVID-19 pandemic and the
resultant lockdowns on the significant
uncertainties involved in developing some
of the estimates involved in preparation of
the financial statements. Based on
information available as of this date,
Management believes that no further
adjustments are required to the financial
results. However, in view of the highly
uncertain economic environment
impacting the Logistics industry, a definitive
assessment of the impact is highly
dependent upon circumstances as they
evolve in future and the actual results may
differ from those estimated as at the date of
approval of these financial statements.

Information Other than the
Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is
responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the
information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report
including Annexures to Board's Report,
Business Responsibility Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder’'s Information,
but does not include the consolidated
financial statements, standalone financial
statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial
statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the
standalone financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the
Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is
responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
with respect to the preparation and
presentation of these standalone financial
statements to give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial
statements, management and Board of
Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the
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Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Director’s are also responsible
for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the standalone
financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes  our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs,
we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

i. Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

ii. Obtain an understanding of internal
financial controls relevant to the audit

in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances.
Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial
statement in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

iii. Evaluate the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made
by management.

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of
management’'s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the
Company’'s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a

material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our
auditor’'s report to the related

disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going

concern.
v. Evaluate the overall presentation,
structure and content of the
standalone financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether
the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.
Materiality is the magnitude of
misstatements in the standalone financial

statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the
economic decisions of a reasonably

knowledgeable user of the standalone
financial statements may be influenced.
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We consider quantitative materiality and
gualitative factors in (i) planning the scope
of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the
standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with
governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with
governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with
those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the standalone
financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act,
we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial
statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors as on March 3],
2022 taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the
internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure A. Our report
expresses a qualified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial control over financial
reporting.

(9) With respect to the other matters to be
included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section
197(16) of the Act, as amended: In our opinion
and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its
directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be
included in the Auditors’ Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our knowledge and
belief and according to the information and
explanations given to us:
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() The Company has disclosed the impact, if
any, of pending litigations as at March 31, 2022
on its financial position in its financial
statements - Refer Note 31;

(i) The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts as at
March 31, 2022;

(i) There were no amounts which were
required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the
Company during the year ended March 31, 2022;

(iv) (@) The Management has represented that,
to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to
the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been received by the Company
from any person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Place: Raipur
Date: 30/05/2022
UDIN:- 22053338AJZ0OHS2071

(c)Based on the audit procedures that have
been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain
any material misstatement.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section
143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B"” a
statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For AGRAWAL & PANSARI.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no.:- 003350C

CAR.K. AGRAWAL
(Partner)
Membership No.:053338.
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Annexure A to

Auditors’ Report

Independent

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under “Report
on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” section of our report to the
members of ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER
LIMITED of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting under clause (i) of

sub section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act)
We have audited the internal financial

controls over financial reporting of Orissa
Bengal Carrier Limited (“the Company”) as
of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for
Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible
for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAIl). These
responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on the Company'’s internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note"”) and the Standards on
Auditing deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls and both issued
by the ICAIlL Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures
to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their

operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an

understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Opinion
Controls Over Financial Reporting . _

In our opinion, the Company has, in all
A Company’'s internal financial control over material respects, an adequate internal
financial reporting is a process designed to financial controls system over financial
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reporting and such internal financial
reliability of financial reporting and the controls over financial reporting were

preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company'’s
internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company;
(2)provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the Company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the Company’'s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal
financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal  financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

operating effectively as at March 31, 2022,
based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the  essential
components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For AGRAWAL & PANSARI.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no.:- 003350C.

CA R.K. AGRAWAL
(Partner)
Membership No.:053338.

Place: Raipur
Date: 30/05/2022
UDIN:- 22053338AJZOHS2071
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to Independent

Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under “Report
on the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2020 of our report of even date.)

I

a)

b)

b)

In respect of the Company’'s Property,
Plant and Equipment and Intangible
Assets:

. A. The Company is maintaining proper
records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and
situation, Property, Plant and
Equipment and relevant details of
right-of-use assets.

B. The Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

The Company has a programme of
verification to cover all the items of fixed
assets in a phased manner which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets. Pursuant to the
programme, certain fixed assets were
physically verified by the Management
during the year. According to the
information and explanations given to
us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

The Company is in the business of
providing transport services and does
not have any physically inventories.
Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(ii)
of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and
explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate,
from banks on the basis of security of
current assets. In our opinion, the
quarterly returns or statements filed by
the Company with such banks are in
agreement with the books of account of
the Company.

C3

The Company had not made any
investments in, companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or

provided any guarantee or security or
granted any advances in the nature of
loans, secured or unsecured to any other
entity during the year hence reporting
under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has complied with the
provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans
granted, investments made and
guarantees and securities provided, as
applicable.

The Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public within the
meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of

the Act and the Rules framed
thereunder to the extent notified. In our
opinion, and according to the

information and explanations given to
us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 or
any other relevant provisions of the Act
and the Rules framed there under to the
extent notified, with regard to the
deposits accepted from the public prior
to the commencement of the Act.
According to the information and
explanations given to us, no order has
been passed by the Company Law Board
or National Company Law Tribunal or
Reserve Bank of India or any Court or
any other Tribunal on the Company in
respect of the aforesaid deposits. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable.
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vi. The maintenance of cost records has not
been specified by the Central
Government under sub- section (1) of
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for
the business activities carried out by the
Company. Hence, reporting under clause
(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

vii. Inrespect of statutory dues:

a) In our opinion, the Company has
generally been regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues, including
Goods and Services tax, Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty
of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added
Tax, Cess and other material statutory
dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of Goods and
Service tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income
Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of
Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added
Tax, Cess and other material statutory
dues in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for
a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

b) Details of statutory dues referred to in
sub-clause (a) above which have not
been deposited as on March 31, 2022

on account of disputes are given d
below:
e.
Income Tax
Appell
Income Tax ate AY 2018-19 4.90
The
Income Tribun f
Tax Act, |
1961 2
Income Tax CPC AY 2020-21 0.83
TDS Traces Various F.Y 0.02

viii. There were no transactions relating to

previously unrecorded income that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961).

iXx. a) The Company has not taken any

loans or other borrowings from any
lender. Hence reporting under clause
3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) The Company has not been declared
wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or
any government authority.

c) The Company has not taken any term
loan during the year and there are
outstanding term loans at the
beginning of the year details of which
is provided below-

Axis Bank 237.09
Limited
HDFC Bank 413.36
Limited

Kotak Mahindra 373.15
Bank Limited

On an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, funds raised
on short- term basis have, prima facie, not
been used during the year for long-term
purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.
The Company has not raised any loans
during the year and hence reporting on
clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable.
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a. The Company has not raised moneys
by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year and
hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of

the Order is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not
made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully or partly
or optionally) and hence reporting
under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

a. No fraud by the Company and no
material fraud on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the
year
b. No report under sub-section (12) of
section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the year and upto
the date of this report.

c. We have taken into consideration the
whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year (and upto the
date of this report), while determining the
nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company
and hence reporting under clause (xii)
of the Order is not applicable.

i. In our opinion, the Company is in
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of
the Companies Act, 2013 with respect
to applicable transactions with the
related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been
disclosed in the standalone financial
statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

XVii.

XViii

(@) In our opinion the Company has an
adequate internal audit system
commensurate with the size and the
nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit
reports for the year under audit, issued to
the Company during the year and till date,
in determining the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures.

In our opinion during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its Directors or
persons connected with its directors and
hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to
the Company.

(@) In our opinion, the Company is not
required to be registered under section
45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Hence, reporting under clause
3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core
investment Company within the Group (as
defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016) and accordingly reporting under
clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses
during the financial year covered by our
audit and the immediately preceding
financial year.

.There has been no resignation of the

statutory auditors of the Company during
the year.
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xix. On the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of
realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the
financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors
and Management plans and based on
our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report indicating that Company is
not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as
and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet For AGRAWAL & PANSARI.
date. We, however, state that this is not Firmcgggjt’r?t’ig‘rfcrfgftc‘fongsoc
an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we

XxX. (@) There are no unspent amounts
towards Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) on other than ongoing projects
requiring a transfer to a Fund specified
in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act in
compliance with second proviso to sub-
section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for
the year.

(b) There was no ongoing projects,
hence reporting under clause 3(xx)(b)
of the Order is not applicable for the
year.

. . Place: Raipur CAR.K. AGRAWAL
neither give any guarantee nor any Date: 30/05/2022 (Partner)
assurance that all liabilities falling due UDIN:- 22053338AJZOHS2071 Membership No.:053338.

within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall
due.
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ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LIMITED
CIN : L63090CTI994PLC008732
BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH 2022
(Rs. in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)
As at As at As at
PARTICULARS hotes 31st March 2022 31st March 2021 1st April 2020
JASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 645.00 951.90 1,354.46
(b) Intangible Assets 4 2.08 - -
(c) Capital work-in-progress 5 - 46.12 30.73
(d) Financial Assets - - -
(i) Others 6 541.43 541.43 5
(e) Income Tax Assets (net) 7d) 379.54 229.66 200.42
(e) Other Non-Current Assets
[Total Non-Current Assets 1,568.04 1,769.11 1,585.60
ICurrent Assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 8 6,148.26 9,534.23 8,919.14
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 46.86 65.51 78.91
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 10 996.49 201.06 m.36
(iv) Loans and advances n 741 9.74 1.61
(v) Others 12 246.47 255.48 226.10
(b) Other Current Assets 13 1,011.05 344.43 392.46
[Total Current Assets 8,523.24 10,410.46 9,729.58
[Total ASSETS 10,091.28 12,179.58 11,315.18
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(@) Equity Share Capital 14 2,108.28 2,108.28 2,108.28
(b) Other Equity 15 6,092.90 5,309.31 4,830.39
[Total EQUITY 8,201.18 7,417.59 6,938.67
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 99.71 493.05 825.03
(b) Provisions 17 - - -
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 7c) 37.97 25.67 3401
[Total Non-Current Liabilities 137.68 518.72 859.14
ICurrent Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 671.95 2,320.24 1,950.73
(ii) Trade Payables 19 - - -
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; - - -
and
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 902.54 1,538.10 1,223.89
small enterprises.
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 20 4.01 1.44 -
(b) Other Current Liabilities 21 21.66 40.59 46.38
(c) Provisions 22 152.25 342.90 296.37
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
[Total Current Liabilities 1,752.42 4,243.27 3,517.37
[Total EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10,091.28 12,179.58 11,315.18
Significant accounting policies & key accounting estimates & judgements 1-3
[See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements 4-43
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date
As per our Report of even date annexed For & on Behalf of the Board
For AGRAWAL & PANSARI
Firm Registration No.-003350C.
Chartered Accountants
Ravi Agrawal Gopal Kumar Agrawalla
(Managing Director) (Chairman)
DIN: 01392652 DIN: 07941122
CA R.K.Agrawal
Partner
(M.No.- 053338)
PLACE : RAIPUR
DATE :30.05.2022 Akshay Agrawal Muskaan Gupta
UDIN :22053338AJZOHS2071 (Chief Finance Officer) (Company Secretary
& Compliance Officer)
M.No. A-63639
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ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LIMITED

CIN : L63090CT1994PLC008732

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2022

(Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Year ended Year ended
PARTICULARS Notes |  31st March 2022 31st March 2021
INCOME
Revenue From Operations 23 30,319.72 33,904.04
Other Income 24 324.94 88.90
Total INCOME 30,644.65 33,992.94
EXPENSES = =
Operating Expenses 25 28,581.39 32,128.75
Employee Benefit Expenses 26 331.09 290.86
Finance Costs 27 173.83 227.84
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 28 251.27 391.46
Other Expenses 29 245.29 166.72
Total EXPENSES 29,582.87 33,205.63
Profit before tax 1,061.79 787.31
Tax Expense 7a)
Current Tax 266.47 217.45
Deferred Tax 12.16 (9.96)
Total Tax Expense 278.63 207.49
Profit for the period 783.16 579.82
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans 0.58 6.04
Income tax relating to re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans (0.14) (1.52)

Total Other Comprehensive Income 0.43 4.52
Total Comprehensive Income 783.59 584.33
Earnings Per Share (In Rs) 30

(1) Basic 3.71 2.75

(2) Diluted 3.71 2.75
Significant accounting policies & key accounting estimates & judgements 1-3
See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements 4-43
This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date

As per our Report of even date annexed
For AGRAWAL & PANSARI

Firm Registration No.-003350C.

Chartered Accountants

CA R.K.Agrawal

Partner

(M.No.- 053338)

PLACE : RAIPUR

DATE : 30.05.2022

UDIN : 22053338AJZOHS2071

Ravi Agrawal
(Managing Director)
DIN: 01392652

Akshay Agrawal
(Chief Finance Officer)

For & on Behalf of the Board

Gopal Kumar Agrawalla
(Chairman )
DIN: 07941122

Muskaan Gupta
(Company Secretary
& Compliance Officer)

M.No. A-63639
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ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LIMITED

CIN : L63090CT1994PLC008732

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2022

(Rs in lakhs, unle

ss stated otherwise)

PARTICLUARS

Year ended
31st March 2022

Year ended
31st March 2021

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expense
Finance Costs
Interest Income
Rent Income
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets
Acturial gain and loss
Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for:
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories
Decrease/(Increase) in Loans
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Financial Assets
Decrease/(Increase) in Other assets
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions
Cash flow from operating activities post working capital changes
Direct taxes
Net cash flow from operating activities (A)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property Plant and Equipment

Sale of Property Plant and Equipment

Interest received

Rent Received

Net cash used in investing activities (B)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Borrowings

Interest paid

Dividend Paid

Net cash used in financing activities (C)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1st April

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31st March
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

1,061.79 787.31
251.27 391.46
173.83 227.84
(33.57) (36.24)

(4.30) =
(121.21) (27.75)
0.58 6.04
1,328.37 1,348.66
(64.37) (8.13)
3,385.97 (615.09)
9.01 (570.82)
(666.62) 48.03
(635.56) 314.21
213.36 53.56
(18.93) (5.78)
(190.65) 46.53

3,360.58 611.16
(416.35) (246.70)

2,944.24 364.46

(6.46) (27.34)
227.35 50.79
33.57 36.24
4.30 =
258.77 59.69
(2,252.41) (14.60)
(173.83) (227.84)
- (105.41)
(2,426.24) (347.85)
776.77 76.31
266.58 190.27
1,043.35 266.58
776.77 76.31

Notes

1. The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in accordance with ‘Indirect method’ as set out in Ind AS - 7 - ‘Statement of Cash Flows’,
as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant rules issued thereunder.

Cash and Cash Equivalents (5 Els s grsat .
31st March 2022 [31st March 2021 |1st April 2020
Balances with banks 3.86 22.12 42.06
Cash on hand 43.00 43.40 36.85
Bank deposit with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12
months 996.49 201.06 111.36
1,043.35 266.58 190.27

This is the Statement of Cash Flow referred to in our report of even date

As per our Report of even date annexed
For AGRAWAL & PANSARI

Firm Registration No.-003350C.

Chartered Accountants Ravi Agrawal
(Managing Director)
DIN: 01392652

CA R.K.Agrawal
Partner

(M.No.- 053338)
PLACE : RAIPUR
DATE : 30.05.2022

Akshay Agrawal
(Chief Finance Officer)

For & on Behalf of the Board

Gopal Kumar Agrawalla

(Chairman )
DIN: 07941122

Muskaan Gupta
(Company Secretary

& Compliance Officer)

M.No. A-63639
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ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LIMITED

CIN : L63090CT1994PLC008732

of Ch

in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2022

(Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

(a) Equity Share Capital

As at 31st March 2022

As at 31st March 2021

As at 1st April 2020

Numbey Amount AL Amount e Amount
of Shares of Shares of Shares
Opening Balance 2,10,82,790 2,108.28 2,10,82,790 2,108.28 2,10,82,790 2,108.28
Closing Balance | 2,10,82,790 2,108.28 2,10,82,790 2,108.28 2,10,82,790 2,108.28
(b) Other equity
Reserves & Surplus Other
Retained Earnings Secur!tles Comprehensive Total
Premium Income

Balance as at 1st April 2020 3,800.87 1,025.98 3.54 4,830.39
Profit for the year 579.82 = = 579.82
Other comprehensive income for the year = = 4.52 4.52
Declared Dividend during the year (105.41) = = (105.41)
Balance as at 31st March 2021 4,275.27 1,025.98 8.06 5,309.31
Balance as at 1st April 2021 4,275.27 1,025.98 8.06 5,309.31
Profit for the year 783.16 - - 783.16
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 0.43 0.43
Balance as at 31st March 2022 5,058.43 1,025.98 8.49 6,092.90
This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date
As per our Report of even date annexed For & on Behalf of the Board
For AGRAWAL & PANSARI
Firm Registration No.-003350C.
Chartered Accountants Ravi Agrawal Gopal Kumar Agrawalla

(Managing Director) (Chairman )

DIN: 01392652 DIN: 07941122
CA R.K.Agrawal
Partner
(M.No.- 053338) Akshay Agrawal Muskaan Gupta
PLACE : RAIPUR (Chief Finance Officer) (Company Secretary
DATE : 30.05.2022 & Compliance Officer)
UDIN : 22053338AJZOHS2071 M.No. A-63639
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022

ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LIMITED

CIN : L63090CT1994PLC008732
1 Corporate information

Orissa Bengal Carrier Limited is a Public Company domiciled in India and incorporated under
the provisions of the Companies Act,1956. The company is engaged in Transportation
activities. The Company got listed with BSE Limited on SME platform on April 05, 2018.

2 Basis of preparation
a) Statement of compliance:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards ("Ind AS") as prescribed by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended), other relevant provisions of the Act and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India.

The financial statements for all periods up to and including the year ended 3l1st March, 2021,
were prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (CAAP) in India,
which includes the accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other provisions of the Act (collectively
referred to as "Indian GAAP"). These financial statements for the year ended 3l1st March, 2022
are the first Ind AS Financial Statements with comparatives, prepared under Ind AS. The
Company has consistently applied the accounting policies used in the preparation of its
opening Ind AS Balance Sheet at 1st April, 2020 throughout all periods presented, as if these
policies had always been in effect and are covered by Ind AS 101 "First Time Adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards".

An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the previously reported financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company is provided in Note No. 41.
Certain of the Company's Ind-AS accounting policies used in the opening Balance Sheet
differed from its Indian GAAP policies applied as at 31st March, 2020 and accordingly the
adjustments were made to restate the opening balances as per Ind-AS. The resulting
adjustment arising from events and transactions before the date of transition to Ind-AS were
recognized directly through retained earnings as at Ist April, 2020 as required by Ind- AS 101.
The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 3lIst March, 2022 has been
approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 30th May, 2022.
The standalone financial statements are presented in Rupees and all values are rounded to
the nearest lakhs upto two decimals places except when otherwise indicated.
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b) Basis of measurement:

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for
followings:-

a) Certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value as required
under relevant IndAS

b) Defined Benefit Plans - plan assets measured at fair value

¢) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s standalone financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods.

d) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

i. Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

ii. Employee benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan, other post-employment benefits and the present
value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.

iii.Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against
the Company, including legal, contractor and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will
be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The
assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the
exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future
events.
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iv. Property Plant and Equipment

Useful lives and residual values are determined by the management at the time the asset is
acquired and reviewed at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience
with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as
changes in technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in
production or from a change in market demand of the product or service output of the asset.

3

31

2

Significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-
current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

» Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

» Held primarily for the purpose of trading

» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

» All other assets are classified as non-current.

» A liability is current when:

» It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

» It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

» It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

» All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

» The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating
cycle.

Property, Plant &
Equipments
Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises
purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost
of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are included in the
asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company.
All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
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Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided using written down value
method using rates determined based on management’s assessment of useful economic lives
of the asset. Followings are the estimated useful lives of various category of assets used which
are aligned with useful lives defined in schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013 :

Office 60 Years

Building

Furniture & Fixture 10 Years
Vehicles (Four 8
Wheeler) Years
Vehicles (Two 10 Years
Wheeler)

Office 5Years
Equipment

Computers 3 Years
Truck & 8 Years
Trailors

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Derecognition:

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-
recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss, when the asset is de-recognized.

Capital work-in-progress (CWIP)

Cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for use as at the reporting date are disclosed
as capital work-in progress.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its
property, plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2020 measured as per the previous
GAAP and use that carrying value as the cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Intangible Assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost.

Subsequent measurement (amortization and useful lives)

Following initial recognition, Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The amortization period, residual value and the amortisation method are
reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is
significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.
Intangibles with indefinite useful lives are not amortised but tested for impairment by
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comparing its recoverable amount with its carrying amount-

- annually and,

- whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
Amortization on software is charged on straight line method taking the useful life of
the same as three years from the month of acquisition.

3.3 Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial
assets to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication of impairment exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For
impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or cash generating units (CGUs).

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows,
discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. An
impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

3.4 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities And Contingent Assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost in respective expense.
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Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent
Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

35 Income tax

Current tax:

Provision for current tax is made as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date.
Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly
in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) credit entitlement under the provisions of the Income-
tax Act, 1961 is recognised as a deferred tax asset when it is probable that future
economic benefit associated with it in the form of adjustment of future income tax
liability, will flow to the Company and the asset can be measured reliably. MAT credit
entitlement is set off to the extent allowed in the year in which the Company becomes
liable to pay income taxes at the enacted tax rates. MAT credit entitlement is reviewed at
each reporting date and is recognised to the extent that is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used. MAT credit entitlement has been
presented as deferred tax asset in Balance Sheet. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the probability of recognition of MAT credit entitlement.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes

relate to the same taxation authority.
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3.6 Employee Benefits
Short-term Employee Benefits:

Employee benefit liabilities such as salaries, wages and bonus, etc. that are expected to be
settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end
of the reporting period and are measured at an undiscounted amount expected to be
paid when the liabilities are settled.

Post-employment benefit plans:

Defined Contribution Plans:

State governed Provident Fund Scheme and Employees State Insurance Scheme are
defined contribution plans. The contribution paid / payable under the schemes is
recognised during the period in which the employees render the related services.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined
contribution plan.
The Company has defined benefit plan namely, Gratuity. The Company has also taken
policy for all employees, except workers, with Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) to
meet its obligation towards gratuity. Any differential between the fund amount as per LIC
and the actuarial calculation is charged to revenue.
The Company net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset
for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling’). In order to calculate the present value of
economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and
losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if
any, excluding interest), are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). The
Company determines the net interest expense / (income) on the net defined benefit
liability / (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit
liability / (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability /
(asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or
loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change
in benefit that relates to past service ('past service cost' or 'past service gain') or the gain or
loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises
gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.
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Fair value measurement
3.7

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

» In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

» In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous

market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be

accessible to/ by the Company.

Fair value hierarchy

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole;

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that has a significant effect
on the fair value measurement are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: valuation techniques for which the lowest level input which has a significant
effect on the fair value measurement is not based on observable market data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets
and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability
and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

3.8 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assetg
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset.
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Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
» Debt instruments at amortised cost - The Company has cash & cash equivalents, loans and
trade receivables classified within this category.
» Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) - The
Company does not have any financial asset (classified in this category.
» Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL) - The Company does not have any financial asset classified in this category.
» Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) -
The Company does not have any financial asset classified in this category.

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortisation and losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
Statement of Profit & Loss. The amortised cost of the financial asset is also adjusted for loss
allowance, if any.

Debt instrument at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so
reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting
mismatch’). Company has not designated any such debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Derecognition
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset. Any gain or
loss on derecognition is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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b)

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with IndAS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g. Loans
and trade receivables.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component.
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
All financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value deducted by, in the case of financial
liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the liability.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade payables, borrowings and other
financial liabilities.

Under the effective interest method, the future cash payments are exactly discounted to the
initial recognition value using the effective interest rate. The cumulative amortization using the
effective interest method of the difference between the initial recognition amount and the
maturity amount is added to the initial recognition value (net of principal repayments, if any) of
the financial liability over the relevant period of the financial liability to arrive at the amortized
cost at each reporting date. The corresponding effect of the amortization under effective
interest method is recognized as expense over the relevant period of the financial liability in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the Derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.
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39

3.10

3.1

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
Balance Sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised based to the extent it is probable that the economic benefit will flow
to the Company and revenue can be reliably measured regardless of when the payment is
being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excludes taxes
& duties collected on behalf of the Government and is reduced for deductions, penalties
and rebates or similar allowances deducted by customers.

Freight services

Freight income is accounted for on actual delivery of consignments by the Company to the
customers and unqualified acknowledgements are obtained from them. Generally, the
contracts are Fixed-price, thus the associated costs can be reliably measured. Freight and
Vehicle Trip Expenses are accounted when vehicles deliver the consignments to the
Company at destination. However, withholding taxes (TDS, TCS etc) are accounted for on
receipt of corresponding payment or information of such deductions, whichever is earlier.

Interest income

Interest income on financial asset is recognised using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Other Income

Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive such income arises
and it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the
shareholders’ and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the
shareholders’ and weighted average number of equity shares.
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3.12 Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of
past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

313 Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision maker. The board of directors of the Company
has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker by the Management of
the Company.

3.14 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded by the Company entities at their
respective functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currency are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rates
prevailing at the reporting date.

Non Monetary asset and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was
determined. Non monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the exception that the exchange
differences on foreign currency borrowings included in the borrowing cost when they
are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

3.15 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets up to the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use. The loan origination costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of borrowings (e.g. loan processing fee, upfront fee) are amortised in
the year in which they occur

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalization. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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3.16 Standards Issued but notyet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”") notifies new standards or amendments to the
existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued
from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, as below.

Ind AS 16 — Property Plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess of net
sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognized
in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part
of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The effective date for adoption of
this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022. The Company
does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial
statements.

Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - The amendment
specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to
the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of
fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labor, materials) or an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation
of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract). The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022, although early adoption is permitted. The
Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial
statements.

135



C3

Orissa Bengal
—— Corrier Limited 22

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022

ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LIMITED
CIN : L63090CT1994PLC008732

Schedules forming part of the standalone financial statements

(Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

4 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

" i Furniture & Vehicles (Four Vehicles (Two Office Truck &

Land |Office Building| gy e Wheeler) Wheeler) | Equipment | Computers Trailors Total
Gross Value
Balance as at 1st April 2020 6.86 99.22 2.94 29.01 6.26 2.94 3.71 1,203.53 1,354.46
Additions during the year - = 0.22 7.95 2.94 o 0.83 - 11.95
Disposals during the year - - - - (0.02) - - (23.03) (23.05)
Balance as at 31st March 2021 6.86 99.22 3.16 36.97 9.18 2,94 4.54 1,180.50 1,343.36
Balance as at 1st April 2021 6.86 99.22 3.16 36.97 9.18 2,94 4.54 1,180.50 1,343.36
Additions during the year = 46.12 o = 0.73 0.81 0.94 - 48.60
Disposals during the year - (6.59) - - - - - (539.13) (545.72)
Balance as at 31st March 2022 6.86 138.75 3.16 36.97 9.91 3.75 5.48 641.37 846.24
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 1st April 2020 - - - - - - - - -
Depreciation charge for the year - 4.83 0.74 10.09 1.96 1.17 2.08 370.61 391.46
Balance as at 31st March 2021 - 4.83 0.74 10.09 1.96 1.17 2.08 370.61 391.46
Balance as at 1st April 2021 - 4.83 0.74 10.09 1.96 1.17 2.08 370.61 391.46
Depreciation charge for the year - 6.78 0.55 8.16 1.84 0.85 1.32 229.87 249.36
Deduction / Adjustments - (0.26) - - - - - (439.32) (439.58)
Balance as at 31st March 2022 - 11.35 1.29 18.24 3.80 2.02 3.39 161.16 201.24
Net carrying value
As at 1st April 2020 6.86 99.22 2.94 29.01 6.26 2.94 3.71 1,203.53 1,354.46
As at 31st March 2021 6.86 94.39 2.42 26.88 7.22 1.77 2.47 809.89 951.90
As at 31st March 2022 6.86 127.40 1.87 18.73 6.12 1.73 2.09 480.21 645.00
Note

The Company has applied the optional exemption to measure its Property, Plant & Equipment at the date of transitional at their previous GAAP carrying amount and used it as the deemed cost for such assets.

4 - Other Intangible Assets

Total intangible
assets including
Particulars Computer Software intangible assets
under
development
Cost at the beginning of the year April 1, 2020* - -
Additions - -
Deduction / Adjustments - -
Cost as at March 31, 2021 - -
Additions 3.98 3.98
Cost as at March 31, 2022 3.98 3.98
Amortisation at the beginning of the year Aprill, 2020 o =
Charge for the period - -
Amortisation as at March 31, 2021 - -
Charge for the period 1.91 1.91

Amortisation as at March 31, 2022 1.91 1.91

Net book value as at March 31, 2021 - -

Net book value as at March 31, 2022 2.08 2.08
% ¥ o
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ISchedules forming part of the standalone financial statements

(Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise

. As at As at As at
5 Capital Work-In-Progress 31st March 2022| 31stMarch2021 | 1st April2020
Capital work-in-progress
Godown - 46.12 30.73
- 46.12 30.73
Movement in Capital Work In Progress:
Opening balance as at April1,2020 30.73
Add: Additions during the year 15.39
Less: Capitalisation during the year E
Closing balance as at March 31, 2021 46.1
Add: Additions during the year
Less: Capitalisation during the year 46.1
Closing balance as at March 31, 2022 E
As at As at As at
6 Other non-currentfinancial assets 31st March 2022| 31st March 2021 1st April 2020
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Margin Money Fixed Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months - - -
Amount recoverable in cash or Kind from others 541.43 541.43 -
541.43 541.43 -
7 __Income tax
7a) The major components of income tax expense for the year are as under:
. . q . S Yearended Year ended
i) Amountsrecognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss comprises: 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
Current tax:
- in respect of the current year
y 266.47 217.45
266.47 217.45
Deferred tax expense:
Attributable to -
- Origination and reversal of (9.96)
temporary differences 12.16 i
12.16 (9.96)
Total Income tax expense 279.00 207.49
Income tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income Yaarishded MCELCIEE
ii) 3lst March2022 | 3ist March 2021
Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements
of defined benefit plans (014) (152)
Income tax charged to OCI (0.14) (1.52)
7b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate Yearended Yearended
3istMarch 2022 | 31t March 2021 |
Profit before tax A 1,061.79 787.31
Company's domestic tax rate B 25.17% 25.17%
Tax expense C=A*B 267.23 198.2
Tax effect of :
Income not liable to tax - -
Expenses not allowable 175.34 16.94
Deferred tax recognised 1216 (9.96)
Others (175.73) 236
Tax expense as recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 279.00 207.49
LT As at As at
7c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) Ist April 2020 Profit & Loss ocCl 31st March 2021
Deferred tax relates to the
following:
Property, Plant & Equipment . 22.96
[P S 3292 (9.96)
Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans 1.19 - 1.52} 2.71
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 341 (9.96) 1.52 25.67
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As at 9 As at
1st April 2021 Profit & Loss OCl 31st March 2022
Deferred tax relates to the following:
Property, Plant & Equipment 22.96 12.16) 3512
Re-measurements of the defined 271 0.14] 2.85
benefit plans
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
25.67 12.16 0.14 37.97
As at As at As at
7d) Income Tax Assets (Net) 31st March2022|  31st March 2021 Ist April 2020
Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation) (Including Refund Receivable)
379.54 229.66 200.42
379.54 229.66) 200.42)
. As at As at As at
8 Tradereceivables 31st March 2022|  31st March 2021 1st April 2020
Unsecured
Considered good 6,148.26 9,534.23 8,919.14
Credit impaired - 1.00 5.00
6,148.26 9,535.23] 8,924.15
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Receivables g (1.00) (5.00)
Total 6,148.26 9,534.23 8,919.14
[Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on credit terms of 30 to 60 days.
. As at As at As at
9 Cash & Cash Equivalents 31st March 2022| 31st March 2021 Ist April 2020
Balances with banks 3.86 2212 42.06
Cash on hand 43.00 43.40 36.85
Total 46.86 65.51 78.91
10 Bankbalancesotherthan"Cash & As at Asat Asat
Cash Equivalents” 31st March2022| 3lst March 2021 Ist April 2020
Bank deposit with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months 996.49 201.06 m3e
Total 996.49 201.06 111.36
11 Currentfinancial assets - Loans and As at Asat Asat
advances 31st March2022| 3lst March 2021 Ist April 2020
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Stafflloan 365 974 161
Claim recoverable in cash or kind from Vendor 70.46
Total 7411 9.74 1.61
X As at As at As at
12 Other non-current financial assets 31st March 2022| 31st March 2021 st April 2020
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Securityleposits 24647 255.48 22610
Total 246.47 255.48 226.10
As at As at As at
13 Othercurrentassets 31st March 2022| 31st March 2021 Ist April 2020
Balances with Government Authorities 34521 115.55 27431
Amount recoverable in cash or Kind from others 625.09 181.79 65.63
Prepaid Expenses 40.75 46.01 52.52
Defined benefit obligation-Surplus(net asset) _ 1.08 B
Total 1,011.05 344.43 392.46
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14

Equity Share Capital

(a)

Authorised & Issued Share Capital

As at As at As at
3lst March 2022 3lst March 2021 st April 2020
Authorised Share Capital Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 2,40,00,000 2,400.00 2,40,00,000 2,400.00 2,40,00,000 2,400.00
Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 2,10,82,790 2,108.28 2,10,82,790 2,108.28 2,10,82,790 2,108.28
(b) Reconciliation of Share Capital
Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up As at As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021 Ist April 2020
Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Opening Balance 2,10,82,790 2,108.28 2,10,82,790 2,108.28 2,10,82,790 2,108.28
Add: Bonus Shares issued - - - - - -
Closing Balance 2,10,82,790 2,108.28 2,10,82,790 2,108.28 2,10,82,790 2,108.28
(c) Termsand rights attached to equity shares
i) The Company has only one class of equity shares.The holders of equity shares are entitled to one vote per share.
ii) In the event of liquidation of the Company,the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution
of all preferential dues. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
iii) The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. Any dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of theg
sharedholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.
(d) Disclosure of Shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5%
Equity Shares
As at As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021 st April 2020
Name of Shareholder
No. of Shares held % of No. of Shares held % of No. of Shares held % of
Holding Holding Holding
[Shakuntala Agrawal 29,65,500 14.07% 29,65,500 14.07% 29,65,500 14.07%
Ratan Kumar Agrawal - 0.00% 29,30,400 13.90% 29,30,400 13.90%
[Sonal Agrawal 1,01,800 0.48% 27,01,800 12.82% 27,01,800 12.82%
Manoj Kumar Agrawal - 0.00% 24,28,200 11.52% 24,28,200 11.52%
RSR Infrastructure Private Limited 20,00,000 9.49% 20,00,000 9.49% 20,00,000 9.49%
Banarsi Devi Agrawal 49,00,000 23.24%
Ravi Agrawal 33,40,800 15.85%
[Total 1,33,08,100 63.12% 1,30,25,900 61.78%| 1,30,25,900 61.78%
(e) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued and shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five yearsimmediately preceding
thereporting date:
Date of issue of Fully paid up Bonus
hares Number of Bonus Shares Issued
0-Feb-18 1,37,94,480
15 Other Equity
Reserves & Surplus
Other
Retained Earnings Securities Comprehensive Total
9 Premium Income
Balance as at 1st April 2020 3,800.87 1,025.98 3.54 4,830.39
Profit for the year 579.82 - - 579.82
lOther comprehensive income for the year - - 4.52 452
Declared Dividend during the year - - (105.41)
(105.41)
Balance as at 31st March 2021 4,275.27 1,025.98 8.06 5,309.31
Balance as at 1st April 2021 4,275.27 1,025.98 8.06 5,309.31
Profit for the year 783.16 - = 783.16
jOther comprehensive income for - - 0.43 o
.43
the year
Balance as at 31st March 2022 5,058.43 1,025.98 8.49 6,092.90
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As at
. As at As at
SR rrowings 315;34232"(:'1 3l1st March 2021 | 1st April 2020
Secured- Term loans from bank
Vehicle Loan
Axis Bank Limited 97.27 237.09 350.69
HDFC Bank Limited 131.91 413.36 545.67
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited 190.30 37315 44872
Less: Current Maturity of Long Term Debt (319.76) (530.55) (582.68)
Unsecured
Loans From Directors - - 62.62
Total 99.71 493.05 825.03

(i) Vehicle loans are secured by hypothecation of the vehicles financed through the loan arrangements. Such loan are repayable in equal
monthly installments over a period of 3 to 5 years and carry interest rate ranging between 8.39% to 11.00% p.a.

The secured term loans was guaranteed by the directors of the Company.

There is no default, continuing or otherwise, as at the balance sheet date, in repayment of any above loans.

As at As at As at
17 Provisions (Non-current) 3lst March 3l1st March 2021 | 1st April 2020
2022
Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 32)
Provision for gratuity - - -
Total - - -
As at
18 Current Borrowings 3lst March As at As at
2022 31st March 2021 | 1st April 2020
Secured Loans from Banks
Working Capital Loan From HDFC Bank (158.79) 653.39 1,018.97
Working Capital Loan From Kotak Mahindra Bank - 45.08 137.49
Working Capital Loan From Axis Bank 510.98 1,091.23 211.60
Current maturities of long-term
borrowings (Secured) 319.76 530.55 582.68
Total 671.95 2,320.24 1,950.73

i) Working Capital Loan from HDFC Bank is secured against hypothecation of Book Debts, advances to suppliers and mortgage off
Immovable Properties of the Company, collateral security of immovable properties of others along with personal guarantee of Directorq
& Relatives and carries effective interest @ 8.40% p.a.
ii) Working Capital Loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank is secured against hypothecation of Current Assets and mortgage of Immovablg
Properties of the company along with personal guarantee of Directors and Carries effective interest @ 8.30% p.a. (6 months MCLR+
1.05%)
iii) Working Capital Loan from Axis Bank is secured against hypothecation of Current Assets and mortgage of Immovable Properties off
the Company along with personal guarantee & pledge of Share of the of Directors and Carries effective interest @ 8.80% p.a. (3 monthyg
MCLR+ 1.50%)

iv) There is no default,continuing or otherwise,as at the balance sheet date,in repayment of any above loans.
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As at
19 Trade Payables 3lst March As at As at
2022 31st March 2021 | 1st April 2020
Dues to Micro enterprises & small enterprises (Refer Note ¢ A i |
below)
Dues to Others 902.54 1,538.10 1,223.89
Total 902.54 1,538.10 1,223.89
Notes:
a) Trade payables are non-interest bearing.
For explanations on the Company’s liquidity risk management processes, refer to
b)
Note 35).
c) Details of Dues to Micro enterprises & small enterprises under MSMED Act, 2006 - - -
- The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any
supplier at the end of each accounting year
- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises - - -
- Interest due on above - - -
- The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of MSMED Act 2004 - - -
along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during each accounting year
- The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment - - -
(which have been paid but beyond the Appointed day during the year ) but without
adding the interest Specified under the MSMED Act 2006.
- The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each - - -
accounting year
- The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding - - -
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprises for the purpose of disallowances as deductible expenditure under
section 23 of MSMED Act 2006
Other fi ial liabiliti As at As at As at
gy el L S 31stMarch | 31st March 2021 | 1st April 2020
(Current) 2022
Interest accrued and due on Term Loan - -
Advance from customers 4.01 1.44 -
Total 4.01 1.44 -
As at
AT As at As at
21 Other current liabilities 31st March st March 2021 | 1st April 2020
2022
Statutory Liabilities 21.66 40.59 46.38
Total 21.66 40.59 46.38
As at As at As at
22 Provision (Current) 3ist March | 31st March 2021 | 1st April 2020
2022
Provision for employee benefits
(Refer Note 32)
Provision for gratuity 3.03 - 1.71
Others - - -
Provision for expenses 48.24 21.03 19.27
Creditor for Expenses 100.98 321.87 275.39
Total 152.25 342.90 296.37
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. Yearended Yearended
23Revenue from Operations 3lst March 2022 3lst March 2021
Gross Income from Transportation Business
Transportation Receipts 30,319.72 33,904.04
Total 30,319.72 33,904.04
Yearended Yearended
ZEOLSY Income 3ist March 2022 3ist March 2021
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 121.21 27.75
Amount Received on Write-off Account 145.07 30.04
Incentive & Loyalities Received 13.98 4571
Interest on deposits 3.67 557
Interest from Bank FDR & Current A/c 29.91 1o
Interest on IT Refund - 19.58
Rent Received 4.30 -
Deduction & Claim 6.80 (50.85)
Total 324.94 88.90
bs D Yearended Yearended
P 3lst March 2022 3lst March 2021
Lorry Hire Charges paid 27,083.07 30,046.72
Loading & Unloading & Handling Charges 19.39 5.08
Truck Trip Expenses 1,128.74 1,677.37
Direct Expenses for Truck, Trailor
Repairs & Maintenance (Truck & Trailor) 24497 284.33
RTO & Insurance Charges 105.21 115.25
28,581.39 32,128.75
) Yearended Yearended
26 O peses 3ist March 2022 3ist March 2021
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 147.97 161.64
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 14.96 18.06
Gratuity Contribution & Provisions 3.88 4.95
Staff Rent 64.51 16.60
Staff Welfare Expenses 70.77 8.60
Director's Remuneration 29.00 81.00
Total 331.09 290.86
o Yearended Yearended
P AAREIE e 3lst March 2022 3lst March 2021
Interest
Interest on Loan = o
Interest on Hire Charges 68.14 15.82
Interest on Cash Credit 80.32 80.75
Other Interest 6.59 0.75
Others
Bank Charges 10.49 5.76
Processing Fees - 8.85
Bank Guarantee Commission 8.29 15.91
Total 173.83 227.84
P P Yearended Yearended
28 Depreciation and amortization expenses 31st March 2022 31t March 2021
Depreciation expense on Property, Plant & Equipment 24936 391.46
Depreciation expense on intangible asstes 1.91 -
Total 251.27 391.46
Yearended Yearended
220t peneet 3ist March 2022 3ist March 2021
Administrative & Selling Expenses
Auditors Remuneration 5.00 354
Repair & Maintenance (Others) 2115 7.32
Postage, Telegram 412 3.02
CSR Expenditure 38.39 30.76
Commission 0.20 171
Electricity 917 9.75
Office & Miscellaneous Expenses 20.67 1317
Office & Godown Rent 39.79 40.97
Legal, Professional & Consultancy Charges 50.21 1812
Internal Audit Fees 1.00 1.20
Advertisement & Publicity 139 0.60
Printing & Stationery 18.82 10.03
Charity and donation 0.31 0.67
Provision of Bad Debts Customer Receivables (written off) - 1.00
Telephone Expenses 6.38 6.24
Traveling, Conveyance & Vehicle Expenses 28.68 18.64
Total 24529 166.72
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30Earning per share Year ended Year ended
gp 3Ist March 2022 31st March 2021

Total profit for the year 7,83,15,600 5,79,81,800

Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10/- each (Nos) 2,10,82,790 2,10,82,790

EPS - Basic and Diluted ( per share in Rs.) 3.71 2.75
31Contingent liabilities

0 Asat As at Asat

Rarticulars 31stMarch2022 |  3lst March 2021 1st April 2020

IContingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of: Guarantees, Undertakings & Letter of

ICredit

Bank Guarantees issued by the Company’s Bankers on behalf of the Company. *

(i) 605.64 684.36 592.06
Less - Margin provided (STDR) 307.10 201.06 111.36

Net Liability 298.54 483.29 480.70

[iiy [Letter of credit opened by banks 3 o 5
Corporate guarantees/undertakings issued on behalf of third parties - - -

(iii)

[Statutory Demands

(i) |Disputed Excise Duty and Other demands & & o

Income Tax demands where the cases are pending at various stages of appeal with the 573.61 - 62.21
. authorities. **

(ii)

(i) [TDS demand (As per TRACES ) 7.34 - -
Less- Amount Paid 5.05 - -

Net Liability 228
lOthers
Claims against the Company, not acknowledge as debt - - -

(i)

Uncalled liability towards partly paid up shares - - -

(ii)

(iii) |Commitments - - -
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not - - -
provided for (net of advance)

(iv)

** Disputed income tax demand for A.Y. 2018-19 & 2020-2021 not provided for is Rs. 573.61 Lakhs (31st March 2021 A.Y. 2011-12 & 2012-2013 not provided for is Rs.
Nil; 1st April 2020 A.Y. 2011-12 & 2012-2013 not provided for is Rs. 62.21 Lakhs/-),

32Employee benefits
a) Description of the type of the plan

Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity

The Company operates gratuity plan wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit equivalent to 15 days of total basic salary last drawn for each|
completed year of service. Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Company on retirement, separation, death or permanent disablement, in termg
of the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

Post-Employment Benefits plan defined in a(ii) and a(iii) above typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: Salary increase, Discount rate,
Morality and Disability and withdrawals

a) Salary Increases :— Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase
the liability.

b) Discount Rate :- Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

c) Mortality & disability :- Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

d) Withdrawals i— Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can
impact Plan’s liability.
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b) The following tables set out the status of the gratuity plan, unavailed leave and amounts recognized in the Company'’s financial statements.
. - . - As at As at
) Changein benefit obligations 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Present value of obligation as at beginning of the year 671 641
Interest Cost 486 4.49
Current Service Cost 296 483
Benefits paid (21.35) I
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligation (416) (6.37)
Present value of obligation as at the
end of the year 50.37 67.06
ii) FairValue of Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets 6814 62.40
Actual return on plan assets 135 4.03
Contributions R 17
Benefits paid (21.35) .
Acturial gain/(loss) on plan assets } :
Fair value of plan assets
48.15 68.14
iii) Net Assets/(Liability) (ii-i) 222 (1.08)
iv) Amountrecognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 31::;'::’? ;gzz 31;(33';?2: 2821
Service cost 396 4.83
Net Interest cost 4.86 4.49
Actuarial (gain) /loss for the year - -
Expected return on plan asset (4.94) (4.37)
Expense recognized in the Income Statement 3.88 4.95
Vv) Amountrecognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 31;?3:2: ;gzz 3.'::;:2: 3321
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss for the year on Projected Benefit Obligation (4.16) (6.37)
Expense recognized in the Income Statement (4.16) (6.37)
vi) Planassets - Gratuity fund As at Asat
3ist March 2022 31st March 2021
Funds managed by insurer 4815 68.14
48.15 68.14
vii) |Principal Actuarial Assumptions As at Asat
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
i) Discount rate (p.a.) 7.25% 7.00%
i) Future salary increase (p.a.) 5.00% 4.00%
0 " As at As at
vill) | DemographieeemRE R 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
i) Retirement age 60 years 60 years
i) Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14
iii) WithcieielRStS 20%(18 to 30 Years) 5.00%
iv) Withdrawal Rate 5%(31 to 40 Years)
v) Withdrawal Rate 29%(41 to 60 Years)
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b) The following tables set out the status of the gratuity plan, unavailed leave and amounts recognized in the Company'’s financial statements.

(Rs. in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

. N .t Asat Asat
i) Changein benefit obligations 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Present value of obligation as at beginning of the year 671 64l
Interest Cost 486 4.49
Current Service Cost 296 483
Benefits paid (21.35) :
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligation (416) (6.37)
Present value of obligation as at the
end of theyear 5037 67.06
ii) FairValue of Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets 6814 62.40
Actual return on plan assets 135 4.03
Contributions : 171
Benefits paid (21.35) )
Acturial gain/(loss) on plan assets : i}
Fair value of plan assets
48.15 68.14
iii) Net Assets/(Liability) (ii-i) 222 (1.08)
iv) Amountrecognised in Statement of Profitand Loss 31;65232: ;gzz 31;(33';?2: 2821
Service cost 3.96 4.83
Net Interest cost 4.86 4.49
Actuarial (gain) /loss for the year - -
Expected return on plan asset (4.94) (4.37)
Expense recognized in the Income Statement 3.88 4.95
V) Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 31;(&3:2:;322 31:3;?23;321
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss for the year on Projected Benefit Obligation (4.16) (6.37)
Expense recognized in the Income Statement (4.16) (6.37)
vi) Plan assets - Gratuity fund As at Asat
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Funds managed by insurer 4815 68.14
48.15 68.14
vii) |Principal Actuarial Assumptions Asat As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
i) Discount rate (p.a.) 7.25% 7.00%
i) Future salary increase (p.a.) 5.00% 4.00%
n N As at As at
Vi) Demographic Assumptions 3lst March 2022 3ist March 2021
i) Retirement age 60 years 60 years
i) Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14
i) WithCrawaliRSte 20%(18 to 30 Years) 5.00%

iv) Withdrawal Rate

v) Withdrawal Rate

5%(31to 40 Years)

2%(41to 60 Years)
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ix) Expected contributions for the next annual reporting period

Year ended
31st March 2022

Year ended
31st March 2021

Expected expense for the next annual reporting period

4.56

5.88

x) Sensitivity Analysis of the Defined Benefit Obligation

Year ended
31st March 2022

Year ended
31st March 2021

Impact of the change in discount rate

Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 50.37
Impact due to increase of 1.00% (3.68)
Impact due to decrease of 1.00% 4.29
Impact of the change in salary increase

Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 50.37
Impact due to increase of 1.00% 4.35
Impact due to decrease of 1.00% (3.78)

Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change not calculated.
Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment & life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

67.06

(3.07)
3.54

67.06
3.62

(3.18)

xi) Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation et hgsr:‘; L
01 Apr 2021 to 31 Mar 2022 29.80
01 Apr 2022 to 31 Mar 2023 2.14
01 Apr 2023 to 31 Mar 2024 2.46
01 Apr 2024 to 31 Mar 2025 1.10
01 Apr 2025 to 31 Mar 2026 5.63
01 Apr 2026 Onwards 25.93

. - - - - . As at

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation 31st March 2022
01 Apr 2022 to 31 Mar 2023 10.24
01 Apr 2023 to 31 Mar 2024 2.50
01 Apr 2024 to 31 Mar 2025 0.64
01 Apr 2025 to 31 Mar 2026 5.92
01 Apr 2026 to 31 Mar 2027 1.42
01 Apr 2027 Onwards 29.65

33 Related Party Transactions

certified by the Management are:

Key Managerial Personnel
Ratan Kumar Agrawal
Shakuntala Devi Agrawal
Manoj Kumar Agrawal
Ravi Agrawal

Relatives of KMP
Akshay Agrawal
Banarshi Devi Agrawal
Subhash Chand Mittal
Sonal Agrawal

Ashok Kumar Agrawal
Kapil Mittal

Ravi Agrawal HUF

Ashok Kumar & Sons
Rishi Kumar & Sons
Manoj Agrawal & Sons

b) Transactions with the related parties for the year ended

a) List of related parties and nature of relationship where control exists:

In accordance with the requirement of IndAS 24 on Related Parties notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, the namqg
of related parties where control exists and / or with whom transactions have taken place during the year and description of relationships, as identified and

Particulars

Key Managerial

Relatives of KMP

Personnel
31st March 2022
Repayment of loans taken = =
Rental expense 8.40 3.60
Remuneration/Salary 58.00 21.90
Freight Paid o 429.03
Purchases of Spare parts - 55.49
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Freight Received - 71.85
31st March 2021
Repayment of loans taken 62.62 -
Rental expense 8.40 3.60
Remuneration/Salary 78.50 21.90
Freight Paid 2318 345.30
Purchases of Spare parts - N5.71
Freight Received - 8.89
¢) Detail of Outstanding Balances are as follows:-
0 peyiiehac e Relatives of KMP

Particulars Personnel

As on 31st March 2022

Rent payable 0.63 -
Remuneration/ Salary Payable 230 124
As on 31st March 2021

Rent payable - 0.28
Remuneration/ Salary Payable 237 176
As on 1st April 2020

Loan payable 62.62 o
Rent payable 0.63 0.27
Remuneration/ Salary Payable 5.64 176
Balance payable - 38.31

34Financial instruments
Fair value measurements

Following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities:

As at Asat As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021 st April 2020
FVTPL Amortised Cost FVTPL Amortised Cost FVTPL Amortised Cost
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables - 6,148.26 - 9,534.23 - 8,919.14
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 46.86 - 65.51 - 78.91
Bank balances other than Cash and
Cash Equivalents - 996.49 - 201.06 - m.3e
Loans and advances - 7411 - 9.74 - 1.61
Others - 787.91 - 796.92 - 226.10
- 8,053.62 10,607.47 - 9,337.12
Current - 7,512.19 10,066.03 - 9,337.12
Non-Current - 541.43 541.43 - -
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - 771.66 - 2,813.29 - 2,775.76
Trade Payables - 902.54 - 1,538.10 - 1,223.89
Other Financial Liabilities - 4.01 - 1.44 - -
- 1,678.22 4,352.83 - 3,999.66
Current - 1,578.51 3,859.78 - 3,174.62
Non-Current - 99.71 - 493.05 - 825.03
Fair Value hierarchy
The following tables shows the levels in the fair value hierarchy of financial assets and financial liabilities
Fair value Measurement
Levell Level 2 Level 3
Asat
31st March 2022
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables - - 6,148.26
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 46.86
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Bank balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents o o 996.49
Loans and advances - - 741
Others - - 787.91
- - 8,053.62
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - - 771.66
Trade Payables - - 902.54
Other Financial Liabilities - - 4.01
- - 1,678.22
Asat
31st March 2021
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables - - 9,534.23
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 65.51
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents o - 201.06
Loans and advances - - 9.74
Others - - 796.92
- - 10,607.47
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - - 2,813.29
Trade Payables - - 1,538.10
Other Financial Liabilities - - 1.44
- - 4,352.83
As at

1st April 2020

Financial Assets

Trade Receivables - - 8,919.14
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 78.91
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents = - 111.36
Loans and advances - - 1.61
Others - - 226.10
- - 9,337.12
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - - 2,775.76
Trade Payables - - 1,223.89

Other Financial Liabilities - - R
- - 3,999.66

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances are considered to be the same as their fair
values, due to their short-term nature.

The fair values of borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a borrowing rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy
due to the use of unobservable inputs, including own credit risk.

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

35Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, security deposits, trade and other payables, etc. The main purpose of these financiall
liabilities is to finance the Company’'s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade receivable, security deposit, cash and cash|
equivalents, etc. that derive directly from its operations. The Company also holds investments in the shares of its subsidiary measured at amortised cost.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The management oversees the management of these risks. The management id
responsible for formulating an appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company and periodically reviewing the same. The management]
ensures that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The management
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

(a)Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market priceqd
comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and Equity price risk.

(i) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Since]
the Company has borrowings, therefore Company is exposed to such risk.

(i) Foreign Currency Risk
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The Indian Rupee is the Company’s most significant currency. As a consequence, the Company’s results are presented in Indian Rupee and exposures arg
managed against Indian Rupee accordingly. So, the Company is exposed to such risk.
(iii) Equity Price Risk

The Company's investment in shares are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment securities. The
Company manages the price risk through diversification and by placing limits on individual and total instruments. Reports on the portfolio are submitted tg
the management on a regular basis.

(b)Credit Risk
The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the balance sheet
Particulars Asat As at Asat
3lst March 2022 3lst March 2021 Ist April 2020
Trade receivables 6,148 9,534 8,919
Other financial assets 788 797 226

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations.

Credit risk arises mainly from loans, trade receivables and financial assets. The Company maintains a defined credit policy and monitors the exposures tqg
these credit risks on an ongoing basis. None of the trade receivables are credit impaired as on reporting date.

On adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. Based on internal assessment which id
driven by the historical experience/ current facts available in relation to default and delays in collection thereof, the expected credit loss for trade receivableq
is not significant.
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The Company monitors credit risk very closely both in domestic and
export market. The Management impact analysis shows credit risk and impact assessment as low.

The Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables are as follows:

" As at Asat As at
L 3IstMarch2022 |  3istMarch2021 Ist April 2020
As on 01.04.2020 |
Particulars 0-1Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 Year Total
(i)Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good. 8,191.90 236.12 17.60 27.01 8,472.64
(ii)) Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered doubtfull -
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good. -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful -
Unbilled Dues of 2019-20
[Freight Receivable | 446.50 | f| B | B 446.50
20-21 |
Particulars 0-1Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 Year Total
(i)Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good. 7,299.02 224.30 99.53 35.37 7,658.23
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered doubtfull -
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good. -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful -
Unbilled Dues of 2020-21
Freight Receivable (2020-21) 1.888.60 1888.60
Sundry Debtors (TDS Provisions) (12.59) (12.59)
21-22 ]
Particulars 0-1Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 Year Total
(i)Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good. 4,176.70 175.91 165.84 110.07 4,628.52
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered doubtful -
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good. -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful -
Unbilled Dues of 2021-22
[FREIGHT RECEIVABLES (2021-22) | 1519.74 | | | | 1,519.74

(c)Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity tg
meet its liabilities when they are fallen due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to thg
Company's reputation.
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The following are the contractual maturities of the financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments as at 31st March 2022:

Carrying Contractual Cash Flows

amount Lessthan1Year 1-2Year 2-3Year More than 3 Year Total
Borrowings 771.66 671.95 84.26 15.45 - 771.66
Trade Payables 902.54 780.03 122.52 - - 902.55
Other Financial Liabilities 4.01 4.01 - - - 4.01
Total 1,678.22 1,456.00 206.78 15.45 - 1,678.22
The following are the contractual maturities of the financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments as at 31st March 2021:

Carrying Contractual Cash Flows

amount Lessthan1Year 1-2Year 2-3Year More than 3 Year Total
Borrowings 2,813.29 2,041.63 671.95 84.26 15.45 2,813.29
Trade Payables 1,538.10 1,322.42 215.68 - - 1,538.10
Other Financial Liabilities 1.44 1.44 - - - 1.44
Total 4,352.83 3,365.49 887.63 84.26 15.45 4,352.83
The following are the contractual maturities of the financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments as at 1st April 2020:

Carrying Contractual Cash Flows

amount Lessthan1Year 1-2Year 2-3Year More than 3 Year Total
Borrowings 2,775.76 825.03 1,179.07 671.95 99.71 2,775.76
Trade Payables 1,223.89 1,040.31 183.58 1,223.89
Other Financial Liabilities - -
Total 3,999.66 1,865.34 1,362.65 671.95 99.71 3,999.66

36Capital management

The management policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain future development of the
business. The Company’s management monitor the return on capital employed.

Company's Gearing ratio

As at As at Asat
31st March 2022 31st March 2021 Ist April 2020
Total Liabilities 1,890 4,762 4,377
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,043 267 190
Net Debt 847 4,495 4,189
Total Equity 8,201 7,418 6,939
Gearing Ratio 0.10 0.61 0.60
37Ratios
The disclosure required as per the provisions of Regulation 52(4) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is given below:
. . Asat As at
Ratio Numerator penominator 3istMarch2022 | 3istMarch 2021
Debt-Equity ratio (in times) Net debt- Non current Equity- equity share capital+other 0.09 0.34
borrowings+current borrowings - equity
cash and cash equivalents
ICurrent ratio Total current assets Total current liabilities
(in times) 4.86 243
ICurrent Total current liabilities Total liabilities
liability ratio
(in times) 0.93 0.89
Return on Profit before tax and finance costg Capital employed = Net worth +
capital Deferred tax liabilities
lemployed (in 15% 149
%)
[Trade receivables turnover ratio (in times) Revenue from operations Average trade receivables 3.87 3.26
Debt service coverage ratio (in times) Earning for Debt Service = Net Debt service = Interest Payments +
N o s 0.55 219
Profit before taxes + Depreciation Principal Repayments
Return on Equity (ROE) (In %) Profit for the year Total equity 10% 8%
Net profit ratiof Profit for the year Revenue from operations
(In %) 3% 2%
[Trade payables turnover ratio (in times) Net Credit Purchases Average Trade Payables 23.42) 2324
Net capital turnover ratio (in times) Revenue from operations Working capital (i.e. Total current
AT 4.48 5.25
assets less Total current liabilities)
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38.1

38.2

38CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act,2013, a Company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for thg
immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility(CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and
malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation, environment sustainability,disasterrelief, COVID-19 relief and
rural development projects. A CSR committee has been formed by the company as per the Act. The funds were primarily utilized through the year on thesq
activities which are specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act,2013:

As at As at
31st March 2022 3lst March 2021

) Gross amount required to be spend by the company during the year
s per Section 135 of Companies Act,2013 read with Schedule VII thereof

2378 24.61
o) The company has spend towards Corporate Social Responsibility
Which includes such expenses incurred out of unspend amount of earlier
ear.
38.39 30.76

The various head which the CSR expenditure were incurred in cash is detailed as follows

Relevant Clause of
PARTICULARS [Schedule vii to the F.Y.2021-2022 F.Y.2020-2021
ICompanies Act,2013

Eradicating Hunger, poverty and malnutrition i 23.39 20.76
Promoting Education ii 15.00 10.00

39The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 in the preparation of these standalone financia

40

41Some of the balances of Trade Receivables, Deposits, Loans & Advances, Advances received from customers, Liability for expenses and Trade Payables arg

statements including the recoverability of carrying amounts of financial and non financial assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possiblg
future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company has, at the date of approval of these financial statements|
used internal and external sources of information including credit reports and related information and economic forecasts and expects that the carrying
amount of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of
approval of these standalone financial statements.

An amount of Rs. 5,41,43,316/- was identified in previous year 2020-21 as fraud at Jharsugda Branch done by the branch head along with two more employeeq
of Jharsugda Branch of OBCL. The fraud relates to excess payment of freight charges frequently. The fraud amount is credited to the freight account §
debited to the branch head Mr. Chena Ram Saini & grouped as other non-current financial assets in note no. 6 of the audited financial statement. Ng
provision for this amount is made in books of accounts, as the management is quite certain about its recovery from the movable/immovable of the alleged
culprits to the fraud. An F.I.R vide SI. No. 0215 dated 27/04/2021 at Jharsugada P.S. was lodged against the branch head Mr. Chena Ram Saini and others.

subject to confirmation from the respective parties and consequential reconciliation/adjustment arising there from, if any. The management, however, doeq
not expect any material variation. Further, Company had made payments on behalf of vendors to certain other parties
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42 Note on First Time Adoption of Ind AS:
The accounting policies set out in the note here have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 3is{
March, 2022, the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021 and in the]
preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at 1st April, 2020 [the Company’s date of transition].

In preparing its opening Ind AS balance sheet, the Company has adjusted the amounts reported previously in financial statementd
prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies [Accounting Standards] Rules, 2006 [ag
amended] and other relevant provisions of the Act [Indian GAAP]. An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind
AS has affected the Company'’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set out in the following notes.

Exemptions and exceptions availed:
Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from Indian|
GAAP to Ind AS.

Optional exemptions
a Deemed cost

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment
as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the Indian GAAP and use that
as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities
Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment at their Indian GAAP carrying
values.

b Non Current Asset held for sale
Ind AS 105 requires non-current assets (or disposal groups) that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale, non-curren]
assets (or disposal groups) that are held for distribution to owners and operations that meet the criteria to be classified aq
discontinued and carried at lower of its carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell on the initial date of such

identification. A first time adopter can
(a) measure such assets or operations at the lower of carrying value and fair value less cost to sell at the date of transition t9
Ind ASs in accordance with Ind AS 105; and

(b) recognise directly in retained earnings any difference between that amount and the carrying amount of those assets at
the date of transition to Ind ASs determined under the entity's previous GAAP.

Mandatory exceptions
c Estimates
An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition shall be consistent with estimates made for the samg
date in accordance with Indian GAAP [after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies], unless there ig
objective evidence that those estimates were in error.

The Company’s estimates under Ind AS are consistent with the above requirement. Key estimates considered in preparation|
of the financial statements that were not required under the previous GAAP are Ilisted below
- Impairment of financial assets based on the expected credit loss model
- Determination of the discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortised cost
- Discounted value of long term provisions.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as on the
date of transition. Further, the standard permits measurement of financial assets accounted at amortised cost based on facts and
circumstances existing at the date of transition if retrospective application is impracticable. Accordingly, the Company has
determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumstances that exist on the date of transition.
Measurement of the financial assets accounted at amortised cost has been done retrospectively except where the same is
impracticable.
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Note on Transition to Ind AS - Reconciliations:

The following reconciliations provide the explanations and quantification of the differences arising from the transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS in

accordance with Ind AS 101:

1. Reconciliation of Equity as at 1st April, 2020
1. A. Reconciliation of Equity as at 31st March, 2021

B. Reconciliation of Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 3list March, 2021

Previous GAAP figures have been reclassified/regrouped wherever necessary to conform with financial statements prepared under Ind AS.

1. Reconciliation of Equity as at Ist April, 2020

As at 1st April, 2020
Sr. No. Particulars Foot (Date of transition)
Note
| GAAP Adjustment IND AS

I JASSETS

Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1,354.46 - 1,354.46

(b) Capital work-in-progress 30.73 - 30.73

(c) Financial Assets _

(i) Others 226.10 - 226.10
(d) Income Tax Assets (net) 5 200.42 200.42
[Total Non-Current Assets 1,611.28 200.42 1,811.70
ICurrent Assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 8,919.14 - 8,919.14
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 190.27 (0.00) 190.27
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 5 m.36 M.36
(iv) Loans and advances 594.49 (592.88) 1.61
(b) Other Current Assets o 392.46 392.46
Total Current Assets 9,703.90 (89.06) 9,614.85
[Total ASSETS 11,315.18 1M.36 11,426.55

. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(@) Equity Share Capital 2,108.28 - 2,108
(b) Other Equity 4,831.58 (1.19) 4,830
[Total EQUITY 6,939.86 (1.19) 6,938.67
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 825.03 - 825.03
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 3292 119 3411
[Total Non-Current Liabilities 857.95 119 859.14
ICurrent Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 1,368.05 582.68 1,950.73
(ii) Trade Payables 1,223.89 - 1,223.89
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 582.68 (582.68) -
(b) Other Current Liabilities o 4637 46.37
(c) Provisions 342.75 (46.37) 296.37
[Total Current Liabilities 3,517.37 - 3,517.37
[Total EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 11,315.18 - 11,315.18
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1. A. Reconciliation of Equity as at 31st March, 2021
Sr . Foot As at 3lst Marc_h_2021
. Particulars (Date of transition)
No. Note
| GAAP Adjustment IND AS
. IASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 951.90 0.00 952
(b) Capital work-in-progress 4612 0.00 46
(c) Financial Assets 0.00 0.00
(i) Others 255.48 285.95 541
(d) Income Tax Assets (net) 0.00 229.66 230
[Total Non-Current Assets
1,254 516 1,769
Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables
9,534.23 - 9,534
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents
266.58 (0.00) 267
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above = 201.06 201
(iv) Loans and advances
1,124.19 (1 N4.44) 10
(v) Others - 255.48 255
(b) Other Current Assets o 344.43 344
[Total Current Assets
10,925.00 (313.47) 10,611.53
[Total ASSETS
12,178.50 202.15 12,380.64
1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital
2,108.28 - 2,108
(b) Other Equity
5,310.94 (0.00) 5,311
[Total EQUITY
7,419.22 (0.00) 7,419.22
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
493.05 - 493
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)
22.96 2.71 26
[Total Non-Current Liabilities
516.01 2.71 518.72
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
1,789.69 530.55 2,320
(ii) Trade Payables
1,538.10 - 1,538
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities
53198 (0.01) 532
(b) Other Current Liabilities = 40.59 41
(c) Provisions
383.49 (0.00) 383
[Total Current Liabilities
4,243.27 571.14 4,814.41
[Total EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
12,178.50 573.85 12,752.34
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B. Reconciliation of Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Foot As at 31st March 2020
sr. No. Particulars Note (Date of transition)
| GAAP Adjustment IND AS
| INCOME
Revenue From Operations 33.904.04 ) 33904
Other Income
139.74 (50.85) 89
Total INCOME 34,043.78 (50.85) 33,992.94
] EXPENSES
Gross Transportation Expenses
32,128.75 - 32,129
Employee Benefit Expenses
285.91 4.95 291
Finance Costs
227.84 - 228
Depreciation & Amortization Expense
391.46 - 391
Other Expenses
217.56 (50.85) 167
Total EXPENSES
33,251.52 (45.89) 33,205.63
Profit before tax 792.26 (4.95) 787.31
Tax Expense
Current Tax
217.45 - 217
Deferred Tax
(9.96) - (10)
Total Tax Expense 207.49 - 207.49
Profit for the period 584.77 (4.95) 579.82
Other Comprehensive Income
A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans
6.04 6
Income tax relating to re-measurement gain on
defined benefit plans
(1.52) (2)
Total Other Comprehensive Income - 4,52 4.52
Total Comprehensive Income 584.77 (0.43) 584.34

Foot Note to the Reconciliations

a

Remeasurement cost of net defined liability

Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognised costs related to its post-employment defined
benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under Indian GAAP, the entire cost, including actuarial gains and losses, arg
charged to profit or loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurements comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of
the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return|
on plan assets excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability are recognised

immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI.
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022

b Deferred Tax
The impact of transition adjustments together with Ind AS mandate of using balance
sheet approach {against profit and loss approach in the Indian GAAP) for computation of
deferred taxes has resulted in charge to Reserves, on the date of transition, with
consequential impact to the Statement of Profit and Loss account for the subsequent
periods.

¢ Other comprehensive income
Under Indian GAAP, the Company has not presented other comprehensive income (OClI)
separately. Hence, it has reconciled Indian GAAP profit or loss to profit or loss as per Ind
AS. Further, Indian GAAP profit or loss is reconciled to total comprehensive income as
per Ind AS.

d Estimates

The estimates at 1st April 2020 and 31st March 2021 are consistent with those made for
the same dates in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any
differences in accounting policies). The estimates used by the Company to present these
amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions on 1st April 2020, the date of
transition to Ind AS and as of 31st March 2021.

e Reclassification as per requirement of Ind AS
Reclassification have been done in respective heads as per requirement of Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS).

43 Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassed, where necessary, to confirm to
current year's classification. This does not impact recognition and measurement principles
followed for preparation of financial statements.

For & on Behalf of the
As per our Report of even date annexed Board
For AGRAWAL & PANSARI
Firm Registration No.-003350C.

Gopal Kumar

Chartered Accountants Ravi Agrawal Agrawalla
(Managing Director) (Chairman)
DIN: 01392652 DIN: 07941122

CA R.K.Agrawal

Partner

(M.No.- 053338) Akshay Agrawal Muskaan Gupta
(Chief Finance

PLACE : RAIPUR Officer) (Company Secretary

DATE :30.05.2022 & Compliance Officer)

UDIN :22053338AJZOHS2071 M.No. A-63639
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 27t Annual
General Meeting of the members of the
Company will be held on Tuesday, the 6th
day of September, 2022 at 10:00 AM at the
Corporate Office of the Company situated
A-1, 3@ Floor, CG Elite Complex, Opposite
Mandi Gate, Pandri, Raipur (C.G.)- 492001 to
transact the following Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the
Audited Financial Statements of the
Company for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2022, including Audited Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement
of Profit & Loss for the year ended on that
date and the reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon.

2.To re-appoint Mrs. Shakuntala Devi
Agrawal (DIN: 01540586), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers herself
for re-appointment.

3.To revise the remuneration of Mr. Ravi
Agrawal (DIN: 01392652), Managing
Director of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the
following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the
provisions of Section 196 & 197 read with
Schedule V and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including
any statutory modification or re-enactment
thereof) and applicable clauses of the
Articles of Association of the Company and
upon recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and Board
of Directors of the Company, consent of the
members of the Company, be and is hereby
accorded to revise the remuneration
payable to Mr. Ravi Agrawal (DIN: 01392652),

Managing Director of the Company with
effect from 01t October 2022 for the
remaining period of his term as follows:

Consolidated Salary: Rs. 4,50,000/-
(Rupees Four Lakh Fifty Thousand only)
Per Month (excluding reimbursement of
expenses, if any) which includes the
variable pay and perquisites.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of
Directors (which term shall always be
deemedto include any Committee as
constituted or to be constituted by the
Board to exercise its powers including
the powers conferred under this
resolution) be and is hereby authorised
to vary or increase the remuneration
specified above from time to time to the
extent the Board of Directors may deem
appropriate, provided that such variation
or increase, as the case may be, is within
the overall limits specified under the
relevant provisions o the Companies Act,
2013.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the
Directors of the Company, the Chief
Financial Officer and the Company
Secretary of the Company, be and are
hereby severally authorised to do all such
acts, deeds, matters and things as may
be considered necessary, desirable or
expedient to give effect to this
resolution.”

By order of the Board
For, Orissa Bengal Carriers Limited

Date: 08.08.2022
Place: Raipur

Ravi Agrawal
Managing Director
DIN: 01392652
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The Explanatory Statement setting out the
material facts pursuant to Section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), in respect of
the Special Business under ltem No. 3 set
above and the details as required under
Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (‘SEBI LODR Regulations”) and
Secretarial Standard on General meeting (SS-
2) in respect of the Directors seeking
appointment or proposed change in
remuneration at this Annual General Meeting
is annexed hereto.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting is entitled to appoint
a proxy to attend and vote on poll instead of
himself/herself and the proxy need not be a
member of the Company. A person can act as
proxy on behalf of member(s) not exceeding
fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not
more than ten percent (10%) of the total share
capital of the Company carrying voting rights.
A member holding more than ten percent
(10%) of the total share capital of the
Company may appoint a single person as
proxy and such person shall not act as proxy
for any other person or member.

The instrument appointing the proxy
(enclosed hereto) in order to be effective must
be deposited (duly completed, stamped and
signed) at the registered office of the
Company not less than forty-eight (48) hours
before the commencement of the meeting.
Member(s) /Proxies /Authorize
Representatives are requested to bring the
enclosed attendance slip duly filled in and
signed for attending the meeting. Member(s)
are requested to write the Client ID and DP ID
number in the attendance slip.

Corporate Member(s) intending to send their
authorized representative(s) to attend the
meeting are requested to send a duly
certified copy of the Board Resolution/Power
of Attorney authorizing their representative(s)
to attend and vote on their behalf at the
meeting.

10.

1.

12.

13.

Pursuant to Section 72 of the Act,
member(s) of the Company may
nominate a person in whom the shares
held by him/them shall vest in the event
of his/ their unfortunate death. The
nomination form may be filed with the
respective Depository Participant.

In case of joint holders, only such joint
holder who is named first in the order of
names will be entitled to vote.

The route map showing directions to
reach the venue of the meeting is
enclosed.

The Register of Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel and their
shareholding, maintained under Section
170 of the Act and the Register of
Contracts or Agreements in which the
directors are interested, maintained
under Section 189 of the Act, will be
available for inspection by the members
at the meeting.

Members desirous of seeking any
information relating to the Accounts of
the Company may write to the
Company at the registered office for the
attention of Company Secretary, at least
seven days in advance of the Meeting so
that requisite information can be made
available at the Meeting.

Members are hereby requested to
intimate their details, the changes if any,
of their registered addresses to their
respective Depository Participant(s).

All relevant documents referred to in the
Notice of the Meeting shall be open for
inspection at the Corporate Office of the
Company during normal business hours
(11.00 am to 05.00 pm) on all working
days, upto the date of the meeting.
Pursuant to SEBI  Circular

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242
dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of
Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed
entities are required to provide remote
e-voting facility to its shareholders, in
respect of all shareholders’ resolutions.

No.
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14. In compliance with Section 108 of the 19

Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the ’
Companies (Management and

15.

16.

17.

18.

Administration) Rules 2015 and pursuant to
Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations
2015, SS-2 (Secretarial Standards on General
Meeting) issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India (“ICSI"”) and the provisions
of the MCA Circulars and the SEBI Circulars,
the business may be transacted through
electronic voting system and the Company is
providing for voting by electronic means (E-
voting) to its members through remote e-
voting platform provided by the CDSL to cast
their votes

The voting rights of member(s) shall be in
proportion to their shares in the paid up
equity share capital of the Company as on the
cut-off date i.e. Thursday, September 01, 2022.
A person whose name is recorded in the
register of members or in the register of
beneficial owners maintained by the
depositories as on the cut-off date, i.e.
Thursday, September 01, 2022 only shall be
entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting
/ Poll.

The voting period begins on Friday,
September 02, 2022 at 09:00 a.m. and ends
on Monday, September 05, 2022 at 5:00 p.m.
During this period shareholders’ of the
Company, holding shares in dematerialized
form, as on the cut-off date of Thursday,
September 01, 2022 may cast their vote
electronically. The e-voting module shall be
disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. The
instructions for e-voting are annexed to the
notice.

In addition, the facility for voting through
Ballot Papers shall also be made available at
the AGM and the members attending the
AGM who have not cast their votes through
Remote e-voting shall be eligible to vote at
the Annual General meeting.

The members who have cast their votes by e-
voting prior to AGM may attend the AGM but
shall not be entitled to cast their votes again.

20.

21.

The Company has appointed M/s. Anil
Agrawal & Associates, Companies
Secretaries, to act as Scrutinizer, to
scrutinize the entire e-voting process as
well as voting in the Annual General

meeting in a fair and transparent
manner.

Pursuant to Section 101 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant
Rules made there under, Companies can
serve Annual Report and other
communications through electronic

mode to those Members who have
registered their e-mail addresses either
with the Company or with the
Depository. Members who have not
registered their e-mail addresses so far
are requested to register their e-mail
address so that they can receive the
Annual Report and other
communication from the Company
electronically. Members holding shares
in demat form are requested to register
their e-mail address with their
Depository Participants only. Members
of the Company who have registered
their e-mail address are entitled to
receive such communication in physical
form upon request.

With reference to the MCA Circular
dated May 05, 2022 and SEBI Circular
Number SEBI/ HO/
CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13,
2022, the hard copy of annual report
containing financial statements for the
FY 2021-22 and other salient features of
all the documents prescribed in Section
136 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
being sent to the shareholders who have
not registered their email addresses and
the same will be sent to those
shareholders who request for the same.
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22. The Notice of AGM and Attendance Slip are being sent in electronic mode to Members
whose e-mail IDs are registered with the Company or the Depository Participant(s) unless
the Members have registered their request for a hard copy of the same. Physical copy of
the Notice of AGM and Attendance Slip are being sent to those Members who have not
registered their e-mail IDs with the Company or Depository Participant(s). Members who
have received the Notice of AGM and Attendance Slip in electronic mode are requested to
print the Attendance Slip and submit a duly filled in Attendance Slip at the registration
counter to attend the AGM.

23. The Notice of AGM and the Annual Report are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchanges viz. BSE at www.bseindia.com and NSE at www.nseindia.com and the website
of the Company at www.obclimited.com.

24. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:-

Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual
shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on
e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories
and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and
email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders
holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:
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Type of
shareholders

1)

Individual
Shareholders
holding securities
in Demat mode
with CDSL
Depository

1)

Individual
Shareholders
holding securities
in demat mode
with NSDL
Depository

Individual
Shareholders
(holding securities
in demat mode)
login through their
Depository
Participants (DP)
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Login Method

Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and
password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication.
The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit
www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi.

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible
Companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by Company. On clicking
the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links provided to access
the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can
visit the e-Voting service providers’' website directly.

If the wuser is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and
PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page or click on
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The system will authenticate the user by sending
OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication,
user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open
web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or
on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under
“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your
User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click
on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on
Company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

If the wuser is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of
e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat
account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting
page. Click on Company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-
Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant
registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting
option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on Company name or e-Voting
service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use

Forget User ID and

Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.
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Helpdesk for Individual
Shareholders holding securities in
demat mode for any technical
issues related to login through
Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Members facing any
technical issue in login can
contact CDSL helpdesk by
sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.
com or contact at toll free no.
1800 22 55 33

Individual Shareholders
holding securitiesin
Demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any
technical issue in login can
contact NSDL helpdesk by
sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at
toll free no.: 1800 1020 990
and 1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders
holding securitiesin
Demat mode with NSDL

Step 2: Access through CDSL e-

Voting system in case of shareholders

holding shares in physical mode and non-

individual shareholders in demat mode.

Login method for Remote e-Voting for
Physical shareholders and shareholders
other than individual holding in Demat
form.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-
voting website www.evotingindia.com.

2)
3)

Click on “Shareholders” module.

Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID
followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Shareholders holding shares in
Physical Form should enter Folio
Number registered with the
Company.

Next enter the Image Verification as

4)
displayed and Click on Login.

C3

5)

6)

If you are holding shares in demat form
and had logged on to
www.evotingindia.com and voted on an
earlier e-voting of any Company, then
your existing password is to be used.

If you are a first-time user follow the steps
given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than
individual shareholders holding shares in
Demat.

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN
issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as
well as physical shareholders)

PAN

Dividend
Bank
Details

OR Date | »

of

(DOB)

e Shareholders who have not updated
their PAN with the Company/Depository
Participant are requested to use the
sequence number sent by Company/RTA
or contact Company/RTA.

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of

Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in

your demat account or in the Company

records in order to login.

If both the details are not recorded with
the depository or company, please enter
the member id / folio number in the
Dividend Bank details field.

Birth

After entering these details appropriately,
click on “SUBMIT" tab.

Shareholders holding shares in demat
form will now reach ‘Password Creation’
menu wherein they are required to
mandatorily enter their login password in
the new password field. Kindly note that
this password is to be also used by the
demat holders for voting for resolutions of
any other Company on which they are
eligible to vote, provided that Company
opts for e-voting through CDSL platform.
It is strongly recommended not to share
your password with any other person and
take utmost care to keep your password
confidential.
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For shareholders holding shares in
physical form, the details can be used
only for e-voting on the resolutions
contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant
Company Name on which you choose to
vote i.e. Orissa Bengal Carrier Limited .
On the voting page, you will see
“RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and
against the same the option “YES/NO”
for voting. Select the option YES or NO
as desired. The option YES implies that
you assent to the Resolution and option
NO implies that you dissent to the
Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if
you wish to view the entire Resolution
details.

After selecting the resolution, you have
decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT". A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you
wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”,
else to change your vote, click on
“CANCEL"” and accordingly modify your
vote.

Once you “CONFIRM" your vote on the
resolution, you will not be allowed to
modify your vote.

You can also take a print of the votes
cast by clicking on “Click here to print”
option on the Voting page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten
the login password then Enter the User
ID and the image verification code and
click on Forgot Password & enter the
details as prompted by the system.
There is also an optional provision to
upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which
will be made available to scrutinizer for
verification.

Additional Facility for Non - Individual
Shareholders and Custodians -For
Remote Voting only.

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other
than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and
Custodians are required to log on to
www.evotingindia.com and register
themselves in the “Corporates” module.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form
bearing the stamp and sign of the entity

should be emailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.
After receiving the login details a

Compliance User should be created
using the admin login and password. The
Compliance User would be able to link
the account(s) for which they wish to
vote on.

The list of accounts linked in the login
will be mapped automatically & can be
delink in case of any wrong mapping.

It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of
the Board Resolution and Power of
Attorney (POA) which they have issued in
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be
uploaded in PDF format in the system for
the scrutinizer to verify the same.
Alternatively Non Individual shareholders
are required mandatorily to send the

relevant Board Resolution/ Authority
letter etc. together with attested
specimen signature of the duly

authorized signatory who are authorized
to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the
Company at the email address Vviz
raipur@obclimited.com and
cs@obclimited.com, if they have voted
from individual tab & not uploaded same
in the CDSL e-voting system for the
scrutinizer to verify the same.
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PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS
WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NUMBER ARE NOT
REGISTERED WITH THE
COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1)For Demat shareholders -, Please update
your email id & mobile no. with your
respective Depository Participant (DP)
2)For Individual Demat shareholders -
Please update your email id & mobile no.
with your respective Depository
Participant (DP) which is mandatory while
e-Voting & joining virtual meetings
through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding
e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System,
you can write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact
at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

All grievances connected with the facility for
voting by electronic means may be
addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager,
(CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India)
Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon
Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi
Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013
or send an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call at
toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

C3

25) The results declared along with the

Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on
the Company’s website
www.obclimited.com and on the
website of CDSL www.cdslindia.com,
immediately after declaration of the
result and shall also be communicated
to the Stock Exchanges where the
shares of the Company are listed i.e. BSE
and NSE and be made available on their
respective websites viz.
www.bseindia.com and
www.nseindia.com.

By order of the Board
For, Orissa Bengal Carriers
Limited
Date: 08.08.2022
Place: Raipur

Ravi Agrawal
Managing Director
DIN: 01392652
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

The following Explanatory Statement sets out all the material facts relating to
the Item No. 3 of the accompanying Notice dated August 08, 2022.

Item No. 3: To Revise Remuneration of Mr. Ravi Agrawal (DIN:01392652), Managing
Director of the Company.

The members of the Company had appointed Mr. Ravi Agrawal as Wholetime Director of the
Company in the Annual General Meeting held on 09th July 2018 for a term of 5 years at a
remuneration of Rs. 1,25,000/- Per month. Further, in the Annual General Meeting held on 03rd
August 2019, Members revised the remuneration of Mr. Ravi Agrawal from Rs. 1,25,000/- to Rs.
2,00,000/- per month. Further, in the Annual General Meeting held on 29t November 2021,
members revised the remuneration of Mr. Ravi Agrawal from Rs. 2,00,000/- to Rs. 3,00,000/-
per month.

In the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 28t May 2022, the members of the Company
changed the designation of Mr. Ravi Agrawal from Wholetime Director to Managing Director
charging him with the management of the complete affairs of the Company from all aspects.
The above decision was taken considering his innovative ways of doing business and new
ideas which took the Company's turnover and profit to the heights. Under his leadership,
employees of the Company are doing work more efficiency and effectively.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors in their respective
meetings held on Thursday, August 04, 2022, had considered the matter of revision in the
remuneration of Mr. Ravi Agrawal for the services rendered by him as Managing Director of
the Company, and keeping in view his achievements and contributions and owing to the
increased responsibility placed on him as the Managing Director of the Company,
recommended to the members an increase in his remuneration by Rs. 1,50,000/ - (Rupees
One Lakhs Fifty Thousand only) per month so as the revised monthly remuneration of Mr. Ravi
Agrawal comes at Rs. 4,50,000/- (Rupees Four Lakhs Fifty Thousand only) per month effective
from O1st October, 2022.

All other terms of remuneration of Mr. Ravi Agrawal, as approved by the Members, will remain
unchanged.

Further, the revision in the remuneration of Mr. Ravi Agrawal requires the approval of
shareholders by way of Special Resolution as per provisions of Section 197 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the same, the matter is
recommended to Shareholders for their approval.

166



C3

Orissa Bengal
—— Corrier Limited 22

The terms & conditions including remuneration are in compliance with Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the
time being in force), including the norms laid down in Sections 196, 197 & other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

The other details of Mr. Ravi Agrawal in terms of Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015 and Secretarial Standard-2 is annexed to this Notice as part of Annexure-A of the notice.
In pursuance of the provisions of Section 203(3) of Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of
Mr. Ravi Agrawal is made by the Board with unanimous consent.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives except
Mr. Ravi Agrawal himself and his mother Mrs. Shakuntala Devi Agrawal including their

relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out in this
Notice.

The Board recommends the resolution as mentioned in Item No. 3 above for the approval of
the members by way of Special Resolution.
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Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment or having proposed change in
Remuneration at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting [Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of
the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial
Standard 2 on General Meetings]

Name of the Director
Category of Directorship
DIN

Nature

Date of Birth/Age

Qualification

Date of Appointment in Current

Designation
Expertise in specific
functional area

Number of shares held
in the Company

List of other Directorships held in other
Company (If Any)

Particulars of Committee
Chairmanship/ Membership held in
Other Companies

Remuneration/Commission drawn, if
any

Comparative remuneration pursuant
to industry, size of the Company,
Profile of the position and person

No. of Board Meetings attended during
2021-22

Relationship with other directors

C3

Orissa Bengal
—— Corrier Limited 22

Ravi Agrawal
Managing Director
01392652
Increase in Remuneration

02/11/1986-
35 Years

MBA

01/06/2022
Overall Management
82,38,800

1. Jharkhand Milk Products Private Limited
NIL

Rs. 3,00,000/- PM

Commensurate with the size and the
operations of the Company, the profile of
the appointee, the responsibilities
shouldered to him and the industry
benchmarks, the remuneration proposed
to be paid is reasonable to that of the
other similar companies.

13

Mr. Ravi Agrawal
Shakuntala Devi Agrawal

Shakuntala Devi Agrawal
Non-Executive Director
01540586
Re-appointment

16-08-1960
61 Years

Matriculate

12-05-2005

Overall Management

29,65,500

NIL

NIL

Rs. 75,000/- PM

13

the mother of Mr. Ravi Agrawal

is the son of Mrs.|Mrs. Shakuntala Devi Agrawal is
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C3

Orissa Bengal
—— Corrier Limited 22

FORM NO. MGT-11

Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the member(s):

Registered Address:

E-mail ID:

Folio No./Client Id:

DP ID:

I/We, being the member (s) of equity shares of ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LTD,
hereby appoint

Name:- Name:-

Address:- Address:-

Email Id:- Email Id:-

Signaturei... e , or failing him Signaturei... e ,

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Tuesday, September 06, 2022 at A-1, 3rd Floor,
CG Elite Complex, Opposite Mandi Gate, Pandri, Raipur (C.G.)- 492001 at 10:00 AM and at any
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below :
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Orissa Bengal
Vote
(Optional see Note 2)*
S.No. Resolution
For Against
Adoption of Financial Statements of the
] Company for the Financial Year ended March
’ 31 2022 and the reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon.
To re-appoint Mrs. Shakuntala Devi Agrawal
5 (DIN: 01540586), who retires by rotation and
’ being eligible, offers herself for
re-appointment.
3 To revise the remuneration of Mr. Ravi
’ Agrawal, Managing Director of the Company.
Signed this. ....... day of......... 2022
Affix
Revenue
Stamp

v'Signature of shareholder

v'Signature of Proxy holder(s)

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
registered office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the

Meeting.

2.*It is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank
against any or all Resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she

thinks appropriate.
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Orissa Bengal
—— Corrier Limited 22

ATTENDANCE SLIP

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the venue
of the Meeting

DP Id No.
Client Id No.
Name:

Address:

No. of Shares held:

| hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of Orissa
Bengal Carrier Ltd on Tuesday, September 06, 2022 at A-1, 3 Floor, CG Elite
Complex, Opposite Mandi Gate, Pandri, Raipur (C.G.)- 492001.

Signature of the Member / Proxy

171



1%

ROUTE MAP
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«
We take up transportation remits ,,

from anywhere to anywhere in PAN India.

3

S tEels

ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LIMITED
REGISTERED OFFICE:
JIWAN BIMA MARG, PANDIR RAIPUR-492001, CHATTISGARH
CORPORATE OFFICE-
A-1, 3RD FLOOR, CG ELITE COMPLEX,
OPPOSITE MANDI GATE, PANDRI RAIPUR 492001 CT IN

Telephone- +91 771 2281314
Website- www.obclimited.com
Email- admin@obclimited.com
CIN- L63090CT1994PLC008732



